Furgmoney
 Institutional
Investor piLcC

ASET

ARG




Welcome

to Euromoney

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC is listed on the London
Stock Exchange and 1s a member of the FTSE 250 share index

It 1s a leading international business-to-business media group
focused primarily on the international finance, metals and
commodities sectors In October 2006 1t acquired Metal Bulletin plc
for £240 million. It publishes more than 70 magazines, newsletters
and journals, including Euromoney, Institutional Investor and
Metal Bulletin 1t also runs an extensive portfolio of conferences,
seminars and training courses, and I1s a leading provider of
electronic Information and data on international finance, metals
and commodities, and emerging markets

Principal Brands

Euromoney
Institutional Investor
Metal Bulletin
Euroweek
Asiamoney

Latin Finance

ISI Emerging Markets
BCA Research

IMN
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Activities

Financial Publishing

Finanaal publishing indudes an extensive portfolio of titles
covenng the international capital markets as well as a number
of specialist financtal ttles Products include magazines,
newsletters, journals, surveys and research, directonies, and
books A selection of the company's leading brands includes
Euromoney. Institutional Investor, Euroweek, Latin Finance,
Asiamoney, Global Investor, Project Finance, Futures & Options
World, Total Dervatives and the hedge fund titles EuroHedge,
investHedge, AsiaHedge, Absolute Retum and Alpha

Business Publishing

The business pubhshing dwision produces specialist
magazines and cther pubhications covenng the metals

and mining, energy and legal sectors Its leading brands
include Metal Bulletin, Amenican Metal Market, Petroleum
Economust, World O, Hydrocarbon Processing, international
Financial Law Review; International Tax Review and
Managing intellectual Property

Training

The Traiming businesses run a comprehensive range of
banking, finance and legal courses, both public and in-house,
under the Euromoney and DC Gardner brands Courses

are run all aver the world for both finanaial institutions

and corporates |n addition the company’s Boston-based
subsidiary, MIS, runs a wide range of courses for the audit
and information secunity market

Conferences and Seminars

The company runs a large number of sponsored conferences
and semunars for the international iinancal markets, mostly
under the Euromoney, Institetional Investor, Metal Bulletin
and IMN brands Many of these conferences are the leading
annual events in their sector and provide sponsors with

a high quabty program and speakers, and outstanding
networking opportunittes Such events indude The
Euromoney Forum and The Euromoney Bond Investors
Congress, the MARHedge Global Hedge Fund Summit,

the European Air Finance conference, the Islamic Finance
Summut; the Super Bow! of Indexing®, and Global ABS
and ABS East for the asset-backed secunties market In the
energy sector, the group runs the world’s leading annual
coal conference, Coaltrans, and MIS runs the leading event
for the information secunty sector in the US, InfoSec World

Databases and Information Services

The company provides a number of subscription-hased
database and electronic information services for financial
markets Montreal-based BCA 1s one of the world's
leading independent prowiders of global investment
research The company’s US subsidhary, Internet Securrties,
Inc (“i51") prowides the world’s most comprehensive sernce
for news and data on global emerging markets, and
indudes CEIC, one of the leading providers of time-series
macro-economic data for Asia The company also offers
global caprtal market databases through a joint venture
with its AIM-listed partner, Dealogic
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Chairman’'s Statement

Highlights

Revenue

Operating profit

Adjusted operating profit*

Profit before tax

Adusted profit before tax*
Diluted earnings a share

Adjusted diluted earmings a share*
Dindend

*se glossary {page 5)

2007 2006 change
£305 2m £220 5m +38%
£54 1m £397m +36%
£78 6m £43 8m +79%
£41 1m £35 2m +17%
£55 5m £37 Om +50%
299p 41 9p -29%
327p 28 6p +14%
190p 17 0p +12%

1t was a record year for profits and revenues, but it was also a
landmark penod when we sharply increased the emphasis on
subscription revenues and hghtened the share of turnover
from tradmionally more volatle advertising The successful
integration of Metal Bulletin accounted for part of this, but
our continued investment i subscription marketing, specialist
events and quality editona! also paid off Your group serves
financial markets across the world, but it 15 more dversified
than it was, and we believe it 15 more robust and better placed
to take advantage of an upturn when nt comes

Qur strategy over the past five years has been to increase the
share of subscrniption revenues, to own only products of the
highest quality that customers will value in tough times as well
as good, to eliminate products with low margins or too high
a dependence on advertising, to create new products that
fit these cntena, to streamline the group Into larger businesses
in growth areas, and to make acquisitions to accelerate
that strategy

That pard big rewards in 2007, a good year in general for
financial markets, and | believe it will help us through what
may be a difficult penod ahead The company's management,
thanks in part to the Capital Apprecation Plan which helped
to more than treble adusted operating profits* over the period
of the scherme by retaining and motivating the best people, 1s
better than it has ever been, in my wiew QOur cash generation,
tradwionally strong, has improved further, encouraging us to
seek more acquisitions and to tvest in high quality
subscniption products, new events and the quality of editenal
that enabled Institutional Investor magazine {(which celebrated
1ts 40th anmversary in October) and Il Newsletters to win a
hatfut of awards in the US We wall continue with this strategy,
even if revenues come under pressure In the short-term as
customers react to pressure on ther own earnings, because
we believe 1t will deliver excellent growth In the medium and
longer-term

Last year it helped the company to achieve adjusted operating
profit for the year to Septernber 30 2007 of £78 6 mullion,
against £43 8 mullon w0 2006 Adjusted profit before tax
increased by 50% to £555 milion and adjusted diluted
earnings & share increased from 28 6p to 32 7p The directors
recommend a 12% increase in the final dwvidend 1o 13p,
making a total for the year of 19p

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Revenue and profit growth were achieved across all dmisions,
subscniption revenues increased sharply and now account for
more than a third of group revenues, the adjusted operating
margin improved from 20% to 26 %, the integration of Metal
Bulfetn, acguired in October 2006, was completed ahead of
time and rts performance has surpassed that projected at the
time of acquisition, and record net operating cash flows
helped reduce net debt at year end to £2046 million
compared with £239 6 mullion at the half year

The group operating margtn improved sharply and all dwsions
achreved strong organic growth, based on

@® subscription revenues for both print and electromc
products continuing to show double digit growth,

@ advertising revenues increasing at the highest rate for
some time,

@ a successful strategy for growing existing events
complemented by the launch of new ones,

@® continuing strong volume growth in the training
businesses, and

@ the benefit of earlier investment in marketing and new
products




The problems in global credit markets, which began in early
August, did not affect the group’s profits in the final quarter
of the year

Current trading 15 n line with the boards expectations
October profits from continuing operations were ahead of last
year, helped by strong performances from two of the group's
flagship events the annual Coaftrans coal conference and
insttutional Investor's MARHedge Global Hedge Fund Summit
n Bermuda Forward revenues for the first quarter are ahead
of the same time last year While there 1s evidence of some
slowing in adverusing and sponsorship bookings, sales for the
last three months are also ahead of the same penod last year
The first quarter s tracitionally the least significant of the
financial year and, as usual at the tme of the prehminary
results, wisibility into the second quarter 1s hmited

Our results were achieved on the back of the positive
conditions In the markets experienced throughout 2007,
fuelled by record levels of hquidity, low interest rates and easy
credit Growth has been achieved across all geographies and
sectors, and emerging markets, which account for more than
a third of group revenues, remained strong even during the
crecit market troubles

Global financial institutions continue to invest in new products
and markets, driving increased demand for quality business
information through a vanety of media Technology has
opened up opportunities for new electronic information
services and nearly £2 million was invested 1n new products
during the period

Financial Pubhshing Revenues, which comprise both
advertising and subscriptions, increased by 16% to £752
millon Advertising continued the positive trend seen in the
first half and titles such as Euromoney and the international
edition of Institutional Investor, which derive a significant
proportion of ther advertising from emerging markets,
achieved advertising growth rates in excess of 15%, their best
performance for many years The profit flow-through on
advertising revenues helped improve the adjusted operating
margin from 20% to 26% and adjusted operating profits
increased by 44% to £19 0 million

Subsecnptions, which account for one third of Fnancat
Publishing revenues, increased by 21% This reflects both
volume tncreases in print subscriptions as well as the gradual
migration of print products to electronic platforms The
group’s Investment n new products 15 targeted at niche
financial information services with real-tme news, umique
data and sophisticated search engine technology, as well
as upgrading indmidual print subscniptions to enhanced
electronic products sold as site hicences

New products launched in the year have included Total
Securitisation, The Cover {news and data for the covered bond
market), FiX {Euromoney’s weekly commentary on the foreign

exchange markets) and the Euromoney Business Library, with
more planned for 2008 The imtial market response to these
new products has been very positive

Business Publishing Foliowing the acquisiton of Metal
Bulletin, and the disposal of Engel Pubhshing, the
pharmaceutical marketing business, this diviston 15 now
focused on three sectors — metals, energy and legal — and
derves nearly half 1ts revenues from subscription products Al
three sectors benefited from buoyant markets, in particular
high energy and commedity pnices The Metals, Minerals and
Mining (MMM} business of Metal Bulletin 15 the largest
component of this division and 1ts performance improved In
the second half as the benefits of the post-acquisiton
restructuring and investment in marketing started to come
through The inclusion of the MMM business helped adjusted
operating profits from Business Publishing more than double
to £14 0 million on the back of a 1% Increase In revenues
to £40 7 million

Conferences and Seminars The strong growth achieved
over the past few years continued with revenues up 28% to
£98 2 millon The strategy of buwlding large, must-attend
annual events in key sectors, as well as launching new events
to exploit market trends and hot topics, helped the margin
improve from 26% to 30% and adjusted operating profits
increased by 47% to £29 8 milhon Insututional Investor's
subscription-based membership business continues to achieve
excellent growth with member numbers increasing by 15%,
helped by new launches for the research, legal and tax
markets, and a renewal rate of 90% which emphasises the
quality of this business

Training The Traiming division extended the excellent results
achieved over the previous 12 months, with revenues
increasing by 21% to £35 2 milhon Growth was driven by
a combination of more targeted marketing to improve
the delegate attendance rate, and new courses
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Chairman’'s Statement continued

offered, parucularly in emerging markets Adjusted operating
profits from the Traming dwision icreased by 41% to
£9 8 million

Databases and Information Services This dmwsion largely
comprises three businesses which share similar charactenstics
subscription-only products delvenng high quality data and
information in electronic-only format and with renewal rates
in excess of 90% The inclusion of BCA in this dmvsion means
that revenues more than doubled to £52 miliron and adjusted
operating profits increased from £5 1 million to £18 7milkon

BCA subscnpuon sales improved significantly during the
second half with average monthly new sales more than 40%
ahead of 2006 This performance was helped by the launch
of a new Commodities and Energy research product and
the benefits of being part of the Euromoney group which
accelerated the addition of sales resource in the group’s offices
n New York, Hong Kong, Sydney and Buenos Aires

1S), the emerging markets information business, also achieved
strong growth Net new subscription sales over the second
half were the highest ever, and the business has invested
heavily in new products induding the roll cut of the CEIC
economic data business to new markets in 2008

The acquisiton of Metal Bulletn plc, the company’s largest
transaction, was completed at the start of the financal year
and the integration of 1ts businesses within the Euromoney
Institutional Investor group was concluded ahead of ttme

Annuabsed cost savings from the elimination of duplcate
functions and the restructuning of under-performing
businesses are expected to exceed £5 million, of which
£35 millon was realised in 2007 Exceptional costs of
£5 9 milkon were charged agamnst profits in 2007 to cover
the costs of restructuring and onerous property leases The
process of disposing of non-core Metal Bulleun businesses,
including EIC, Atalink and Systematics was completed soon
after the half year

The two key parts of Metal Bulletin, the MMM dmsion,
including the eponymous utle, and BCA, the independent
economic research house, are strong subscnption businesses
Both have responded well 10 Euromoney initiatives 1o drive
revenue synergies The events business has been restructured
and positioned for a sharp increase in the number of new
events in 2008, the first Metal Bulletin training courses were
run in the last quarter, and the investment in technology has
been stepped up with a wiew to launching publishing
products The acquisition of these Metal Bulletin businesses
prowides a counter balance to the group’s other actvties

The company's Capital Apprecation Plan (CAP) s a five year
equity incentive put in place to help dnive City PBT* from a
base of £21 million in 2003 to a target of at least £57 million
by 2008 Cry PBT* for the year was £65 7 millon, resulting
n the CAP profit target being passed a year earlier than

Euromoney Institutional investor PLC

expected As a result an accelerated share option expense of
£3 2 million was charged i1n the year, and 2 5 millon new
shares wail be i1ssued in February 2008 to sausfy the fust
vesting under the CAP The second and third tranches of up to
2 5 milion new shares each wall be 1ssued in February 2009
and 2010, subject to the performance condiion that City
PBT* remains above the £57 million level

The acquisition of Metal Bulletin was completed on October 6
2006 for a cash consideration of £240 milhon, plus assumed
debt of £15 million, funded by the 1ssue of 13 8 millwon new
shares for £65 million and borrowings of £175 milllon Further
investments totaling £26 mithon were made in a number of
the group’s associates and subsidianes duning the year, while
disposals of mon-core businesses generated proceeds of
£15 mulion

The company generates approximately 60% of its revenues in
US dollars The average US dollar exchange rate fell by 9%
over the year The cormnpany hedges its US dollar exposure a
year forward so the impact on the results of currency
fluctuations is delayed accordingly

Net debt at year end was £204 6 miflion compared to
£2396 milhon at the half year The strong operating cash
flows of Metal Bulletin helped increase group cash generated
by operations for the year to £90 2 millon and generated an
adjusted operatung profit to cash conversion rate of 115%
The net cost of funding the group’s debt increased from
£3 6 million to £13 4 millon The net debt EBITDA covenant
was a comfortable 2 9 tmes at year end

Adjusted diluted earnings a share increased by 14% to 32 7p,
after taking account of the equity dilution from for the new
shares 1ssued to fund the acquisihon of Metal Bulletin and
to be ssued under the CAP A final dwidend of 13p has
been proposed, an increase of 12%, after a 11% increase
in the intenm dividend The final dividend will be paid on
February 6 2008




The increase in the share of subscnptions as a percentage of
revenues 10 more than a third of the iotal, compared 10 21%
11 20071 was accompanied by 2 fall in the share of advertising
from 37% to 22% over the same penod, and an increase 1n
revenues from training and events from 30% to 39% of the
total Seven of the groups 10 largest businesses are
subscrniption-based and in many cases, such as BCA 151 and Il
Memberships, these are fast growang businesses, with high
tenewal rates and signifcant scope for launching new
products and increasing market penetration even In more
challenging condrtions

in 2008, the group will continue to Invest N marketng and
new businesses n particular elecrromic information senaces,
to dnive revenue growth, and the successful integration of
Metal Bulletin and strong operating cash flows ieave the
group well postioned for further acquisiiens, although we
have nothing sizeable in our sights at present

The group 15 very sirong despite the uncertainty over the
economic outlook 1n general and globai credit markets in
partcutar The strength and posituoning of the group’s brands
combined with 3 commitment 1o investment in marketing and
new products provides opportunmies for further revenue
growth in many areas in 2008 The successful integration of
Metal Bulletin will genesate addiional cost savings in 2008
and leaves the group well placed to deliver more revenue
synergies Excellent operating cash flows will continue to
reduce debt levels and associated funding costs In addrtion
the increased proportion of revenues now denved from high
margin subscnption products, particularly those delvered
electrorucally, and the reduced exposure to advertising
revenues means the group’s earrangs should be more rabust
than before

The continued volatiity in finanoal markets which has
tnggered significant asset write-downs and job cuts among
the global investrent banks clearty casts uncertainty over the
outiogk for 2008, but we are prepared for the challenge

Apart from record profis 1t was akso a year of achievements
elsewhere Coaltrans won the Queen's Award deservedly so as it
has taken its business into every comer of the world Its people
worked incredibly hard to achueve ths, and we congratulate them
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| am paricularty proud that last year Euromoney Insttutional
Investor 115 employees, and s customers iogether raised
£287 000 to build a children s eye hospital in Onssa, the poorest
state of India Detalls are set out on page 14 of this annual
repart, but here | thank everyone who contnbuted to this
rutiztve, including Euromoney institutional Investor people at
our offices across the world They worked hard to bnng you a
wonderful result for the year but they, the company and its
customers funded 2 pyoject that will save the eyesight of
15,000 a year /

*Glossary

Adjusted operating profit = Qperaung profit before acquired intangible
armorusauon share pption expense exceplional items and share of results in
as5001ates and joiNt ventures. as set out In the income statement,

Adjusted profit before tax = Profit before tax from continuing operauons
before acquired intangible amort:sation exceptional Jiems net movements
N acquisiion optitn commutment values imputed interest on acquisition
option commitments and foreign exchange foss interest charge on tax
£quahsalion swaps as sel out tn the income statement and note 7

City profit before tax {City PBT) = Adjusted prafit before tax before share
QpuON expense

Adjusted deuted sarmings a share = Diuted earnings a share before
acquwed intangible amortisation  exceptwonal dems net movements N
acquisition option commitment values imputed interest on acquisiuon
option cormmutments  related tax, tax credit on mon-recurnng mtergroup
transacvons and deferred tax assets recogmsed as set out 1 note 8

A A e b —mmm e = iy
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Directors’ Report

The directors subrrit their annual report and group accounts
for the year ended September 30 2007

Centain statements made 1n this document are forward-
looking statements Such statements are based on current
expectations and are subject to a number of nsks and
uncertainties that could cause actual events or results to differ
matenally from any expected future events or results referred
to n these forward-looking statements Unless otherwise
required by apphicable law, regulation or accounting standard,
we do not undertake any obligation to update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new
information, future development or otherwise Nothing in this
document shall be regarded as a profit forecast

The directors’ report has been prepared for the group as a whole
and therefore gives greater emphasis to those matters which are
sgnificant to Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC and rs
subsidiary undertakings when viewed as a whole It has been
prepared solely to provide addiional informaton to shareholders
as a body to assess the company's strategy and the potential for
that strategy to succeed and the directors' report should not be
refled upon by any other party for any other purpose

1 Prinapal activities

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC is listed on the London
Stock Exchange and 1s a member of the FTSE 250 share index
It 15 a leading international business-to-business media group
focused primanly on the international finance, metals and
commodities sectors It publishes more than 70 magazines,
newsletters and journals, including Euromoney, Institutional
investor and Metal Bulletin 1t also runs an extensive portfolio
of conferences, serminars and training courses and 1s a leading
provider of electronic information and data covenng the
international finance, metals and commodities, and emerging
markets Its main offices are located in London, New York,
Montreal and Hong Kong and nearly half its revenues and
profits are denved from the United States Details of the
group's legal entties can be found in note 13

2 Strategy
The group's strategy 1s

@® 1o grow profits by driving top-line growth from both new
and existing products,

@ to buld robust subscnption and repeat revenues thus
reducing the dependence on advertising,

@ 0 mprove operating margins through revenue growth
and tight cost control,

® 1o leverage technology to launch speciahsed new
electronic information serves, and

® to make focused acquisitions that supplement the
group's existing businesses, that strengthen the
company’s market position In key areas and that have the
capacity for organic growth using the existing knowledge
base of the group

In 2004, to supplement this strategy, the board set the group
a profit* target of £50 miflion by 2008 against a base of
£21 million 1n 2003 In March 2007, the target was
increased to £57 million to reflect the effect of the Metal
Bulletin acquisitionn The profit* achieved for the year was
£65 7 million, beating the increased target a year earlier than
expected The board beleves this significant achievement
reflects the success of the Caprtal Appreciation Plan (CAP)
Incentive scheme indnving growth

3 Business review

31 Group results and dwidends

The group profit for the year attributable to shareholders
amounted to £31 8 million {2006 £37 4 mitllon} The directors
recommend a final dwidend of 130 pence per ordinary
share {2006 116 pence), payable on February 6 2008
to shareholders on the register on Novernber 23 2007 Thes,
together with the intenm divdend of 6 O pence per ordinary
share (2006 5 4 pence) which was declared on May 16 2007
and paid on June 25 2007, brings the total divdend for the
year to 19 0 pence per ordinary share (2006 17 0 pence)

*Profit before tax exduding acquired intangible amortizaton share option expense exceptional items, Net MOveMents In acquisition option commitrments values
imputed interest on acquision option commutments and foreign exchange Joss interest charge on tax equalisation swaps as set out in the income statement

and note 7

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC




32 Key performance indicators
The group monitors Its performance against its strategy using the following key performance mdicators

Revenue Mix Revenuye Muix Revenue
2007 2007 2006 2006 growth
£000%s % £000% % %
Revenue growth and mix
Advertsing 65,356 22% 54,177 25% +21%
Subscriptions 104,046 34% 55,373 25% +88%
Sponsorship 46,314 15% 36,744 16% +26%
Delegates 74,376 24% 57.001 26% +30%
Other 10,804 4% 8,635 4% +25%
Sold/closed businesses 4,257 1% 8,546 4% {50%)
305,153 100% 220,476 100% +38%
2007 2006 Growth
Gross margin’ 69 8% 66 0% +3 8%
Adjusted operating margin? 25 8% 199% +5 9%
Organic growth 1n profits? £13 8m £9 3m
Headcount* 2,160 1,690 470
Net debt to EBITDAS 2851 1681

Gross margin = gross profit as a percentage of revenue Gross profit and revenue are both as per note 4 in the financal statements

2 Adjusted operating margin = operating profit before acquired intangible amortsation share option expense excepuonal items and assoaates and jont
veniures as a percentage of revenue Operaung profit and revenue are both as per the group income statement in the finanaal statements

3 Organic growth in profits = proportion of total operating profit growth that relates 10 organic growth, rather than acquisitions Operating profit 15 from
continuing aperations so excludes ciosed businesses and 1s adjusted for significant timang 1 events and publications

4 Headcount = number of permanent people employed at the end of the penod induding people employed in assocates and joint ventures
Net debt to EBITDA = the amount of the group 5 net debt to Earrungs Before Interest and Tax (operating profit) Depreoation Amortsation and also before
exceptional iiems

6§ City PBT = Profit before tax extluding acquired intangible amortzation share option expense exceptional items, net movements i acquisiton option
commitments values imputed interest on acquisiion option commitments and foreign exchange loss interest charge on tax equalisauon swaps as set out
n the group income statemment and note 7
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Directors’ Report continuved

3 3 KPIs explained

The key performance indicators are all within the group's
expectations and support 1ts successful strategy These are
discussed in detail in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 2
to 5, and below This should be read in conjunction with the
additional information on the development of the business of
the group which is also set out below

3 4 Development of the business of the group

341 Financal results

A detalled review of the group's results s given In the
Chairman's Statement on pages 2 to 5

342 Finance costs

IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recogmition and Measurement'
requires an imputed interest charge to be recognised on
the group's future acquistion payments under option
agreements This additional finance ¢ost increased the group's
interest cost by £1 6 milion (2006 £0 9 milion) 1AS 39 also
requires any movements in the estimated value of acquisition
option commitments to be recognised in interest and 1n 2007
a related mterest income of £3 9 milhon was recognised There
15 no related cash effect of these amounts

In addittion, the group’s interest cost ncludes £1 8 milion in
relation to a foreign exchange loss on a tax equalisation
scheme which 1s offset by an equal and opposite income in the
group's tax line

Excduding these amounts, the group's net finance cost
ncreased from £3 6 mullion to £13 4 million, largely as a result
of the group’s increase in net debt from the acquisiion of
Metal Bulletin The group continues to benefit from its
treasury policy of fixing the interest rate on a portion of its
long-term borrowings {see treasury section below)

343 Headcount

The number of people employed 1s monitored monthly, on a
business-by-business basis to ensure that there are sufficient
people employed to meet the forthcoming demands of each
business and to make sure that the businesses continue to
deliver sufficient profits to support the people they employ At
the end of September the group employed 2,160 people
(2006 1,690 people), an increase of 470, as a result of
acquired heads from Metal Bulletin and Tota! Derivatives and,
additional employees trained to support the strong revenue

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

growth achieved In the year, offset by the reduction of heads
from the sale of Raven Fox and Engel Publishing Metal
Bulletin had 466 people employed on acquisiion, this had
been reduced by 196 to 270 at September 30 2007

34 4 Debt and working capital management

Net debt at September 30 2007 was £204 6 mullon
(2006 £73 4 milhon) which included cash of £26 7 milion
{2006 £27 5 million) At the end of September the group's
net debt to EBITDA ratio was 2 85 1 (2006 1 68 1) well within
the group's banking covenant and resulting in vanable interest
being incurred at the lower end of the nterest rate covenant
bands A discussion on debt 15 contaned within the
Chairman's Statement on page 5 The group has a dedicated
£300 mifhion three-year multi-currency faciity wath a subsidiary
of Daly Mall and General Trust Interest is payable on this
facility at a vanable rate of between 0 4% and 1 6% above
LIBOR At September 30 2006, the group had not drawn
down on this faality but remained a borrower under its
existing five-year committed fachity Dunng October 2006 the
group, funded by the new multi-currency faclity, repaid all
monies owing on Its existing committed faclity and drew
down further amounts to fund the purchase of Metal Bulletin
and to settle related acquired debt At September 2007 there
were £86 4 millon (2006 £2004 milhon) of committed
undrawn amounts directly avallable to the group

345 Balance sheet

The net assets of the group were £55 8 million compared to
net liabiities in 2006 of £26 8 milion The main movements In
the batance sheet items were in tangible assets, reflecting
the recognition of £3487 milhon of goodwilt and other
intangible assets following the acquisitions of Metal Bulletn
{£318 1 milhon) and Tota! Denvatives (£10 7 milkion), the finat
10% instalment payment for Information Management
Network and the increased equity holdings in Asia Business
Forum, CEIC, Internet Securities, Inc and Telcap Limited,
property, plant and equipment, increased by £6 3 million
to £20 9 million, as a result of the freehold purchase of one
of the group's London premises plus the acquired assets
from Metal Bulletin, mvestments fell by £256 million to
£0 3 milon due to the initial 9% tranche of Metal Bulletin
plc shares being reclassfied and consolidated across the
existing assets of the group, trade and ather payables, fell




£52 7 mihon to £42 8 million as a result of the repayment of
short term loans with DMGT utiising the new multi-currency
faclbty, deferred income ncreased £28 1 million to £73 4
million reflecting the first time nclusion of Metal Bulletin
deferred income and the underlying growth in the group's
subscniption revenue, acquisition option commitments
increased by £90 mitlon to £33 3 million due to new
commitments from the acquisition of Asia Business Forum,
Telcap, and Total Derwatives, rewised assessments of
commitments for existing businesses offset by the exerase of
the existting CEIC option, committed borrowings increased
by £148 0 million to £213 & million reflecting the refinanang
of group debt (see 34 4), deferred tax liabiities, net
deferred tax has moved from an overall asset of £19 8 million
to an overall habiity of £20 1 milhen, a result of additional
deferred tax on the intangible assets of Metal Bulletin, Total
Dervatives and other acquisitions, foan notesof £11 8 million
used to help fund the purchase of Metal Bulletin, and the
recogrition of an other reserve of £65 0 million reflecting the
premum on the new share capital 1ssued in relation to the
partial share alternative for the acquisition of Metal Bulletin

346 Acquisitions and disposals

Acguisitions remain a fundamental part of the group's growth
strategy and have been key to the group reaching its
£57 million profit target a year early In parucular the board
believes that acquisions are valuable for taking the group
nto new sectors, for bringing new technologies into the
group and for increasing the group's overall growth through
dentifying rapidly developing niche businesses

Acquisitions

On October 6 2006, the group acquired 100% of the 1ssued
share capital of Metal Bulletin plc for cash consideration of
£239 6 milon Metal Bulletn plc was the parent company of
a group of compames operating as a leading global
information prowider of must-have market-sensitve data in
niche, bustness-to-business markets s revenues are denved
from a range of publicattons, electronic products and senaces,
conferences and research Full details of the acquisition can be
found in note 14

In October 2006, the group signed an agreement to acquire
67% of Total Derivatives Limited, a leading prowider of real-
time news and analysis about the global fixed ncome

derivatives markets The price was £7 3 million including
acquisition costs and a working capital adjustment, resulting
in goodwll and intangible assets of £38 milllon and £6 9
milion respectively In additon, the management team wall
stay with the business and have options to sell their remaining
shares to Eurormoney at prices inked to profits for the finanaal
years 2007, 2008 and 2009 The transaction 1s subject to
a maxtmum consideration of 24 9% of Euromoney’'s market
capitalisation at the date of completion

Total Dernvatives was co-founded in 2000 by Ronan O'Neill,
who previously spent eight years as a fixed income dernvatives
trader at UBS and BNP Parbas The first internet-based
business 1n this sector, Total Dervatives, has grown rapidly to
become the pnme source of information in the global fixed
income denvatives markets As well as providing market-
leading coverage of the bond, swap and options markets,
Total Denvatives provides must-have, market-moving
information on exotic products such as inflation denvatives
and rate-linked structured notes

Increase tn equity holdings
The group continues to increase its holdings 1n 1ts associates
and subsidhartes and this year has paid the following

In January 2007, the group exercised its option to purchase
the second tranche of Asia Busmness Forum, a leading
conference organiser and traiming business for the Asia region,
increasing its equity holding from 47 5% to 90% for a
payment of £3 5 million

In February 2007, the group purchased a further 1 2% of the
equity share capital of Internet Secuntes, Inc for a cash
constderatton of $26 million (£13 milllon) bringing the
group's holding to 93 4%

Also in February 2007, the group purchased a further 15% of
the equity share capital of Telcap Limited, the global whaolesale
telecoms publsher and conference organiser, for a cash
consideration of £1 7 miflion, bringing the group's holding to
55%, at which point the business became a subsidiary

In Apnl 2007, the group purchased the final 26% of the equity
share capital of CEIC Holdings Limited, one of the leading
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providers of time-series macro-economic data covenng Asia,
for a cash consideration of $11 7 millien (£5 8 million) paid in
September 2007, bringing the group's total holding to 100%

Payments of deferred cansideration

In March 2007, in accordance with the purchase agreement,
the group paid the final deferred consideration instatment of
$123 mibon (£6 2 millon} for Information Management
Network, its 80% owned financial conference orgariser
purchased in February 2004

Disposals
The group continually reviews its businesses and during the
year disposed of the following non-core operations

On March 12 2007, the group sold Raven Fox, a duty-free
and luxury goods publishing and events business for a cash
consideration of £1 8 million Raven Fox's abilties on disposal
were £0 2m resulting 1n a profit on sale, after related sale
costs, of £1 8 million

©On March 30 2007, Atalink Limited, a speciahist and direct
response publishing company, previously part of the Metal
Bulletn group, was sold for £1 8 milkon A further payment,
expected to be £07 million, will be received for the net
current assets of the company on agreement of the
completion accounts An additional final payment of
£0 5 million 1s payable on March 30 2008 Mo profit or loss
was made on disposal

On April 12 2007, the group sold Energy Information Centre
Limited, previcusly part of the Metal Bulletin group and a
leading company in the provision of wholesale and retail
market intelhgence, outsourced procurement and energy nisk
management strategy The group recewed £4 7 millon on
completon with a further payment, expected to be
£0 3 milion, to be received for the net current assets of the
company on agreement of the completion accounts No profit
or loss was made on disposal

On May 15 2007, the group sold certain assets of the Metal
Bulletin subsidhary, Systematics International Limited, a
database business pninaipally in the farm machinery and
construction sector, for £0 1 million on completion plus a
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nominal sum deferred for one year No profit or loss was made
on disposal

On August 31 2007, the group sold Med Ad Inc, a leading
provider of marketing and clinical research information to
managers and executives in the pharmaceutical industry, for
£6 3 milhion on completion with a further payment anticipated
to be £0 5 million to be received for the net current assets of
the company on agreement of the completion accounts An
exceptional profit on sale, after related costs, was £5 0 million

347 Marketing and circulation

In 2007 revenues from drrect marketng, including Metal
Bulletin, increased by 31% Revenue growth was achieved
across all products, in particular paid delegates and electronic
subscriptions Return on marketng spend improved by 18%
Additionally, investment in 2006 to 1mprove the group's
customer information database led to increased marketing
response rates an 2007 On-ine marketing techmgues
continue 10 improve and the group has invested in a digital
marketing traiming programme for all staff in 2007 On-line
revenues have grown on average by 29%, primarnily driven by
effective use of search marketing and e-mail campaigns

348 Systems and information technology

The company continues to invest in ns IT infrastructure
This year a new state-of-the-art storage system 15 being
implemented n Lendon to give staff high performance access
to the company’s data and secure, remote connectivity to our
office-based systems from anywhere in the world

The Metal Bulleun [T systems were successfully integrated
dunng the year with headcount consohldated within the
existing technology team structure The rollout of the
company’s existing high-speed network and wireless
technologies continues as the group expands its London office
space to accommodate growth

The external network was extended to strengthen the hnk
between the company's mamn offices in Europe, North
America and Asia A full review of telecom services was
undertaken dunng the year and a new VolP network with
increased internet bandwadth will be rolled out In early 2008
to prowide a scaleable and feature-nich telephony network




In 2007 disaster recovery and business continuity plans for
all businesses were updated The company has an active
programme for testing the disaster recovery plans for afl
business units

The company's websites are located at a dedicated, high-
avallabiity hostng centre Many sites were re-launched dunng
2007 with fresh designs and updated technologies Throughott
2007 the company continued to nvest in Its e-commerce
infrastructure to help support its growing online revenues

349 Tax and treasury

Committee

The group's tax and treasury committee normally meets twice
a year and s responsible for recommending policy to the
board The commitiee members are the chairman, managing
director and finance director of the company, and the finance
director and the deputy finance director of Daly Mall and
General Trust plc The chairman of the audit committee 1s also
invited to attend the tax and treasury meetings The group’s
treasury policies are directed to giving greater certainty of
future costs and revenues and ensuring that the group has
adequate quidity for working capital and debt capacity for
funding acquisitions

Treasury
The treasury department does not act as a profit centre,
nor does 1t undertake any speculative trading activity and
it operates within polices and procedures approved by
the board

Interest rate swaps and caps are used to manage the group’s
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on 1ts floating rate
borrowings  The matunty profile of these dervatives is
matched with the expected future debt profile of the group
The group’s policy 15 to fix the interest rates on approximately
80% of ns term debt looking forward over five years At
September 30 2007, the group had 82% of its net debt fixed
by the use of interest rate hedges, management having put in
place additional interest rate swaps to cover the additional
debt from the purchase of Metal Bulleun plc  As long-term
rates are usually higher than short-term rates this hedging
strategy has the effect of increasing the interest charge, but it
does provide protection against increases tn market rates

The group 1s exposed to foreign exchange nsk in the form of
transactions wn foreign currencies entered into by group
companies and by the translation of the results of foreign
subsidiaries into sterling for reporting purposes The group
does not hedge the translation of the results of foreign
subsidiaries, but does endeavour to match foreign currency
borrowings to investments in order to provide a natural hedge
for the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidianes

Approximately 60% of the group’s revenues are in US dollars
Subsidiaries normally do not hedge transactions n foreign
currencies into  the functional currency of their own
operations However, at a group level a senes of US dollar
forward contracts 15 put in place up 10 48 months forward
partially to hedge its dollar revenues into sterkng

Details of the financial instruments used are set out in note 18
to the accounts

Tax

The group's effective tax rate increased to 20% compared to
a 10% credit in 2006 The 2007 rate 1s lower than the
expected rate of 32% at interim due 1o the recognition of a
further deferred tax asset of £3 2 mullton in respect of US state
and aty tax losses and other short term tming differences as
the group's US businesses continue to generate significant
taxable profits, and a £26 milkon tax credit on foreign
exchange losses ansing on a one-off intra group transaction in
the year that eliminates on consolidation If the effect of these
items Is stripped out, the underlying tax rate 1s 34% which is
higher than at intenm due to a different mix of regional
profits The 2006 tax rate was exceptionally low due to the
£13 6 milhon recogniion in respect of tax deductible US
goodwill If the effect of this one-off tax credit 1s stnpped out,
the underlying rate for 2006 was 28%

The total net deferred tax balance held has moved from overall
asset of £19 8 milhon o an overall habity of £20 1 million as
a result of additonal deferred tax on the intangible assets
of Metal Bulleun Even though the intangibles concerned
are not deductible for tax purposes, a temporary difference
anses under 1AS 12 and 15 not covered by any of the imtial
recognition exemptions As noted above this balance also
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includes tax deductible US goodwall and US federal tax losses
as well as UK short-term timing differences and the future
deductions avallable for the CAP scheme

There 1s an unrecognised US deferred tax asset of £5 4 milkon
(2006 £6 0 milion) This relates to Metal Bulletin US federal
tax losses (£2 4 million), and the 1AS 39 lability in respect of
the group’s obligations under the put option held by IMN's
minonty shareholders (£3 0 million)

4 Risk management

The company has continued to develop 1ts processes for nsk
management Management of significant nsk 1s regularly on the
agenda of the board and other senior management meetings

Specific nisk areas that potentially could have a matenal impact
on the group’s long-term performance include

Downturn in economy or market sector

The group generates significant income from certam key
geographical regions and market sectors for both s
publishing and events businesses Should there be a downturn
or collapse in one of these areas income 15 likely to be
adversely affected and for events businesses some
abandonment costs may also be incurred

However, the group has a strong product mix and operates in
muiftiple geographical locations which reduces dependency on
any one sector or region Management has shown a proven
ability to switch s focus to new or unaffected markets
(e g following the SARS outbreak in Asia and terronst attacks
in New York}

London, Montreal or New York wide disaster

The group has 1ts main offices located in London, Montreal,
New York and Hong Kong An area wide disaster 1s hkely to
have senous conseguences with office space potentally
becoming unusable for several months and a lack of suitable
alternative accommodation, loss of key chents and staff in an
affected area and difficult communications with both
customers and staff As a consequence of the above, the
group could suffer a loss of revenue

To mitigate this risk the group has detalled disaster recovery
{DR) plans for all businesses All employees can work remotely

Euromoney Institutional tovestor PLC

The group regularly tests its DR plans It has robust systems in
place with key locations {incuding the UK & US} benefiting
from dual locations of back ups, dual loading of live back ups
for key systems and third-party 24-hour support

Libel

The group generates a significant amount of its revenue from
publishing and hence has an inherent libel nsk A successful
libel claim 15 likely to affect the group's reputation in the
market place where the libel clam arose and/or where the
publication was published As a consegquence the group could
suffer a loss of advertising and other add-on revenue streams

To mitigate this nsk the group runs mandatory annual libel
courses for all journahsts and editors Key staff are aware of
the signuficant nature of the nsks and strong internal controls
are in place for reporting to senior management if a potential
issue anses The group also has ibel insurance cover

Incorrect circulation claims

The group publishes over 70 titles and publications and sells
adversing based partly on arculation figures An incorrect
cdam for crculation could adversely affect the group's
reputation In the applicable market place with a potental
knock-an effect for other titles within the group This could lead
to the permanert loss of advertisers and other revenue streams

To mitigate this nisk the group runs rolling annual internal
audits and regularly monitors internal controls designed to
cover arculation Detailed guidance 1s provided to afl relevant
employees and therr understanding of the rules is regularly
monitored  There are a large number of mutually exclusive
tittes and 1t 15 unlikely that an incorrect arculation claim,
should 1t anse, would affect the arculation of other titles
within the wider group Similar controls are applied to daims
for electronic publishing activities

Poor choice of acquisition

Part of the group’s strategy I1s to be acquisiive  Management
review a number of potental acquisitions each year with only
a small proportion of these going through to due diigence
stage and possible subsequent purchase The group could
suffer an impairment loss if an acquired business does not
generate the expected returns or fails to operate or grow 1n iis




markets and products areas The risks of the acquired entity
as projected may be misunderstood As a consequence a
significant amount of management time could be diverted
from other operational matters

To mitigate this risk sentor experienced management perform
detalled in-house due diligence Acquisibon agreements are
usually structured so as to retain key employees in the acquired
company and there 15 a close monitoring of performance at
board level of the entity concerned post acquisiion

Technological change

The internet 1s becoming an ever increasing important revenue
stream for the group and with this comes nsk The internet,
through the proliferation of free content and content
aggregatars, has the potentral to erode hard copy advertising
and subscnption revenues

The group is already embracing these challenges, and, overall,
views the internet as an opportunity rather than a threat
Many of its businesses already produce soft copies of
pubhcation to supplement the hard copies While the internet
1s an important tool for generating addrtional revenue the
group’s product mix prowvides protection for any potential
unforeseen problems For example, the group's share of profit
from event businesses 15 growing, wath face-to-face meetings
of increasing importance

Liquidsty risk

The group has significant bank and intercompany borrowings
and is an approved borrower under a Daily Mail and General
Trust plc £300 million revohing multi-currency faality This
facility requires the group to meet certain covenants based on
net debt and profits adjusted for certain non-cash items
Faiture to do so would result in the group being in breach of
the facility potentially resulting 1n the faality being wathdrawn
Management regularly monitors the covenants and prepares
detailed debt forecasts to ensure that sufficient headroom 15
avallable and that the covenants are not close or potentially
close to breach The group's strategy 15 to Use excess operating
cash to pay down its debt The group has a cash conversion
rate (the percentage by which cash generated by operations
covers operatng profit) of over 100%, due to much of its

subscniption, conference and training revenue being paid in
advance The directors have no reason to believe that the debt
15 not serviceable

Market price risk

The group's primary market risks are interest rate fluctuations
and exchange rate movements Dernivatives are used to hedge
or reduce the nsks of interest rate and exchange rate
movements and are not entered into unless such nisks exist
Denvatives used by the group for hedging a particular risk are
not specialised and are generally available from numerous
sources The farr values of interest rate swaps, currency
cptions and forward exchange contracts set out in note 18
represent the replacement costs calculated using the market
rates of interest and exchange at September 30 2007 The
group has no other matenal market pnice nsks

Interest rate risk

The group's borrowings are in both pounds sterling and
US dollars with the related interest tied to US and UK LIBOR
Thus results 1in the group's interest charge being at nisk to
fluctuations In Interest rates It is the group's pohcy to hedge
approxtmately 80% of its interest exposure, converung its
floating rate debt into fixed debt by means of interest rate
swaps As long-term rates are usually higher than short-terrmn
rates so this hedging strategy has the effect of increasing the
interest charge, but 1t does prowde protection against
increases In market rates Details of the group's interest rate
swaps are given in note 18

Foreign currency risk

The group 15 exposed to foreign exchange nsk in the form of
transactions in foreign currencies entered into by group
companies and by the translation of the results of foreign
subsicharies into sterhng for reporting purposes

The group does not hedge the translation of the results of
foreign subsidianes Consequently, fluctuations in the value
of sterling versus other currencies could matenally affect
the translation of these results m the consohdated
finanaal statements The group endeavours to match foreign
currency borrowings to investments in order to provide
a natural hedge for the translation of the net assets of
overseas subsidiaries
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Approximately 60% of the group's revenues are in US dollars
At a group level a series of US dollar forward contracts is put
in place up to 48 months forward partally to hedge 1ts dollar
revenues into sterling The timing and value of these forward
contracts are based on management’s estmate of its future
US dollar revenues over a 48-month pentod and s regularly
reviewed and revised with any changes in estimates resulting
in either additional forward contracts being taken out or
existing contracts' matunty dates being moved forward or
back The group also has a significant operation in Canada
whose revenues are mainly in US dollars At a group ievel a
number of small forward contracts is put In place on the same
basis as above to hedge US dollar revenues into Canadian
dollars to cover the operation’s Canadian cost base In
addition, each subsidiary 1s encouraged 1o invoice sales i its
local functional currency where possible Details of the group's
forward contracts are given in note 18

Credrt risk

The group seeks to limit Interest rate and foreign currency nsks
described above by the use of financial instruments and as a
result has a credit nsk from the potential non-performance by
the counterparties to these financial insiruments, which are
unsecured The amount of this credit nsk 1s normally restrnicted
to the amounts of any hedge gain and not the pnncpal
amount being hedged The group also has a credit exposure
to counterparties for the fult prinapal amount of cash and
cash equivalents Credit nsks are controlled by monitoring the
amounts outstanding, with and the credit quality of, these
counterparties For the group's cash and cash equivalents
these are prncpally licensed commeroal banks and
investment banks with strong long-term credit ratings, and for
denvative finanaial instruments Daily Mail and General Trust
plc who have treasury policies in place which do not allow
concentrations of nisk with indmidual counterparties and do
not allow sigmificant treasury exposures with counterparties
which are rated lower than AAA

The group also has credit nsk with respect to trade and
other recewvables, prepayments and accrued income The
concentration of credit sk from trade receivables 1s imited
due to the large and broad customer base Trade recewable
exposures are managed locally In the business units where
they arse Allowance 1s made for bad and doubtfu! debts
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based on managements assessment of the nsk of non-
payment taking into account the ageing profile, expenence
and arcumstance

The maximum exposure to credit nsk 1s represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset, including denvative
finanaal mstruments, recorded 1n the balance sheet

5 Soaal Responsibility

Indian eye clinic

Euromoney Institutional Investor encourages its people to be
active In chanties It channels its chanty budget exclusively to
good causes that its employees support, matching or better
the money raised by I1ts people

Thus year, an excellent one for profits, it did the same, but it also
set out to do something extra, something much more
ambitous It searched for a special one-off chanty project
before choosing a single cause that was particularly suitable for
a publishing company that earns much of 1ts revenues In
emerging markets The cntera it selected were that the project
must make a maximum benefical change to people’s lives, that
1t would concentrate on children, that it would be permanent
or self-sustairung, that it would fire the imagmnation of the
company’s 2,100 employees around the world, and that ot
would be entirely funded through the company's efforts

When the search finished, Euromoney Institutional Investor
had found its project, 1o Geate a chiuldren’s eye chnicin Orissa,
the poorest state In India It would take three years to come
fully on stream, by which time 1t would save the sight of
between 10,000 and 20,000 children annually Avordable
blindness 1s very common in poor regions of india and Africa
Much of it can be cured by a simple cataract operation that
costs around £12

The dinic would be attached to the exsting Kalinga Eye
Hospital Surgeons and nurses would be recruited and trained
to perform delicate eye surgery on chidren under the
guidance of ORBIS, the international blindness chanty, which
15 Euromoney’s partner in the project The mission of ORBIS 1s
to restore sight to poor people in developing countries The
chie wall sustain itself by charging better off parents, so that
no child will be turned away Hospital teams wll tour local




wllages, testing children’s eyesight and encouraging parents to
bring them to the clinic for surgery if needed

The cost of the project 1s £188,000 ORBIS suggested the
funds be rased over three years Euromoney Institutional
Investor set out to raise the money in a year At the end of
calendar 2006 it asked its people, the company itself, and its
customers to combine in one big effort The Board deaded
that, in addiion to the usual chanty budget, the company
would donate a further £50,000 to Kalinga The directors
individually gave an additional £50,000 Employees
everywhere rose 1o the challenge, jumping from aeroplanes,
raising funds at the company’s conferences and awards
dinners, organmising quiz evemngs, running marathons and
holding cake sales They raised a further £77,000 The
company then appealed to its customers, who responded with
a generosity that took the total raised through £200,000 by
the beginning of September 2007, ahead of target and a
month ahead of plan The additional funds will enable more
eye operations

Progress is swift The doctors and nurses have begun traiming
The new hospital 15 being built The company’s initial donation
has already enabled the surgeons to save the sight of 2,000
people and treat thousands of others The people In the area
are becorming aware that the sight of therr children can be
saved Other areas of Onssa will be encouraged to follow the
example of Kalinga

The wwolvernent of Euromoney Institutional Investor and its
people will continue As the hospital comes on stream, field
tearms of the companys employees who have contributed
most by their efforts will wisit the Kalinga cimic to see the work
which they have made possible

Other projects

In addition to the project above, the group remains a keen
supporter of local and international chanties and regularly
prowvides sponsorships and funds to support these

The group continues to partigpate and develop s
involvement 1 the community For instance, 1t prowvides paid
graduate trainee programmes and internships with the
potential for long-term career opportumities within the group

Management continue to develop links with universities and
attend recruitment fairs during the year, induding the annual
fars at the School of Oniental and African Studies and the
annuatl Guardian Summer Recruitment Fair This enables 1t
to increase the number of graduate trainees employed The
group 15 also developing its international links by participating
i various overseas programmes, including a Chinese
government sponsored graduate internship programme which
waill run in the UK dunng 2008

6 Future developments in the business

An indication of the trading outlook for the group 1s given In
the Charman's Statement on page S In 2008 the directors will
build on the successful first-year integration and restructuring
of Metal Bulletin and drive the enlarged group to deliver the
further significant revenue and other synergies expected
Earlier this year the board approved a project to purchase the
freehold of and refurbish cne of 1ts existing London buildings
The refurbishment is expected to be complete next year and
will allow the physical integration of the UK-based Metal
Bulletin businesses into the existing property portfolio and
share office space in the same locality as the rest of the UK
group The New York-based Metal Bulletin businesses have
already moved into the group's exssting New York office space

The board will continue to review the portfolio of businesses,
disposing, dosing or restructuring any under-performing
businesses to allow the group to have the necessary resources
and skills to remain acquistive The group will continue
to invest in technology and new businesses, parucularly
electronic information products

7 Directors and their interests

The company’s Articles of Assocation give power to the board
to appoint directors from tme to tme In addition to the
statutory nghts of shareholders to remove a director by
ordinary resolution, the board may also remove a director
where 75% of the board give wntten notice to such director
The Articles of Association themselves may be amended by a
special resolution of the shareholders

The directors who served dunng the year are hsted on pages 18
and 19 The directors’ interests are given on pages 34 and 35
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JL Wilkinson was appotnted a director on March 21 2007 and,
according to the Aricdles of Assogiation, a director appointed
dunng the year must revre at the first avallable AGM and, being
eligible, offer thermselves for re-election Following best practice
under corporate governance and In accordance with the
company’s Articles of Association, all directors submit themselves
for re-election at least every three years Accordingly, PM Falion,
SM Brady, G Mueller, The Viscount Rothermere and JC Gonzalez
will retre at the forthcoming Annual General Meetng and,
being eligble, will offer themselves for re-electhon Also, as
required by best practice under corporate governance, all non-
executive directors who have served for more than three
three-year terms must submit themselves for re-election on an
annual basis Accordingly, JC Botts, CJF Sinclar, and JP Willams
will retre at the forthcoming Annual General Meetng and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election

in addion, as required by the Articles of Assocation,
Sir Patrick Sergeant, being over the age of 70, will retire at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, will
offer himself for re-efection Detalls of the interests of the
directors in the ordinary shares of the company and of options
held by the directors to subscribe for ordinary shares i the
company are set out 1n the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 25to 35

8 Captal structure and significant sharehcldings
Detalls of the company's share capital are given in note 22
The company’s share capital 1s dvded into ordinary shares of
0 25 pence each Each share entitles its holder 10 one vote at
shareholders' meetings and the right to receive one share of
the company's dividends

At November 13 2007, being the latest practical date before
approval of the accounts, notfication had been received of
the followang interests of 3% or more n the company’s
ordinary share capital
Number %
Dally Mail and General
Holdings Limited 62,999,885 612
BlackRock Mernll Lynch

Investment Manager 4,519,662 478
Old Mutual Asset
Manager (UK) 3,699,370 359
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Banque Internationale a Luxembourg SA has Issued
international depositary receipts in bearer form in respect of a
total of 956,800 shares (0 9%) registered n I1ts name

Details of the directors' entitlemnent to compensation for loss
of office following a takeover are given in the Directors'
Remuneration Report

9 EU Takeovers Directive
Pursuant to 5892 of the Compames Act 2006, which
implements the EU Takeovers Directive, the company s
requred to disclose certain additional information Such
disclosures, which are not covered elsewhere sn this Annual
Report, include the following

There are a number of agreements that take effect, alter or
terminate upon a change of control of the company following
a takeover bid, such as commercial contracts, bank loan
agreements, property lease arrangements, directors' service
agreements and employees' share plans None of these are
deemed to be significant in terms of their potential Impact on
the business of the group as a whole

10 Authority to purchase and allot own shares

The company’s authonty to purchase up to 10% of 1ts own
shares exprires at the conclusion of the company’s next Annual
General Meeting A resolution to renew this authonty for a
further penod wifl be put 1o shareholders at this meeting

At the Extraordinary General Meeting of the company
on September 20 2006, the shareholders authorised the
directors to allot shares up to an aggregate nominal
amount of £85,850 expinng at the conclusion of the Annuat
General Meeting to be held in 2008 A resolution to renew
this authonty for a further peniod will be put to shareholders
at this meeting

11 Political and chantable contnbutions

During the year the group raised chantable contnbutions of
£390,000 (2006 £205,000), ncluding £287,000 for the
Indian Eye Hospital in Kalinga (section 5 above) There were
no pohtical contributions in either year




12 Disabled employees

It 15 the group’s policy to give full and far consideration 1o
apphcations for employment from people who are disabled, to
continue  wherever possible the employment of and to
arrange appropnate trarung for, employees who become
disabled, and to prowide opportuniies for the career
development, traning and promotion of disabled empioyees

13 Employee invelvement and training

The group believes 1t 1s important to prowide skills and
management training for its employees around the world It
continues to develop these programmes and tries to ensure
that as many employees as possible benefit from internal and
external training The group 15 continually developing and
expanding the training pregrammes prowided

The group recognizes the importance of good communication
in refationships with its staff This 1s pursued i a number of
ways ncluding traming and regular meetings between
management and staff, which seek to achieve common
awareness on the part of all employees of the financial and
economic arcumstances affecting the group’s performance
Many employees parucipate directly in the success of the
business through involvement in the group’s profit shanng
schemes, the Capital Appreciation Plan and in the savings
related share option scheme

14 Supplier payment policy

Each Euromoney lnstitutional Investor business agrees
payment terms with its suppliers on an indmdual basis and it
15 group policy to make payments in accordance with these
terms The group had 76 days of purchases in creditors at
September 30 2007 {2006 62 days)

15 Annual General Meeting
The company’s Annual General Meetng will be held on
January 30 2008

16 Auditors

A resolution to re-appoint Deloitte & touche LLP as the
company's auditor 15 expected to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting

17 Disclosure of information to auditors
In the case of each of the persons who 15 a director of the
company at November 14 2007

® so far as each of the directors 15 aware, there 15 no
relevant audit information (as defined in the Compantes
Act 1985) of which the company's auditors are unaware,
and

® each of the directors has taken all the steps that hefshe
ought to have taken as a director to make himself/herself
aware of any relevant audit information (as defined) and
to establish that the company's auditors are aware of
the information

This confirmation 15 given and should be interpreted in
accordance wath the prowsions of s234ZA of the Companies
Act 1985

By order of the board

C)N .

Colin Jones
Company Secretary
November 14 2007

IR aNCI IR TAt AN 1522 00 JRame o o]




18

Directors and Advisors

Executive Directors

Chairman

Mr PM Fallon {aged 61) 5 charman He joined the
company n 1974 and was appointed an executive
director in October 1975 He was appointed managing
director in 1985, chief executive in 1988 and charrman in
1992 He s chairman of the nominations committee  He
15 also an executwe director of Daly Mail and General
Trust plc and a member of the board of the Tnnity
College Dubhn Foundation

Managing Director

Mr PR Ensor (aged 59) 1s the managing director He
joned the company in 1976 and was appointed an
executive director In 1983 He was appointed managing
director in 1992 and 1s a member of the nominations
committee He s also a director of Internet Secunties, Inc
and BCA Publications Limited

Mr NF Osborn (aged 58} joined the company in 1983
and was appointed an executive director in February
1988 He is the publisher of Ewromoney He 15 also a
director of Internet Securivies, Inc, and of OAQ RBC
Information Systems, a Russian public company

Mr DC Cohen (aged 49) joined the company In 1984
and was appointed an executive director in September
1989 He 15 manageng director of the training division

Mr CR Brown (aged 53) joined the company in 1982 and
was appointed an executive director in September 1989
He 15 based in the United States and 5 president of
Institutional Investor, Inc

Mr CR Jones (aged 47} 15 the finance director  He joined
the company 1n July 1996 and was appointed finance
director In November 1996 He 15 also the company
secretary and a director of Institutional Investor, Inc,
Information Management Network, Inc, Internet
Secunities, Inc and BCA Publications Limited

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

Mr SM Brady (aged 42} joined the company in 1988 and
was appointed an executive director in May 1999 He 1s
managing director of Euromoney

Mr RT Lamont {aged 60) joined Institutional investor, Inc
In 1976 and was appointed an executive director in May
1998 He 15 editor of Institutional Investor's newsletter
dwision and a director of Institutional Investor, Inc

Ms D Alfano {aged 51) joined Institutional Investor, Inc
in 1984 and was appointed an executive director in July
2000 She 1s managing director of Institutional Investor’s
conference dvision and a director of Institutional
Investor, Inc

Mr G Mueller {aged 41) 15 charman of Internet
Secunities, tnc {ISN, which he founded in 1994
Euromoney acquired 151 in 1999, at which point Mr
Mueller joined the company He was appointed an
executive director in July 2000 He I1s also chairman and
CEO of Institutional Investor and a director and chairman
of Information Management Network, Inc

Mr M) Carroll {aged 50) joined Institutional Investor, Inc
N 1994 and was appointed an executive director in May
2002 He 1s the edtor of Instritutional investor and a
director of institutional Investor, Inc

Mr CHC Fordham (aged 47) joined the company in 2000
and was appointed an executive director in July 2003 He
15 the director responsible for acquisitions and disposals
as well as some of the company's publishing businesses,
including the Legal Media Group, HedgeFund
Inteligence, Total Denvatives and the Metals, Minerals &
Mening division of Meta! Bulletin

Ms JL Wilkinson {aged 42) joined the company in 2000
and was appointed an executive director in March 2007
She 1s director of marketing for the group, and a director
of Adhesion SA, the French events business




Non-executive Directors

t+ The Viscount Rothermere {(aged 39) was apponted
a non-executive director in September 1998 and 15 a
member of the remuneration and nominations
committees He 15 charman of Dally Mal and General
Trust ple

1§ Sir Patnick Sergeant {aged 83) 15 a non-executwe
director and president He founded the company in 1969
and was managing director until 1985 when he became
chairman He retired as chairman in September 1992
when he was appointed president and non-executive
director He 5 a member of the audit and norminations
committees

t+ Mr OF Sinclair (aged 59) was appointed a non-
executive director In November 1985 and 15 a member of
the remuneration and nominatons committees He 1s
chief executive of Dally Mail and General Trust plc and a
non-executive director of SVG Capital plc

§ WMr JP Wilhams {aged 54) was appointed a non-
executive director 1n June 1991 and 1s a member of the
audit comrmittee He 1s finance diector of Daily Mail and
General Trust plc and a non-executive director of GCap
Media plc

13§ Mr JC Botts {(aged 66) was appointed a non-executive
director in Decernber 1992 and is charman of the audit
and remuneration committees and a member of the
nominations committee  He is charman of Botts &
Company Limited, non-executve charrman of United
Business Medra Plc and a non-execuuve director of
Convera Corporation, a USHisted search technology
company

§ Mr JC Gonzalez {aged 62) was apponted & non-
executive director iIn November 2004 He 1s chairman and
chief executive of Amencan Onent Capual Partners
Holdings Limited, an investment and financiat advisory
services firm based in Hong Kong covenng the Asta
Pacific region He 1s also a director of a number of
publicly listed comparues in the Philippines

member of the remuneraton committee
member of the nominations committee
member of the audrt committee

wn

President
Sir Patnick Sergeant

Comtpany Secretary
CR Jones
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Auditors
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Corporate Governance

The Financial Reporting Counal's Combined Code on
corparate governance 1s part of the Listing Rules of the
Finanaal Sernices Authornty The paragraphs below and in the
Directors' Rermuneration Report on pages 25 to 35 set out how
the company has applied the pnnaples lard down by the Code

Dunng 2007, JL Wilkinson was appointed an executive
director and JC Gongzalez, an independent non-executive
director, was appointed as @ member of the audit commttee

The company continues substantially to comply wath the
Code, save for the exceptions disclosed in the directors’
comphance statement on page 24

Directors

The board and its role

Details of directors who served dunng the year are set out on
pages 18 and 19 The board compnses the chairman (PM Fallon),
managing director (PR Ensor), 11 other executive directors and
six non-executive directors Two of the six non-executive direciors
are independent, one 1s the founder and ex-chairman of the
company, and the other three are also directors of Daily Mail and
General Trust plc, an intermediate parent company There are
clear dvisions of responsibility within the board such that no one
mndmdual has unfettered powers of deasion The board
although large does not consider itself to be unwieldy and
believes it 1s benefioal to have representatives from all key areas
of the business at board meetings There 1s a procedure for all
directors in the furtherance of ther duties to take independent
piofessional adwice, at the company’s expense They also have
access to the advice and services of the company secretary All
drrectors submit themseives for re-election at least once every
three years Newly appointed directors are submitted for electon
at the first available opportunity after therr appointment

The board meets every two months and there 1s frequent
contact between meetings Board meetngs take place in
London, New York, Montreal and Hong Kong, and in other
locations where the group has operations The board has
delegated specific aspects of the group’s affars to standing
committees, each of which operates within defined terms of
reference Detals of these are set out below However, to
ensure Its overall control of the group's affairs, the board has
reserved certain matters to itself for decision Board meetings
are held to set and monitor strategy, 1dentify, evaluate and
manage matenal risks, to review trading performance, ensure
adequate funding, examine major acquisiion possibiliies and
approve reporis to shareholders Procedures are established to
ensure that appropnate information 1s communicated to the
board in a tumely manner to enable it to fulfil its duties

Executive committee
Charred by the company's chairman, the executive committee
also comprises the divisional directors of the group’s main

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

businesses, together with the managmng director and finance
director The committee 15 responsible for the approval of
acquisitions, divestments, capital expenditure and contractual
comrmitments below the level that the board has reserved to
itself for decision, and for certain operational, administrative
and other routine matters The committee also regularly
reviews and reports to the board on the performance of the
group’s businesses At least 10 meetings are held each year
and other senior executives frequently attend by inwitation

Nominations committee

The nominations commuttee s responsible for proposing
candidates for appointment to the board having regard to the
balance of skills and structure of the board and ensuning the
appointees have sufficent time available to devote to the role
The committee meets when required and comprises PM Fallon
{chairman of the nominations committee), PR Ensor and four
non-executive directors, Sir Patrick Sergeant, The Viscount
Rothermere, CIF Sinclair, and JC Botts {independent) The
committee's terms of reference are available on the company's
web site

The nommations comrmittee met dunng the year to nominate,
for board approval, IL Wilkinson as an executive director and
JC Gonzalez as a member of the audit committee They also
met to recommend to the board the re-election of directors
retinng by rotation this year as set out in the Directors' Report

Remuneration committee

The remuneration committee meets twice a year and additionally
as required It 1s responsible for deterrining the contract terms,
remuneration and other benefits for executive directors, induding
performance related profit share schemes The committee also
recommends and monitors the level of remuneration for senior
management and for the rest of the group The composition of
the committee, details of directors’ remuneration and interests in
share opuons, together with information on directors’ service
contracts, are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
pages 25 to 35 The commuttee’s terms of reference are availlable
on the company's web site

Audit committee

Details of the members and role of the audit committee are
set out on page 23 On November 15 2006, JC Gonzalez
(independent non-executive director) was appointed a
member of the committee The commttee's terms of
reference are avallable on the company's web site

Tax and treasury committee
Details of the members and role of the tax and treasury
commuttee are set out in the Directors' Report on page 11

Non-executive directors
The non-executive directors bring both independent iews and
the views of the company’s major shareholder to the board




The non-executive directors, whose biographies can be found
on page 19 of the accounts, are The Viscount Rothermere,
Sir Patrick Sergeant, CJF Sindarr, JP Willams, JC Botts and
JC Gonzalez At least once a year the company's charman
meets the non-executive directors without the executive
directors being present

The board considers JC Botts and JC Gonzalez 1o be
independent non-executive directors Although JC Botts has
been on the board for more than the recommended term of
nine years under the Code, the board believes that his length
of service enhances his role as an independent direcior
JC Botts also helds options to subscribe for common stock in
Internet Secunties, Inc a subsidiary of the company However,
the number of options held by JC Botts 1s not matenal to him
or 10 the company

The Viscount Rothermere has a significant shareholding 1n the
company through his beneficial holding 1n Daly Mail and
General Trust plc and because of this he 15 not considered
independent

Sir Patnck Sergeant has a significant shareholding in the
company and 1n addition has served on the board in various

Board Executive
meetmgs committee
Number of meetings held during year 6 10
Executive directors
PM Fallon = Chairman 6 10
PR Ensor — Managing Director 6 8
NF Osborn 6 10
DC Cohen [ 10
CR Brown ) 10
CR Jones - Finance Director ] 10
RT Lamont 5 9
SM Brady 5 7
D Alfano 6 9
G Mueller 6 10
M) Carroll 5 9
CHC Fordham [ 9
JL Wilkinson* 3 9
Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere 2 -
Sir Patrick Sergeant 4 -
CJF Sinclar [ -
JP Willams 6 -
IC Botts 4 -
IC Gonzalez* 3 -

* Appainted a director en March 21 2007
t Appointed to audit committee on Novemnber 15 2006

roles since founding the company in 1969 and has been a
non-executive director since 1992 and hence, under the Code,
15 not considered independent

The Viscount Rothermere, CJF Sinclarr, and JP Wilhams are also
executive directors of Daily Mail and General Trust plc, an
intermediate parent company However, the company 1s run as
a separate, distinct and decentralised subsidiary of Daily Mail
and General Trust plc and these directors have no involvernent
In the day-to-day management of the company They bnng
valuable expenence and adwice 1o the company but the board
does not believe these non-executive directors are able to
exert undue influence on decsions taken by the board, nor
does 1t consider their independence to be impaired by theirr
positions with Daily Mail and General Trust plc However, therr
refationship wath Dally Mail and General Trust plc means they
do not meet the Code's definibion of independence

Board and committee meetings

Board and committee meetings are arranged well in advance of
the meeung date and papers covening the points to be
discussed are distnbuted to 1ts members in advance of the
meetings The following table sets out the number of board and
committee meetings attended by the directors duning 2007

Remuneration Nominations Audit  Tax & treasury
committee commitiee committee committee
2 3 3 2

- - 0

- - 2

- - - 2

2 3 - -

- 0 3 -

2 3 - -

- - 3 2

2 3 3 -

- - 2 —
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Corporate Governance continued

Board and committee effectiveness

Dunng the year the board, through its chairman, assessed
its performance and that of 1ts committees The chairman
distrbuted a detailed questicnnaire to each of the board
members and together with personal interviews evaluated the
strengths and weaknesses of the board and its members In
addition, each of the main committees completed a detailed
questionnaire encompassing key areas within therr mandates
The results of the assessment were presented and discussed at
a board meeting and 1t was concluded that the board and its
committees had been effective throughout the year

Communication with shareholders

The company's chairman, together with the board,
encourages regular dislogue with shareholders Meetings are
held, both in the US and UK, to discuss annual and interrm
results and highlight sigrificant acquisitions or disposals, or at
the request of nstitutional shareholders Private shareholders
are encouraged to partiqpate in the annual general meeting
In lne with best practice all shareholders have at least
20 working days notice of the annual general meeting at
which the executive directors, non-executive directors and
committee chairs are avallable for questioning

internal control and nsk management

The board 1s responsible for the group’s system of internal control
and for reviewing its effectiveness Such a system 15 designed to
manage rather than elminate the nsk of falure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against matenal misstatement or loss

in accordance with the guidance published by the Internal
Control Working Party of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales {the Turnbu!l Report), the
board has implemented a continuing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the material nsks faced by the group

The board has reviewed the effecuveness of the group’s
systemn of internal control and has taken account of matenal
developments which have taken place since September 30
2006 It has considered the major business and finanaal nisks,
the control environment and the results of internal audit
Steps have been taken to embed internal control and nisk
management further into the operations of the group and to
deal with areas of improvement which have come to
management’s and the board’s attention

Key procedures which the directors have established with a
view to providing effective internal control, and which have
been in place throughout the year, are as follows

The board of directors

® the board normally meets sx times a year 1o consider
group strategy, nsk management, finanaal performance,
acguisiions, business development and management issues,

@ the board has overall responsibility for the group and
there 15 a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
for decision by the board,

® each executive director has been given responsibility for
speafic aspects of the group’s affarrs,
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@® the board dmwvdes the groups key nisks into six broad
categonies and reviews and assesses each of these at least
annually,

® the board seeks assurance that effective control 1s being
mamtained through regular reports from business group
management, the audit committee and varnous
independent monitoring functions, and

@ the board approves the annual forecast after
performing a review of key nsk factors Performance
1s mortored regularly by way of vanances and key
performance ndicators to enable relevant action to
be taken and forecasts are updated each quarter
The board considers longerterm financial projectons
as part of its regular discussions on the group's
strategy

Quality, integrity of personnel and whistle

blowing arrangements

The integrity and competence of personnel 1s ensured
through high recruitment standards and a commutment
to management and business skills traning High-quality
personnel are an essential part of the control environment and
the high ethical standards expected are communtcated by
management and through the employee handbook which 1s
provided 1o all employees The employee handbook also sets
out the procedures available to staff to raise, in confidence,
possible improprieties 1n matters of financial reporting or
other matters

Social responsibility

The group 1s keen to maintain a high levet of soqal
responsibiity and has procedures embedded in 1ts internal
systems and controls to ensure 1ts socal standards are
monitored regularly and are not breached The group
supports and encourages employees who become involved
in social projects and examples of these are given In the
Drrectors’ Report

Enwvironmental responsibiity

The group does not operate directly in industnes where there
1s the potential for serious industrial pollution It does not print
products in-house or have any investments in printing works
1 takes 1ts environmental responsibility seriously and complies
with all relevant environmental laws and regulations n each
country in which 1t operates Wherever economically feasible,
account 15 taken of environmental issues when placng
contracts with supphers of goods and services and these
suppliers are regularly rewewed and monitored For instance,
the group’s two biggest print contracts are outsourced to
companies who have enwironment management systems
comphiant to the 1SO 14001 standard The paper used for the
group’s publications 15 produced from pulp obtained from
sustatnable forests, manufactured under stnict, monitored and
accountable enwvironmental standards The group I1s not a
heavy user of energy, however, 1t does manage Its energy
requirements sensibly using low-energy office equipment
where possible and using a common sense approach such as
switching off equipment, ar-condiioning, heating and iights
when not required




Health and safety

The group 1s commutted 1o the health and safety of its employees
and communities in which it operates The group complies with
all local health and safety regulations and makes use of external
health and safety adwsors where appropnate The UK businesses
benefit from a monthly assessment of the working ervronrment
by expenenced assessors and regular training of all existng and
new UK employees in health and safety matters

Investment appraisal

The managing director, finance director and business group
managers consider proposals for acquisiions and new
businesses Proposals beyond specfied hmits are put to
the board for approval and are subject to due diligence by
the group’s finance team and, if necessary, independent
adwisers Capital expenditure 15 regulated by strict authonzation
controls For capital expenditure above specafied levels, detaled
witten proposals must be submitted to the board and reviews
are carned out to monitor progress aganst budget

Accounting and computer systems controls

and procedures

Accounting controls and procedures are regularly reviewed
and communicated throughout the group Particular attention
1s paid to authonisation levels and segregation of duties The
group’s tax, financing and foregn exchange posttions are
overseen by the tax and treasury committee, which meets at
least twice a year Controls and procedures over the secunity of
data and disaster recovery are periodically reviewed and are
subject to internal audit

Internal audit

The group has an internal audit funcuion which 1s managed by
Daily Mail and General Trust Pic's internal audit department,
working closely with the company's finance director Internal
audit draws on the services of the group's central finance team
to assist in completing the audit assignments Internal audit
aims to provde an independent assessment as to whether
effective systems and controls are in place and being operated
to manage significant operating and financial nsks h also
ams to support management by providing cost effective
recommendations to mitigate nsk and control weaknesses
identified dunng the audit process, as well as provide nsight
into where cost efficences and monetary gains might be made
by improving the operations of the business Businesses and
central departments are selected for an internal audit visit on a
nsk-focused basis, taking account of the nsks identified as part
of the nsk management process, the nsk and matenality of
each the group’s businesses, the scope and findings of external
audit work, and the departments and businesses reviewed
previously and the findings from these rewews This approach
ensures that the internal audnt focus is placed on the higher nsk
areas of the group, while ensuring an appropnate breadth
of coverage DMGT's internal audit reports 1ts findings to
management and to the audit committee

Accountability and audit

Audit committee

The audit committee comprises four non-executive directors
JC Botts {chairman), Sir Patnick Sergeant, JP Williams and, from

November 15 2006, JC Gonzalez and meets three times each
financiat year The commuttee 15 responsible for reviewing the
intenm report, the annual report and accounts and other
related formal statements before theirr submission to the
board, and rewewing and overseeing controls necessary o
ensure the integrity of the finanaal nformation reported to
the shareholders The audit committee adwises the board
on the appointment of external auditors and on their
remuneration, both for audit and non-audit work It has
set and appled a formal policy, which focuses on the
effectveness, independence and cobjectmty of the external
audi, the type of non-audit work permissible and a diminimus
tevel of fees acceptable Any non-audit work performed
outside this remit 1s assessed and where appropriate approved
by the commuittee The committee discusses the nature, scope
and findings of the audit with the externa! auditors and
considers and determines relevant action in respect of any
control 1ssues raised by the extermal auditors The audit
commuttee 15 also responsible for momitoring and assessing the
effectiveness of internal audit, and reviews the internal audit
programme and receves perodic reports on its findings It
reviews the whistle blowang arrangements available to staff
The audit committee's terms of reference are available on the
company's website

Going concern basis

After making enquines, the directers have formed a
Judgement, at the time of approving the financial statements,
that there 15 a reasonable expectation that the group has
adequate resources to continue In operational existence for
the foreseeable future For this reason the directors continue
to adopt the going concern basis 1 preparing the financial
statements

Statement of directors’ responsibilities n respect

of the accounts

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual report
and the financial statements The directors have chosen
to prepare accounts {or the group in accordance with
International Financral Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union, the Companies Act 1985 and Article
4 of the 1AS Regulatton, and for the company in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(Uruted Kingdom Accounting Standards applicable law}

In the case of UK GAAP accounts, the directors are required
to prepare finangal statements for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
and of the profit or loss of the company for that penod
In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to

@ select suitable accountung pohicies and apply them
consistently,

® rmake judgemenis and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent,

@ state whether applicable UK accounting standards have
been followed, and

@® prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis
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Corporate Governance continued

ln the case of IFRS accounts Intermational Accounting
Standard 1 requires that fimancial statements present faily for
each financial year the company's financial posiion financial
performance and cash flows This requires the faithful
representation of the effects of transactions other events and
condittons in accordance with the definitions and recognition
¢niteria for assets, liabilities, tncome and expenses set out In
the International Accounting Standards Board's ‘Framework
for the preparation and Presentation of Finanaal Statements’
In wrtually all arcumstances a far presentation will be
achieved by compliance with alt apphcable IFRSs  Directors are
also required to

@ properly select and apply accounting policies,

o present informaton including accounting policies, m a
manner that prowvides relevant reliable, comparable and
understandable information, and

® provide additional disdosures when compliance with the
speaific requirements 1n IFRSs 1s insufficient {o enable
users to understand the impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on the entity's financial
position and financiai performance

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasenable accuracy at any tme
the financial pesition of the company, for safeguarding the
assets, for taking reasonable steps for the preventon and
detection of fraud and other iregulariies and for the
preparation of a directors’ report and directors' remuneration
report which comply with the requirements of the Companies
Act 1985

The directors are responsible for the masntenance and integnty
of the corporate and financal information ncluded on
the company’s website  Legqislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and dissemmation of financial
statements differs from leguslation 1n other junisdichions

The directors confium that these requiremnents have been
sansfied

Statement by the directors on comphance with

the Combined Code

The Listing Rules require the board to report on compliance
throughout the accounting year with the 49 provisions of the
luly 2003 Financial Reporting Councii's Combined Code on
Corperate Governance issued by the Financial Services

Authonty Save for the exceptions outhned below, the
group has comphed throughout the financial year ended
September 30 2007 with the provisians set out in Section 1 of
the Combined Code

Prowision A 3 2 states that half the board, excluding the
chairman, should be compnsed of non-executve directors
deterrmined by the board to be mdependent The board
comprises 19 directors of whom two are considered to be
independent non-executive directors

Contrary to provision A3 3, the board has not «dentified a
senior independent non-executive director as the directors are
of the opimien that all marters relaing to the effective
governance of the group must be deait with by the board as
a whole

Provision A4 1 requires that the majonty of the normimations
commuttee should be compnsed of independent non-
executive directors Although the committee consists of four
non-executive and two executive directors, only one of the
non-executive directors can be considered independent under
the Combined Code

Provision A 44 states that the terms and conditions of
appomtment of non-executive directors should be avalable
for inspecton As explained in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report, the non-executive directors do not have service
contracts

Provisions B 2 1 and € 3 1 require the remuneratron and awdst
committees to compnse entrely of independent non-executive
directors The remuneration committee is compnised of three
non-executive directors, none of whom can be considered
independent under the Combined Code The audit committee
15 compnsed of four non-executive directors, cniy one of which
considered Andependent under the Combined Code

alf of fHe boar

a llon
CHaitfnan
Novemnber 14 2007
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

This remuneration report sets out the group's policy and structure for the remuneration of executive and non-executive directors
together with details of directors' remuneration packages and serice contracts The report has been prepared in accordance with
the Directors' Remuneration Report Regulations 2002 and shareholders will be invited to approve this report at the Annual General
Meeting on January 30 2008

The remuneration committee

The remuneration commitiee 1s chared by JC Botts Its other members are The Viscount Rothermere and CIF Sindaw All members
of the commuttee are non-executive directors of the company The Viscount Rothermere and CJF Sinclair are also directors of Daily
Mail and General Trust plc but have no personal financial interests in the company {other than as shareholders), and no day-to-
day involverent in running the business The executive charrman normally attends meetings of the remuneration committee, but
IS not present at any discussion concerning his own remuneration For the year under review, the committee also sought advice
and inforration from the company's managing dwector and finance director The committee's terms of reference permit its
members to obtain professional external advice on any matter, at the company's expense, although none did so 1n 2007 The
group 1tself can take external advice and information from many sources in preparing proposals for the remuneration committee,
but no matenal assistance from a single source was received in relation to remuneration deasions for 2007

Remuneration policy

The group believes in aligning the interests of management with those of shareholders The two consistent objectives In its
remuneration policy since the company’s inception In 1969 have been the maximization of earrings per share and the creation of
shareholder value

The first objective Is achieved through a comprehensive profit sharing scheme that links the pay of executive directors and key
managers to the profits and growth in profits of the group or relevant parts of the group This schemae 1s completely vaniable with
no guaranteed floor and no ceilling

To support the implementation of the policy of profit sharing, the group 15 dvded into a number of profit centres The manager
of each profit centre 1s paid a profit share related to the profit centre’s profits and profit growth Each profit centre 1s part of a
larger business group Each business group manager has an incentive based on the business group’s profits and profit growth
Profit sharing encourages directors and managers to grow their businesses, to launch new ventures and to search for acquisitions
that would fit well with therr businesses

All executives on profit shares are aware that if profits nse, so does their pay Similarly if profits fall, so do their profit shares The
profit shares of executive directors and senior managers make up much of therr total pay For example, of the total remuneration
of the 13 executive directors who served in the year, 86% was denved from profit shares

The creation of shareholder value 15 also encouraged through an executive share option scheme and, from October 2003, the
Caprtal Appreciation Plan (CAP) The current executive share opuion scheme was approved by shareholders in January 1996 The
performance critena under which options granted under this scheme may be exercised are set out on page 27 This scheme expired
and closed 10 2006, but no share options have been issued under it since February 2004 although options previously granted may
be exerased before vanous dates to February 2014 The CAP was approved by shareholders in February 2005, and 1s a highly
geared performance-based share option scheme which not only directly rewards growth in profits of each executive’s businesses
but also links more robustly equity reward with the delivery of economic shareholder value The CAP profit target was achieved
this year, a year ahead of expectations A more detailed explanation of the CAP 15 given on page 27

The direciors believe that these profit sharing and share opuion arrangements are responsible for much of the company’s success
since 1969 These arrangements serve shareholders by ahigning the interests of the directors and managers with those of
shareholders and are considered an important dniver of the company's growth strategy

The remuneration of the non-executive directors 1s determined by the board

Remuneration structure

Executive directors

It 1s the group’s policy to construct executive remuneration packages such that a significant part of a director's compensation 15
based on the growth n the group's profits contnbuted by that director  The details of the remuneration packages of individual
directors are set out below

Basic salary and benefits

The basic salary and benefits are generally not the most sigrificant part of a director's overall compensation package Each
executive director receves a salary which 1s rewewed annually by the committee Certamn non-cash benefits are also provided
including private health care, and life assurance through the membership of one of the pension schemes
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Remuneration structure continued

Pension schemes

Each UK-based director is entitled to participate in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme (@ defined benefit scheme, dlosed 1o new
directors), the Euromoney Pension Plan (a money purchase plan} or their own private pension scheme Directors based overseas
are entitled to partiapate in the pension scheme arrangerents applicable to the country where they work Currently, NF Osborn,
CR Brown, RT Lamont, D Alfano, G Mueller and M) Carroll partictpate in the group's US 401(k) plan Details of pension scheme
contributions can be found on page 31 of this report There are no other post-retirement benefits

Profit share scheme

The group believes in aligning the economic interests of management with those of shareholders and achieves this through a
comprehensive profit shanng scheme that inks the pay of each executive director to the profits and growth in profits of the
businesses that the executive director manages

The executive directors who manage business divisions are set profit thresholds for the businesses for which they are responsible
The profit thresholds are set at the time the director takes on responsibility for the businesses concerned, usually based on the
profits of the previous 12 months, and are adjusted If such responsibibies change The normal profit share arrangement pays 1%
of profits from zero up to a threshold and then 5% of profits achieved in excess of this threshold Some of the directors have
schemes which have been in place for a number of years and pay profit shares at shghtly higher rates or which are subject to
additional thresholds

The profit shares of the chairman and managing director are based on an adjusted pre-tax post-minonty profits of the group, thereby
matching their profit share with the pre-tax return the group generates for its shareholders The chairman is entitled to 5 62%
(2006 6 49%) of an adjusted pre-tax profit The managing director 1s entitled to 3 32% (2006 3 84%) of an adjusted pre-tax profit
up to a threshold of £30,450,138 and an additional 1 25% (2006 1 44%;) of adjusted pre-tax profits in excess of this threshold

The finance director receives a profit share inked to a pre-tax adjusted earnings per share of the group (EPS} A fixed sum 15 payable
for every percentage point the EPS 1s above 11 0Cp and an additional fixed sum 15 payable for every percentage pont that EPS 15
above 20 00p

CHC Fordham, in addition to tus profit share, has a second incentive nked to the performance of acquisitions

JL Wilkinson, who 1s responsible for alt the group’s marketing activities, receives an incentive based on the growth in the group's
subscriptton and delegate revenues

All of the profit share schemes are completely vanable with no guaranteed floor and no ceiling and are designed to be the most
significant part of the executive director’s remuneration package Each director's profit share scheme 1s subject to remuneration

committee approval, and can be rewised at any time If the director's responsibilities are changed

The table below shows the 2007 percentage spht of the fixed and vanable elements of each director's remuneration package

Fixed Variable

Salary & Profit

Executive directors benefits share
PM Fallon 5% 95%
PR Ensor 6% 94%
NF Osborn 22% 78%
DC Cohen 17% 83%
CR Brown 27% 73%
CR Jones 32% 68%
RT Lamont 62% 38%
SM Brady 46% 54%
D Alfano 21% 79%
G Mueller 17% 83%
M) Carroll 57% 43%
CHC Fordham 20% 80%
JL Wilkinson* 38% 62%
Total 14% 86%

*appointed as a director on April 3 2007
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Remuneration structure continued

SAYE scheme

The group operates an all employee save as you earn scheme in which those directors employed in the UK are eligible to paruapate
Partapants save a fixed monthly amount of up to £250 for three years and are then able to buy shares i the company at a price set
at a 20% discount to the market value at the start of the savings penod In hine wath market practice, no performance condrtons attach
to options granted under this plan The executive directors who are currently participating n this scheme are PM Fallen, PR Ensor,
NF Osborn, CR Jones, SM Brady and CHC Fordham, details of which can be found on pages 32 and 33 of this report

Share option schemes
The directors consider that share option schemes are an important part of overall compensation and ahgn the interests of directors
and employees with those of shareholders

Capital Appreciation Plan (CAP)

The CAP was approved by shareholders on February 1 2005 and replaced the 1996 executive share option scheme Each CAP award
comprises an option 1o subscnbe for ordinary shares of 0 25p each 1n the company for an exercise price of ¢ 25p per ordinary share
In accordance with the terms of CAP, no consideratron was paid for the grant of the awards The awards vest in three equal tranches
The first tranche of awards become exerasable on satisfaction of a pnimary performance condition and lapse to the extent unexerased
on September 30 2014 The two future tranches of awards become exercisable one year and two years, respectively, following the
finanoal year \n which the pnmary performance target was achieved The second and third tranches only vest on satisfaction of the
pnmary and a secondary performance condition The scheme 1s potentially available to all employees

The primary performance conditon, broadly, requires that the company achieve pre-tax profits {before goodwill amortisation
or impairment, exceptional itemns and before the cost of the CAP) of £57 millon by no later than the finanaal year ending
September 30 2008 and remain at at least this level for the future vesting periods of the following two tranches This target was
increased from £50 million following the acquisition of Metal Bulletin The secondary performance condition requires that the
profits of the respective participants' businesses in the subsequent two vesting periods remain at at least 75% of that achieved
In the year the pnmary performance condition was met

The CAP profit target was achieved in financial year 2007 and the option pool (of a maximum of 7 5 miliion shares) will be
allocated between the holders of outstanding awards by reference to their contnbution to the achieverent of the primary
performance condition, subject to conditions that no individual may have an option over more than 10% of the option pool One
third of the awards will vest immediately, with the other two thirds vesting In equal tranches in the following two years, but only
if the primary and secondary performance conditions are met Otherwise vesting 15 deferred until both the profit target of
£57 million achieved in 2007 1s achieved again, and the profits of the indwidual participants businesses are at least 75% of that
achieved in 2007 but no later than by reference to the year ending September 30 2012

Thus the CAP 15 designed so that profit growth must be sustained If awards are to vest in full Accordingly, and subject as described
above, the award to each director compnses an option to subscribe for up to 750,000 shares  The actual value of the CAP award
to each director will depend on the relative profit contrbution of histher businesses to the achuevement of the performance
condition The provisional number of options anticipated to be received by the directors for the first tranche 15 given in the directors
share option table on pages 32 and 33

The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used to calculate its value are set out In note 23

1996 executive share option scheme

All executive directors have options from a previous executive share option scheme approved by shareholders in 1996 in which
potentially all employees could receve options This scheme expired in 2006 and no share options have been issued under this
scheme since February 2004 although options granted may be exercised before varous dates to February 2014 Options were
issued to a selection of indmdua! employees, Including directors, on a ment basis These options are exercisable at least three years
after therr grant and are subject to certain performance conditions For options that expired on February 7 2007, and those
expiring on January 29 2009, February 11 2009, June 25 2009 and January 5 2010 the performance test set by the remuneration
committee requires the growth in the company's earnings per share for the three consecutive financial years commencing from
the year of grant to exceed the growth in the retail prices index by an average of 4% a year For the optons expiring on June 25
2009 only, there 15 an additional performance conditon which requires that Internet Secunities, Inc must have achieved an
operating profit for three consecutive months and a cumulative operating profit over a perod of six months For all other options
expming after 2005, the performance test set by the remuneration committee requires that the Total Shareholder Return (TSR) of
the company exceeds that of the average TSR for the FTSE 250 index for the same pericd For the performance condition 1o be
satisfied, the TSR of the company must exceed that of the FTSE 250 on a cumulative basis, measured from the date of grant of
the option, in any four out of six consecutive months starting 30 months after the option grant date

The fair value per option granted and the assumptions used to calculate 1ts value are set out i note 23
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Remuneration structure continued

Internet Securities, Inc option scheme

G Mueller, NF Osborn and JC Botts are also participants in the Internet Secunities, Inc option scherne There are no perfermance
conditions attached to these options Therr options, all of which are fully vested and exercisable, are set out on page 34 The
market price at the date of exercise 1s determined by an independent finanaal valuatuon of Internet Secunties, Inc

Details of directors' share options can be found on pages 32 to 34

Put options

G Mueller has a put option whereby he 1s able to sell his 5% holding of shares in Internet Secunities, Inc {I51), a subsidiary of the
group, to Euromoney Instituttonal Investor PLC at a fair market value as determined by an independent external valuation of the
company G Mueller retains the rights granted under this put option should his employment contract terminate In addition
G Mueller has an IPO registration right over ISI that he may exercise every six months subject to the agreement of the other
shareholders If an agreement cannot be reached the company has the nght to purchase his shares at a fair market value as
determined by the average valuation from three investment banks If G Mueller has not exercised his option by 2011 the company
has the nght to purchase his shares at a pre-determined premium 1o an independent external valuation of the company

Non-executive directors

The remuneration of the non-executive directors 1s determined by the chairman and executive board with the aid of external
professional advice If necessary Non-executive directors receive a fee and are re-imbursed for expenses incurred in attending
meetings They do not receive any performance related bonuses, pension provisions, share options or other forms of benefits apart
from Sir Patnck Sergeant, who recewes an expense allowance, and !C Botts who 15 a participant tn the Internet Secunties, Inc
option scheme

Total shareholder return (TSR)

Shown below 1s the group's TSR for the five years to September 30 2007 compared to the TSR achieved by the FTSE 250 index
over the same perniod This index has been presented as 1t compnises the comparator group for the performance conditions
attached to the share option scheme referred to above The TSR calculations assume the re-investrnent of dividends

Service contracts

The group's policy 15 normally 1o employ executive directors on twelve month-rolling service contracts The remuneration
committee seeks to minimise termination payments and believes these should be restricted to the value of remuneration for the
notice pertod With the exception of Sir Patrick Sergeant, none of the non-executive directors has a service contract All executive
service contracts are reviewed from tme to time and updated where necessary A serice contract terminates automatically on the
director reaching his/her respective retirement age

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC




Service contracts continued

Date of
Executive service
directors contract
PM Fallon Jun 2 1986
PR Ensor Jan 13 1993
NF Osborn Jan 4 1991
DC Cohen Nov 2 1992
CR Brown De¢ 31 1991
CR Jones Aug 27 1997
RT Lamont  Jan & 2000
SM Brady feb 17 2000
[ Alfano Jan 10 2001
G Mueller Jan 25 1999
M) Carroll Mar 18 1999

CHC Fordham Sep 2t 2004

L Wilkinson  July 26 2000

Non executive director
Sir Patnck Jan 10 1993
Sergeant

Notice
penocd
{months)

12

12

12

12

12

12

12

Retire-
ment
age

63

62

60

60

60

60

60

60

60

60

60

Benefits accruing
if contract terminated*

12 months' salary profit share
pension and car allowance

12 months salary, profit share,
pension and car alfowance

12 months' salary, pension and
2 pro-rated profit share up to
the date notice of termination
1S gven

12 months’ salary, pension, car
allowance and a pro-rated profit
share up to the date notice of
termination 1s gven

12 months” safary, pension and
a pro-rated profit share up to
the date notice of termination
15 given

12 months’ salary, pensicn and
a pro-rated profit share up 1
the date notice of termination
15 given

9 moenths’ salary, penston and
a pro-rated profit share up to
the date notice of termination
15 given

12 ronths’ salary, pension and
a pro-rated profit share up to
the date notice of termination
15 gven

& months salary, pension and
a pro-rated profit share up to
the date notice of termination
1s given

12 months’ salary pension and
a pre-rated bonus up to the
date notice of termination s
given In addiion, 1if the
company terminates the
contract without cause, Mr
Mueller 1s entitled to exercise
mmediately any outstanding
and unvested options due to
wnvest in two years

6 months salary, pension and
a pro-rated profit share up to
the date notice of termination
15 given

12 months' salary, pension and
a pro-fated profit share up to
the date notice of termination
5 given

6 months’ salary, penston and
a pro-rated profit share up to
the date notice of termination
1S grven

12 months’ expense allowance

Benefits accruing
if contract terminated due to
Incapacity/death **

9 months salary, profit share, pension and
car allowance

& months' salary, profit share,
pension and car allowance

1 month's salary, pension and a pro-rated
profit share up to the date of termination

1 month’s salary, pension «car allowance and
pro-rated profit share up to the date
of termination

1 month's salary, pension and a pro-rated
profit share up to the date of termination

6 months’ salary, pension and a pro-rated
profit share up to the date of termination

3 months’ salary penston and profit share
if already paid

6 months® salary penston and pro-rated
profit share up to the date of ermination

The contract is terminated immedhately

The director 1s entitled to her salary pension
and profit share earned up 10 the date

of termination

The contract «s terminated immediately
The director 15 entitfed to ks salary and
pension earned up to the date of
termination and any incentive earned
provided 1t has already been paid

6 months’ salary, pension and pro-rated

profit share up to the date of termination

6 months salary, pension and pro-rated
profit shate up to the date of termination

6 months salary pension and a pro-rated

proht share up to the date notice of termination

15 given

The contract 15 terminated immediately The director
is entiled to his expense allowance up to the date

of termination
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Director’'s Remuneration Report continued

Service contracts continued
*  If the director’s contract 1s terminated and the respective director reaches retirement age before the exprirauon of their notice penod then benefits
will only be paid up to the date of retirement

** This also applies if the director gives less than their notice period to the company If the contract is terminated for reasons of bankruptcy or senous
musconduct it 15 terminated immediately wathout any payment in heu of notice

{1} PM Fallon has a second service contract with a subsidiary of the group, Euromoney institutional Investor (Jersey} Lrmited (Eil)} dated April 1 2006
This service contract has the same terms as his contract with Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC - Any termination payment would inchude profit
share based on Eill's results In addition, if Mr Fallon be adjudicated bankrupt, he 1s entitled to 7 days salary and profit share from EIl

{2) NF Osbormn has a second service contract with a subsidiary of the group, Euromoney Inc, dated January 4 1991 normally terminated by 12 months
notice In the event of termmation Mr Osborn 1s entitled to 12 months base salary and pension, plus a prorated profit share to the date notice
of termination 1s gven The company may also terminate his agreement due 10 incapacity gvng 3 months notice and Mr Osborn would be
entitled to 3 months salary, pension and pro-rated profit share **

(3) On termination, profit share 1s calculated as though the director has been employed for the full financial year and then pro-rated accordingly 10
the date of termination unless otherwrse stated

(4) If employment 1s terminated due to a breach of contract and the company s judged to have breached RT Lamont's editonal independence, the
company shall pay $87,500 to the United Way of Greater New York

(5) G Mueller's service agreement 15 with Internet Securnities Inc

(6) RT Lamont, D Alfano and M) Carroll's serice agreements are with Institutional Investor, Inc If MJ Carroll’s contract 15 terminated due 10 Just cause
he 15 entitled to his salary and pension up to the date of termination but no profit share unless already paid

Information subject to audit
Directors’ remuneration table
Year to September 30

Salary Benefits Profit
and fees in kind share Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
[3 f £ £ £
Executive directors

PM Fallon 212,000 752 3,750,850 3,963,602 2,908,324
PR Ensor 175,500 752 3,018,393 3,194,645 2,229,053
NF Qsborn 120,490 5,252 455,599 581,341 382,241
DC Cohen 115,700 %40 589,312 705,952 502,522
CR Brown 129,387 6,077 359,444 494,908 336,362
E Bounous! - - - - 241,026
CR Jones 202,919 407 431,778 635,104 508,847
RT Lamont 108,290 6,585 71,552 186,427 158,531
SM Brady 137,800 876 165,520 304,196 207,907
D Alfano 103,949 6,720 417,086 527,755 466,079
G Mueller 118,864 9,750 613,487 742,101 458,235
MI Carroll 126,168 8,887 101,291 236,346 174,413
CHC Fordham 141,300 940 552,140 694,380 398,507
JL Wilkinson2 51,781 185 84,811 136,777 -

Non-executive directors
The Viscount Rothermere 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
Sir Patnick Sergeant 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
CJF Sinclair 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
JP Willlams 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
JC Botts 37,750 - - 37,750 37,750
IC Gonzalez 28,000 - - 28,000 28,000
1,921,898 48,123 10,611,263 12,581,284 9,149,797

t retired as a director on Apnl 13 2006
? apponted as a diector on Apeil 3 2007

Fees as a director include fees paid as a director of subsidiary companies

NF Osborn has waived £8,674 of profit share in respect of the current and future years The profit share waved was paid inio a
private pension scheme on the director's behalf This waiver has not been deducted from the profit shares above

PM Fallon was also a non-executive director of Allied Insh Banks Pic He retired from this position on May 9 2007 Dunng the year
Mr Fallon retained earnings of €33,000 (2006 €53,000) tn relation to this role

Euromoney Institutional Investoer PLC




Directors’ pensions
Executive directors can partiapate in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme (a defined benefit scheme, closed to new directors), the
Euromoney Pension Plan (a money purchase plan) or their gwn pnvate pension scheme

Pension contrnitbutions

Harmsworth Euromoney

Pension Pension Private
Scheme Plan schemes Total Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2006
£ £ £ 2 £

Director

PM Fallon - - - - -
PR Enscr - - - - 22,712
NF Osborn - 7,548 744 8,292 8.100
DC Cohen 19,954 - - 19,954 16,975
CR Brown - - 2,880 2,880 2,992
E Bounous? - - - - 4,194
CR Jones 32,985 - - 32,985 19,581
RT Lamont - - 2,701 2,701 2,856
SM Brady - 12,136 - 12,136 11,459
D Alfano - - 2,622 2,622 2,713
G Mueller - - 2,375 2,375 2,360
M Carrolt - - 2,878 2,878 3,018
CHC Fordharn - 12,478 - 12,478 11,809
JL Wilkinson2 - - - - -
52,939 32,162 14,200 99,301 108,769

1 revred as a director on Apnl 13 2006
2 appointed as a director on April 3 2007

In addition to the company pension contributions NF Osborn has elected to waive part of fus profit share The profit share waived
15 paid by the company into a private pension scheme as set out on page 30

Under the Harmsworth Pension Scheme*, the followtng pension benefits were earned by the directors

Increase  Accrued annual increase in
n accrued pension at Transfer vatue Transter value transfer value
annual pension September 30 September 30 September 30 (net of directors’
during the year 2007 2007 2006 contributions)
£ £ £ £ £

Director
PM Fallon* 500 7,300 140,000 140,000 -
PR Ensor 2,400 61,700 1,180,000 1,080,000 100,000
DC Cohen 3,200 22,500 250,000 190,000 60,000
CR Jones 19,700 25,100 240,000 80,000 160,000

The accrued annual pension entitlement 1s that which would be paid annually on retrement based on service to September 30
2007 and ignores any increase for future inflaton Al transfer values have been calculated on the basis of actuanal advice in
accordance with ‘Retirement Benefit Schemes — Transfer Values {(GN11)" published by the Institute of Actuanes and the Faculty of
Actuaries The transfer values of the accrued entitlemnent represent the value of assets that the pension scheme would need to
transfer 10 another pension provider on transfernng the scheme's hability in respect of each director’s pension benefits They do
not represent a sum pard or payable to indwidual directors and therefore cannot be added meaningfully to annual remuneration
Members of the scheme have the option of paying Additional Voluntary Contributions Nesther the contnbutions nor the resulting
benefits are induded tn the above table The normal retirement age for the Harmsworth Pension Scheme 1s 62 years

* PM Fallon s pension benefits relate to a deferred pension in the Mail Newspapers Pension Scheme for pensionable sennce between Apnt 11978 and Apnl 1 1986 No further
contnbutons have been mate to this scheme by the group of PM Fallon
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Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ share options
The directors hold options to subscnbe for new ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the company as follows

PM Falion

PR Ensor

NF Osborn

DC Cohen

CR Brown

CR Jores

RT Lamont

SM Brady

Granted Exercised/ At end
At start during  lapsed durning of year/date
of year year year  of retirement
85,000 - - 85,000
255,000 - - 255,000
2,533 - - 2,533+
- 43,722 43,7227
342,533 43,722 - 386,255
75,000 - - 75,000
225,000 - - 225,000
2.533 - - 2,533~
- 43,722 - 43,722t
302,533 43,722 - 346,255
5,000 - - 5,000
2,533 - 2,533**
- 17,803 - 17,8031
7,533 17,803 - 25,336
8,000 - - 8,000
6,000 - 6,000
10,000 - 10,000
5,000 - - 5,000
- 60,888 - 60,888t
29,000 60,888 - 89,388
28,000 - - 28,000
8,000 - - 8,000
40,000 - - 40,000
30,000 - - 30,000
- 63,127 - 63,127t
106,000 63,127 - 169,127
8,448 - (8,448} -
32,000 - - 32,000
60,000 - 60,000
8,000 - 8,000
6,000 - - 6,000
20,000 - - 20,000
15,000 - - 15,000
2,533 - 2,533**
- 43,722 43,722t
151,981 43,722 (8,448) 187,255
10,000 - 10,000
5,000 - 5,000
- 17,315 - 17,315+
15,000 17,315 - 32,315
16,000 - 16,000
8,000 - - 8,000
6,000 - - 6,000
20,000 - - 20,000
10,000 - - 10,000
2,847 - (2.847) =*
- 2,255 - 2,255%*+
- 44,119 - 44,119+
62,847 46,374 (2,847) 106,374

Euromoney Institutional Investar PLC

Exercise
price

£395
f4 31
£3 69
£0 0025

£395
f4 3
£369
£0 0025
£419
£369
£0 0025
£538

£335
£2 59

£419
£0 0025
£419
£5 38
£2 59
£419
£0 0025
£3 55
£419
£4 3%
£5 38

£335
259

£419
£369
£0 0025
419
£538
£0 0025
£419
£538

£335
£259

£419
£324

£419
£0 0025

Date
from which
exercisable

now
now
Feb 01 09
Feb 14 08

now

now
Feb 01 09
Feb 14 08

TSR critena
not satisfied
Feb 01 09
Feb 14 08

TSR criteria

not satisfied
now

TSR criteria

not satisfied
TSR criteria

not satisfied
Feb 14 08

now
TSR cnteria
not satisfied
TSR criteria
not satisfied
TSR cniteria
not satisfied
Feb 14 08

exercised 1
now
now

TSR critenia

not satisfied
now

TSR critenia
not satsfied
TSR critenia
not satisfied

Feb 0109

Feb 14 08

now
TSR critena
not satisfied
Feb 14 08

now
TSR critena
not satisfied
now

TSR critena
not sausfied
TSR critena
not sausfied
exercised?
Feb 01 10
Feb 14 08

Expiry
date

Feb 11 09
Jun 25 09
Aug 0112
Sept 30 14

Feb 11 09
Jun 25 09
Aug 01 12
Sept 3014
Jan 2814
Aug 0112
Sept 30 14
Mar 02 11

Jan 2312
Dec 0412

Jan 28 14
Sept 30 14
Jan 29 09
Mar 02 11
Dec 04 12
Jan 28 14
Sept 30 14
Feb 07 07
Jan 29 09
Jun 25 Q9
Mar 02 11

Jan 2312
Dec 04 12

Jan 28 14
Aug 0112
Sept 30 14

Jan 29 09
Mar 02 11
Sept 30 14

Jan 29 09
Mar 02 11

Jan 2312
Dec 04 12

Jan 28 14
Aug 01 07

Aug 110
Sept 3014



Drirectors’ share options continued

Granted Exercised/ At end Date
At start during  lapsed dunng of year/date Exercise from which Expiry
of year year year  of retirement price exercisable date
D Alfano 10,000 - - 10,000 £419 now Jan 29 Q9
8,000 - - 8,000 £562 now Jan 0510
5,000 - - 5,000 £538 TSR critena Mar 02 11
not satisfied
10,000 - - 10,000 £2 59 TSR critena Dec 04 12
not satisfred
10,000 - - 10,000 £4 19 TSR critena Jan 28 14
not satisfred
- 45,191 - 45,191+ £0 0025 Feb 14 08 Sept 30 14
43,000 45,191 - 88,191
G Mueller 10,000 - - 10,000 £5 38 TSR ¢ritena Mar 02 11
not satisfied
6,000 - - 6,000 £3 35 now Jan 23 12
20,000 - - 20,000 £259 TSR critena Dec 04 12
not satisfied
- 64,072 - 64,0721 £0 0025 feb 1408 Sept 30 14
36,000 84,072 - 100,072
M) Carroll 4,000 - - 4,000 £4 19 now Jan 29 09
8,000 - - 8,000 £5 62 now Jan 0510
4,000 - - 4,000 £5 38 TSR critenia Mar 02 11
not satisfied
20,000 - - 20,000 £2 59 TSR criteria Dec 04 12
not satisfied
10,000 - - 10,000 £4 19 TSR critera Jan 28 14
not satisfied
- 37,105 - 37,105+ £0 0025 Feb 1408 Sept 30 14
46,000 37,105 - 83,105
CHC Fordham 10,000 - - 10,000 £5 38 TSR ¢nteria Mar 02 11
not satished
6,000 - - 6,000 £3 35 now Jan 2312
20,000 - - 20,000 £2 59 TSR cniteria Dec 0412
not sausfied
10,000 - - 10,000 £419 TSR cnitena Jan 28 14
not satisfied
2,533 - - 2,533 £369 Feb 01 Q9 Aug 0112
- 46,773 - 46,7731 £0 0025 Feb 14 08 Sept 30 14
48,533 46,773 - 95,306
L Wilkinson 8,000 - - 8,000 £335 now Jan 2312
8,000 - - 8,000 £2 59 TSR critena Dec 0412
not satisfied
8,000 - - 8,000 £419 TSR critena lan 28 14
not satisfied
- 36,289 - 36,2891 £0 0025 feb 14 08 Sept 30 14
24,000 36,289 - 60,289
Total 1,214,960 566,103 (11,295) 1,769,768

- sssued under the Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Save As You Earn scheme 2004
**  issued under the Euromoney Institutional lnvestor PLC Save As You Earn scherne 2006
**+  ggued under the Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Save As You Earn scheme 2007

1 CR Jones options were exercised on February 1 2007 when the market price per share was £5 75 resulung in a gain of £18 586 He retained 4 224 of the shares.
2 SM Brady s options were exerased an February 15 2007 when the market pnce per share was £5 345 resulting in a gain of £7,701 He sold all hus shares

t Opuons granted relate to those that are hkely to be ssued under the fust tranche of the CAP which vest on February 14 2008 three months following
the announcement of the company’s results The number of options granted to each director 15 prowsional and will prenanly require adjustment for the allocation
of options belonging to future leavers and adjustments 1o profits of the respectve duectors indradual businesses from true-up adjustments dunng the penod 10
December 31 2007 as required by the remuneration commuttee As such the actual number of options granted wall vary from that disdosed
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Director’s Remuneration Report continued

Directors’ share options continued

The market pnice of the company’s shares on September 30 2007 was £5 29 The high and low share prices during the year were
£6 89 and £4 39 respectively There were no options granted dunng the year The aggregate gain made by directors on the

exercise of share options in the year was £26,287 (2006 £86,308)

In addition, the following directors hold options to subscnbe for common stock of US$0 001 each in Internet Secunties, Inc,

a subsichary of the company All of these options are fully vested and exercisable

Granted Exercised/
At start dunng  lapsed dunng At end
of year year year of year
IC Botts 6,000 - - 6,000
G Mueller 5,063 - - 5,063
NF Osborn 5,000 - - 5.000
Total 16,063 - - 16,063

No options in Internet Securities, Inc were granted or exeraised dunng the year

Information not subject to audnt

Directors’ interests in the company
The interests of the directors and their families in the ordinary shares of the company and its subsidianes as at September 30 were

as follows

Beneficial

PM Fallon

PR Ensor

NF Osborn

DC Cohen

CR Brown

CR Jones

RT Lamont

SM Brady

D Alfano

G Mueller

M) Carroll

CHC Fordham

L Wilkinson

The Viscount Rothermere
Sir Patnick Sergeant
CIF Sinclar

JP Willlams

JC Botts

Exercise
pnce

Us$7 40
Uss7 07
Us38 95

Date
from which Expiry
exerasable date

now May 13 09
now Feb 02 14
now Sept 05 10

Ordinary shares of 0 25p each

2007 2006
486,872 966,872
56,151 256,151
42,590 42,590
36,664 36,664
41,111 41,111
21,761 17,537
25,503 25,503
1,747 1,747
20,503 20,503
873 873
20,864 20,864
285,304 285,304
7,494 7,494
3,075 3,075
5,503 5,503
1,056,015 1,731,791

At September 30 2007 G Mueller was beneficially interested in 380,000 shares of Internet Secunties, Inc a subsidiary of the group

(2006 380,000 shares)
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Directors’ interests in Daily Mail and General Trust plc
The interests of the directors to be disclosed under chapter 9 8 & of the UKLA Listing Rules, in the shares of Dally Mail and General
Trust plc as at September 30 were as follows

Ordinary shares A’ ordinary non-voting
of 12 5p each shares of 12 5p each

2007 2006 2007 2006

The Viscount Rathermerg!&? 11,878,132 11,827 632 76,195,913 76,853 439
PM Fallon - - 41,500 41,500
Sir Patnck Sergeant - - 80,000 80 000
CIF Sinclairaz - - 438,150 426 993
IP Wilhams 122 - - 229,552 224,871

! The figures i the table above include A shares commutted by executives under a long-term wncenuve plan details of which are set out in the Daily Mail and
Generat Trust Pic's annual report

2 The figures in the table above include A shares awarded to executives under the DMGT Executive Bonus Scheme For The Viscount Rothermere, CIF Sinclai
and JP Wilhams respecuvely 32 108 13 263 18 389 of these shares were subject to restrictions as explained in the Daily Mail and General Trust Ple annual
repert. The comparable figures at October 1 2006 were 24 235 22 106 and 12 208 respectively

The Viscount Rothermere had non-beneficial interests as a trustee at September 30 2007 in 5,540 000 *A' ordinary non-voling
shares of 12 5p each (2006 5,540 Q00 shares) plus 665 208 ordinary shares (2006 669 208 shares)

Daily Mail and General Trust plc has been notified that, under section 824 of the Companies Act 2006 and including the interests
shown in the table above, The Viscount Rothermere s deemed 10 have been interested n 12,543,340 ordinary shares of 12 5p
each (2006 12 496 840 shares)

At Septemmber 30 2007 and September 30 2006, The Viscount Rothermere was beneficially interested 1in 756 700 ordinary shares
of Rothermere Continuation Limited, the company’s ultimate parent company

The Viscount Rothermere, CJF Stnclair and JP Williams had options gver 436,000, 638,000 and 365,000 ‘A’ ordinary non-voting
shares in Daity Mail and General Trust ple at September 30 2007 respectively (2006 371,000 606,000 and 320 000 respectvely)
The exercise price of these options range from £5 73 to £10 30 Further details of these cptions are listed in the Daly Mail and
General Trust plc group accounts

There have been no changes in directors’ interests since September 30 2007

John Botts
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Novemnber 14 2007
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Independent Auditors’ Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

We have audited the group financial statements of Euromoney Instrtutional [nvestor PLC dor the year ended September 30 2007
which comprise the Group Income Statement, the Group Balance Sheet, the Group Cash FHow Statement, the Group Statement
of Recognised Income and Expense and the related notes 1 to 29 These group finanaal statemments have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out therein We have also audited the information in the Directors' Remunerapion Report that 15 desaibed
as having been audited

We have reported separately on the parent company financial statements of Euromoney Insttutional lnvestor PLC for the year
ended September 30 2007

This report 1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Compamies Act 1985 Our
audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibihty
1o anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Respective responsibilties of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report and the group financal
statements in accordance with applicable law and Intermational Finanaal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European
Union are set out in the Statement of Directors’ Responsibilines

Our responsibility 1s 1o audit the group financial statements In accordance with relevant legal and regulatory reguirernents and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report 1o you our opinion as to whether the group financal statements give a true and fair view, whether the group financial
statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparwes Act 1985 and Artidle 4 of the IAS Regulation and
whether the part of the directors' remuneration report descnibed as having been audited has been property prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the information given in the Directors’ Report 15
consistent with the group financial statements

In addition we report to you if, in our opinion, we have not received al! the information and explanations we require for our audit,
ar if nfformation speafied by law regarding director's remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statement reflects the company's comphiance with the nine provisions of the 2003
Combined Code specified for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we report if 1t does not We
are not required 10 consider whether the board's statemenits on internal control cover all nsks and controls, or form an opinion on
the effectiveness of the group's corporate governance procedures or s risk and control procedures

We read the other information contained n the Annual Report as descnbed in the contents section and consider whether it is
consistent with the audited group financial statements We consider the implications for our report 1f we become aware of any
apparent misstatements or matenal inconsistencies with the group financal statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any
further information outside the Annual Report
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Basis of audit opinion

We conducied our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and ireland) tssued by the Auditing Practices
Board An audit includes examination on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the group financial
statements and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report to be audited It also includes an assessment of the significant
estmates and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the group financal statements, and of whether the
accountng policies are appropriate to the group’s circumstances, consistently apphed and adegquately disclosed

We planned and performed our audtt so as to obtain alt the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
to prowvide us with sufficient ewidence to give reasonable assurance that the group financial statements and the part of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty
or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the group financial
statermnents and the part of the Directors' Remuneration Report 1o be audited

Opinion

In Gur opinion

@ the group financia! statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Umion, of the
state of the group's affairs as at September 30 2007 and of its profit for the year then ended,

® the group financal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparnies Act 1985 and Asticle 4 of the
145 Regulation,

@ the part of the directors' remuneration report descnbed as having been audited has been property prepared in accordance
with the Companies Act 1985, and

@ the nformation given in the Directors' Report 15 consistent with the group financial statements

Yoote xpiae L&

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

November 14 2007
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Group Income Statement
for the year ended September 30 2007

2007 2006
Notes £000's £0005
Revenue
Continuing operations 3 305,594 222276
Less share of revenue of joint ventures {441) {1,800}
Total revenue 3 305,153 220,476
Operating profit before acquired intangible amortisation,
share option expense and exceptional items 3 78,606 43,812
Acgquired Intangible amortisation 11 {15,716) (144)
Share option expense (6,993) (4,428)
Accelerated share option expense (3,183) -
Exceptional rtems 5 855 {716}
Operating profit before associates and joint ventures 3,4 53,569 38,524
Share of results in associates and joint ventures 490 1,208
Operating profit 54,059 39,732
Finance income 7 5.496 772
Finance expense 7 (18,427) (5,270)
Net finance costs 7 (12,931) (4,498}
Profit before tax 41,128 35,234
Tax on profit {11,401) (10,137)
Deferred tax asset recognition 3,178 13,649
Tax {chargeycredit on profit on ordinary activities 8 (8,223) 3,512
Profit after tax from continuing operations 32,905 38,746
Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 15 500 -
Profit for the year 33,405 38,746
Attributable to
Equity holders of the parent 31,822 37.430
Equity minonty interests 1,583 1,316
33,405 38,746
Basic earnings per share — continuing operations 10 30 66p 42 11p
Basic earmings per share — continuing and discontinued operations 10 3116p 42 tip
Diluted earnings per share - continuing operations 10 29 86p 41 90p
Diluted earnings per share — continuing and discontinued operations 10 30 34p 41 90p
Ad)justed diluted earnings per share 10 3270p 2861p
Dvidend per share (induding proposed dividends) 9 19 00p 17 00p
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Group Balance Sheet
as at September 30 2007

2007 2006
Notes £000's £000%s
Non-current assets
Intangible assets
Goodwill 1" 248,137 68,452
Other mtangible assets 1 131,885 3,146
Property, plant and equipment 12 20,917 14,643
Investmenits 13 252 25,846
Deferred tax assets 21 11,508 22,97
Net pension surplus b 364 -
413,063 135,004
Current assets
Trade and other receivables 16 67,458 73,512
Cash and cash equivalents 26,711 27,503
Derwative financial instruments 18 8,093 3,069
102,262 104,084
Current habihities
Acquisition option commitments 25 (14,899) -
Trade and other payables 17 (42,827) {95,515)
Accruals (43,424) {29,478)
Deferred income (73,382) {45,324)
Provisions 20 (1,469) {329)
Loan notes 19 (11,796) -
Bank overdrafts 19 (5,935) {1,235)
(193,732) {171,881)
Net current habilities {91,470) (67,797)
Total assets less current liabilities 321,593 67,207
Non-current habihties
Acquisition option commitments 25 {18,436) (24,332)
Other non-current habilities (1,189) (597)
Committed loan facility 19 (213,559) {65,530)
Deferred tax Labilities 21 {31,650} (3.074)
Dervative financial instruments 18 (596) -
Pravisions 20 (383) (448)
(265,813) (93,981)
Net assets/(habilities) 55,780 (26,774)
Shareholders’ equity
Called up share capital 22 258 223
Share premium account 24 38,509 38,081
Other reserve 24 64,981 -
Capital redemption reserve 24 8 8
Own shares 24 74) (74)
Liabihity for share based payments 24 15,737 5,907
Fair value reserve 24 18,176 6,618
Translaton reserve 24 {15,335) (244)
Retained earnings 24 {69,975) (78.642)
Equity shareholders’ surplus/(deficit) 52,285 {28,123)
Equity minority interests 3,495 1,349
Total equity 55,780 (26,774)

Richard Ensor
Colin Jones
Directors

The accounts were ap[mled/tal&zjoard ot\durect@hlovember 128 2007

—
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Group Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended September 30 2007

2007 2006
£000's E£000%
Cash flow from operating activities
Operating profit 54,059 39,732
Share of results in assoaates and joint ventures (490} {(1,.208)
Operating profit from discontinued operations 885 -
(Profitvloss on disposal of businesses {6,780} 1,483
Acquired intangible amortsation 15,716 144
Licences and software amortisation 289 237
Goodwill impairment - 519
Share option expense 10,176 4,428
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 2,585 2,925
Movement in property rental provision 1,119 (348)
Loss/(profity on disposal of property, plant and equipment 297 (1,286)
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 77,856 46,626
Increase In recervables {11,570) (9,822)
Increase In payables 23,895 22,753
Cash generated by operations 90,181 59,557
Income taxes paid (9,773) (6,884)
Net cash from operating activities 80,408 52,673
Investing activities
Dividends paid to minonties {1,511) {1,724)
Dividends receved from assocates 646 756
Interest recewed 2,162 662
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (8,001) (7.694)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 1,106 1,975
Purchase of available for sale investments - (19,740)
Purchase of additional interest in subsidiary undertakings (18,594) (14,507)
Acquisition of assocates and joint ventures (6) {3,424)
Acquisition of subsidiary undertakings (151,317) -
Proceeds from disposal of businesses 14,778 150
Net cash used tn investing activities {160,737) {43,546)
Financing activities
Dwidends paid (18,110) {14,563)
Interest paid (17,855) (696)
Issue of new share capital 428 730
(Repayment)¥increase in borrowings (78,136) 3,336
Redermption of loan notes (915) -
Loan repaid to DMGT group company (61,350) (71,991)
Loan recenved from DMGT group company 254,297 76,399
Net cash from/{used 1n) financing activities 75,359 (6,785)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {4,970) 2,342
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 26,268 24,932
Effect of foreign exchange rate movements {522) {1,006}
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 20,776 26,268
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Note to the Group Cash Flow

Net Debt

Net debt at beginning of penod

{Decreaselincrease in cash and cash equivalents

Decreasef{increase) in loans

{Increase¥decrease 1n amounts owed to DMGT group company
Debt acquired on acquisitton of Metal Bulletin

Non cash changes issue of loan notes
Other non cash changes

Effect of foreign exchange rate movements

Net debt at end of penod

Statement

2007 2006
£000's £000%s
(73,438) (66,430)
(4,970) 2,342
78,136 (15,716)
{189,947 7,972
{12,606) -
{11,796) -
(1,422) (4,973
11,464 3,367
{204,579) (73,438)

Net debt compnises cash at bank and in hand, bank overdrafts, bank loans and other borrowings

Cash and cash eguivalents in the cash flow statement incdudes banks overdrafts
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Group Statement of Recognised Income and Expense

for the year ended September 20 2007

Gains on sale of avallable-for-sale investments taken to equity
Gains on cash flow hedges

Gains on revaluation of intangible assets

Net exchange differences on translation of foretgn operatons
Net exchange differences on foreign currency loans

Actuanal gains on defined benefit pension schemes

Tax on iterns taken directly to equity {note 21)

Other movements

Net income recognised directly in equity
Translation reserves recyced to the income statement on disposals

Transfer of gain on cash flow hedges from far value reserves to income statement
Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expense for the year

Attnbutable to
Equity holders of the parent
Equity mmority interests

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

2007 2006
£000’s £0005
(405} 405
6,392 3,629
2,384 -
{15,001) 1,056
5,886 3,183
4,158 -
2,082 (265)
- 23)
5,496 7,985
(90) -
(2,699) -
33,405 38,746
36,112 46,731
34,529 45,415
1,583 1,316
36,112 46,731




Notes to the Accounts

1 Accounting policies
General information
Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC (the 'company') 1s a company incorporated in the UK

The group financial statements consolidate those of the company and its subsidianes (together referred to as the "group’} and
equity-account the group's interest in assoaates and jointly controlled entities The parent company financial statements present
infarmation about the entity and not about its group

The group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors 1n accordance with the International Finanaal
Reporting Standards adopted for use in the European Union and therefore comply with Article 4 of the EU 1AS Regulation The
company has elected to prepare 1ts parent company financial statements in accordance with UK GAAP

Judgements made by the directors in the application of these accounting policies that have a significant effect on the finanaal
statements, and estimates with a significant nsk of matenal adjustment it the next year, are discussed in note 2

At the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the following new accounting standards, or amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have not been applied as they are not yet effective IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments Disclosures’
(effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1 2007), Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Presentation of Finanaal Statements
Capital Bisclosures’ (effective for annual penods beginning on or after January 1 2009), IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 - Group and Treasury
Share Transactions® (effective for annual penods beginming on or after January 1 2007), IFRIC 14 "IAS 19 ~ The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Mimimum Funding Requirements and therr Interaction’ {effective for annual penocds beginning on or after January 1
2008), Amendment to IAS 23 ‘Borrowing Costs' {effective for annual peniods beginning on or after July 1 2009}, and IFRS 8
‘Operauing Segments' {effective for annual penods beginning on or after January 1 2009) The directors antiapate that the
adoption of these standards in future pencds will have no material iImpact on the financal statements of the group except for
additional disclosures In addition, certain other standards and interpretations were 1ssued dunng the penod which either do not
apply to the group or are not expected to have any matenal effect

Basis of preparation
The accounts have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention, except for dervative finanaial instruments which have been
measured at fair value

The accounting polices set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been apphed consistently to all penods presented in these
group financial statements

Basis of consohdation

The consolidated accounts incorporate the accounts of the company and entiies controlled by the company {its 'subsidiaries')
Control 15 achieved where the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to
obtain benefits from 115 actities

An assoqate 15 an entity over which the group 1s 1n a position to exercise significant influence, but not control or joint cantrol,
through paruapation in the financia! and operating policy deasions of the investee A joint venture is an entity over which the
group 1s In a position to exercise Joint control over the financral and operating pohaes of the investee The results and assets and
habiities of associates and joint ventures are incorporated in these financial statements using the equity method of accounting

Where the group owns a non-controlling interest in the equity share capital of a non-quoted company and does not exercise
significant influence, it 1s held as an investment and stated In the balance sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value

The results of subsidiary and associated undertakings acquired dunng the year are incorporated from the effective date of
acquisition  Acguisitions are accounted for under the acquisition method, with constderation given and the assets and habilities
acquired being recorded at faw value

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidianes are identified separately from the group's equity therain Minonty
interests consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the onginal business combination and the rminonty's share of
changes in equity since the date of the combination tosses applicable to the minonity in excess of the minonty interest iy the
subsidiary’s equity are allocated against the interests of the group except to the extent that the minority has a binding obligation
and 1s able to make an addiional investment to cover the losses
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Notes to the Accounts continued

1 Accounting policies continued
Revenue
Turnover represents income from advertising, subscaptions, sponsorshup and delegate fees, net of value added tax

® Advertising revenues are recognized in the income statement on the date of publication
® Subscription revenues are recognized In the Income statement on a straight-line basis over the penod of the subscnption
® Sponsorship and delegate revenues are recognized in the incorne statement over the period the event is run

Revenues invoiced but relating to future periods are deferred and treated as deferred income in the balance sheet

Derivatives and other financial instruments
The group uses various derivative finangal instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate nsks,
including forward foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps

All denvative Instruments are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value The recognition of gains or losses on dervative
instruments depends on whether the instrument 1s designated as a hedge and the type of exposure it 1s designed to hedge

The effective portion of gains or losses on cash flow hedges are deferred in equity untl the impact from the hedged item s
recognized In the income statement The neffective portion of such gains and losses 15 recogmized In the income statement
immedhately

Gains or losses on the qualifying part of net investment hedges are recognized n equity together with the gains and losses on the
underlying net investment The ineffective portion of such gains and losses 1s recognized in the income statement immediately

Changes in the farr value of the denvative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognized in the
Income statement as they arise

The premium or discount on interest rate instruments 1s recognized as part of net interest payable over the period of the contract
Interest rate swaps are accounted for on an accruals basis

Liabilities for put options over the remaining minonty interests in subsidianes are recorded In the balance sheet at their estmated
discounted present value These discounts are unwound and charged to the tncome statement as notional interest aver the period
up to the date of the potential future payment In respect of options over further interests 1n joint ventures and associates, only
maovements in their fair value are recognized

Foreign currencies

The functional and presentation currency of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC and 1ts UK subsidiaries 1s Sterling (£) The
funcuonal currency of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures 1s the currency of the pnmary econcmic environment in which
they operate

Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruhng at the date of the transaction Monetary assets and
habilittes denorminated in foreign currencies are translated into sterling at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date

The income statements of overseas operattons are translated into sterling at the average exchange rates for the year and therr
balance sheets are translated inio sterling at the exchange rates rubng at the balance sheet date All exchange differences ansing
on consohdation are taken to equity In the event of the disposal of an operation, the related cumulative translation differences
are recognised in the income statement 1n the period of disposal

Gains and losses anising on foreign currency borrowings and denvative instruments, to the extent that they are used to prowide a
hedge against the group’s equity investments 1n overseas undertakings, are taken to equity together with the exchange difference
ansing on the net investment in those undertakings All other exchange differences are taken to the income statemnent

Leased assets
Operating lease rentals are charged to the income statement on a straight-line or other systematic basis as allowed by
1AS 17 ‘Leases’

Euromaney Institutional Investor PLC




1 Accounting policies continued

Pensions

Contnbutions 1o pension schemes in respect of current and past service, ex-gratia pensions, and cost of living adjustments to
existing pensions are based on the advice of independent actuanes

Payments to the Euromoney Pension Plan and the Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan, defined contnbution pension
schemes, are charged as an expense as they fall due

The company operates the Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme, a defined benefit scheme The cost of providing benefits s
determined by trienmial valuations using the attained age method, with actuarial valuations being carred out at each balance sheet
date Actuanal gains and losses are recogrused n full in the period in which they occur The retrement benefit obligation
recognised In the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecogruzed past
service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets

The company also parttaipates in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme which is operated by Dally
Mail and General Trust plc  As there 15 no contractual agreement cor stated policy for charging the net defined benefit cost for the
plan as a whole to the indimdual entities, the company recognises an expense equal to its contributions payable in the period and
does not recognise any unfunded liability of this pension scheme on 1ts balance sheet

Earnings per share

The earnings per share and diluted earmings per share calculations follow the prowisions of IAS 33 'Earnings per share ' The diluted
earrungs per share figure 15 calculated by adjusting for the dilution effect of the exerase of all ordinary share options, SAYE options
and the Capital Appreciation Plan options granted by the company, but excluding the ordinary shares held by the Euromoney
Employees’ Share Ownership Trust

Deprecation
Depreaation of tangible fixed assets 1s provided on the straight-ine basis over their expected useful lives at the following rates
per year

Freehold land and buildings 2%

Long-term leasehotd premises over term of lease
Sheort-term leasehold premises over term of lease
Office equipment 1% - 33%
Motor vehicles 20%

All tangible assets are reviewed for impairment n accordance with IAS 36 'Impairment of Assets' when there are indications that
the carrying value may not be recoverable

Trade and other recetvables
Trade recevables are recognised and carned at onginal invoice amount, less provision for impairment A provision 15 made and
charged to the income statement when there 15 objective evidence that the group will not be able to collect all amounts due
according to the onginat terms

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equwalents includes cash, short-term deposits and other short-term highly liquid investments with an original
matunty of three months or less

For the purpose of the group cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents are as defined above, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts

Dwidends
Dindends are recognized as an expense in the pentod in which they are approved by the company’s shareholders Interim dvidends
are recorded in the penod tn which they are paid

Own shares held by Employees’ Share Qwnership trust
Transactions of the group-sponsored trust are included in the group financal statements In particular, the trust's holdings of shares
in the company are debited direct to equity
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Notes to the Accounts contrnued

1 Accounting policies continued

Prowvisions

A provision 15 recogrized in the balance sheet when the group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past
event, and it 1s probable that economic benefits will be required to settle the obhigation If it 1s matenal, prowisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the rnisks speafic to the hability

Intangible assets

Goodwilf

Goodwill represents the excess of the far value of purchase consideraton over the net far value of identifiable assets and
llabilities acquired

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset at ¢ost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwili 1s allocated to those cash generating units that have benefited from the acquisition The carrying
value of goodwill s reviewed for impairment at least annually or where there 1s an indication that goodwill may be impaired If the
recoverable amount of the cash generating urit 1s less than its carrying amount, then the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce
the carrynng amount of the goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit on a pro rata basis Any
impatrment Is recognised immediately in the iIncome statement and may not subsequently be reversed On disposal of a subsidiary
undertaking, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s Included in the determination of the profit and loss on disposal

Goodwill ansing on foreign subsidiary investments held in the consolidated balance sheet are retranslated into Sterling at the
applicable penod end exchange rates  Any exchange differences ansing are taken directly to equity as part of the retranslation of
the net assets of the subsidiary

Goodwill ansing on acquisitions before the date of transition to [FRS has been retained at the previous UK GAAP amounts having
been tested for impairment at that date Goodwill written off to reserves under UK GAAP befare October 1 1998 has not been
reinstated and 1s not included in determining any subsequent profit or loss on disposal

Cther intangible assets

The group makes an assessment of the farr value of intangble assets ansing on acquisitons An intangible asset will be
recognised as long as the asset 1s separable or arnses from contractual or other legal nights, and its fair value can be
measured reliably

Amortisation 15 charged so as to wnte off the costs of intangible assets over their estmated useful ives, using the straight-hine or
reducing balance method

All intangible assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 'Impairment of assets’ when there are indications that
the carrying value may not be recoverable

The costs of acquinng and developing software that is not integral to the related hardware 1s capitalised separately as an intangible
asset These intangibles are stated at cost less accumulated amortsation and impairment losses

Amortisation
Amortisation of intangible assets is pronded on a reduang balance basis or straight-line basis as appropriate over therr expected
useful lives at the following rates per year

Brands 20 - 30 years
Data providers contracts 5 years
Customer relationships 3 - 16 years

Business combinations achieved in stages

Where a business combination 1s achieved by more than one exchange transaction, goodwill 1s calcutated separately for each transaction
with the appropnate share of the acquiree’s net assets based on the net fair values at the tme of each exchange transachon Any
adjustrment to fair values related to previously held interests 15 a revaluation which 1s accounted for as an adjustment to equity

Purchases and sale of shares in a controlled entity

Where the group’s interest in a controlled entity increases, which does not result in a change of control, the group calculates the
goodwill anising as the difference between the cost of the additional interest acquied and the fair value of the group's Interest
In the subsidiary's net assets at the date of the change In interest All of the assets and hiabilities are fair valued at the date of
acquisition of the additional controlling stake
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1 Accounting policies continued

Share-based payments

The group makes share-based payments to certain employees These payments are measured at their esumated fair value at
the date of grant, calculated using an appropriate option pnang model The fair value determined at the grant date 1s expensed
on a straight-hne basis over the vesting penod, based on the estmate of the number of shares that will eventually vest At the
penod end the vesting assumptions are rewisited and the charge associated with the farr value of these options updated In
accordance with the transitional prowisions of IFRS 1, IFRS 2 'Share-based payments' has been applied to all grants of options after
Novemnber 7 2002, that were unvested at October 1 2004, the date of transition to IFRS

For cash settled share based payments a hability equal to the portion of the goods and services received 15 recogmised at the current
fair value as determined at each balance sheet date

Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s prowided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation is calculated under the prowvisions of IAS 12 *Income tax’ and Is recogrused on differences between the camrying
amounts of assets and liabilites in the accounts and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and
15 accounted for using the balance sheet llability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recogrised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utiised No prowision 1s made for temporary differences on unremitted earnings
of foreign subsidianes, joint ventures or assoclates where the group has control and the reversal of the temporary difference i1s
not foreseeable

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it Is no longer
probabte that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax 1s calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the habtlity 1s settled or the asset 15 realised
based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date Deferred tax 15 charged
or credited in the income statement, except when 1t relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the
deferred tax 1s also dealt with in equity

Deferred tax assets and habilities are offset when there i1s a legally enforceable night to set off current tax assets against current tax
habilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxaton authonty and the group intends to settle its current
assets and habiliies on a net basis

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are 1tems of income or expense considered by the directors, erther individually or if of a similar type in aggregate,
as being either matental or significant and which require disclosure in order to provide a view of the group's results excluding
these items

2 Key judgemental areas adopted Iin preparing these accounts

The group prepares its group financial statements in accordance with IFRS, the apphcation of which often requires judgements to
be made by management when formulating the group'’s financial position and results Under IFRS, the directors are required to
adopt those accounting poliaes most appropnate to the group’s arcumstances for the purpose of presenting fairly the group's
financial position, finanaial performance and cash flows

In determining and applying accounting pohcies, judgement is often required in respect of items where the choice of specific policy,
accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could matenally affect the reported results or net asset position of the group
should it later be deterrmined that a different chotce would have been more appropniate

Management considers the accounting estimates and assumptions discussed below to be its key judgemental areas and,
accordingly, prowides an explanation of each below Management has discussed 1ts ¢ritical accounting estimates and associated
disclosures wath the group’s Audit Committee

The discussion below should also be read \n conjunction with the group’s disdosure of IFRS accounting policies, which 1s prowvided
N note 1
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Notes to the Accounts continued

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these accounts contmnued

Acquisitions

The group’s accounting pohicy 1s that on acquisiion of a subsidiary or business, the purchase consideration is allocated over the net fair
value of identifiable assets, habilities and contingent hiabthties acquired, wath any excess purchase consideration representing goodwill

Fair value

Deterrmiring the fair value of assets, habiliies and contingent habihues acqurred requires management's judgement and often
involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions, including assumptions with respect to future cash flows, recoverability
of assets, and unprowded liabiities and commitments particularly in relation to tax and VAT

Intangible assets
The group makes an assessment of the fair value of intangible assets arising on acquisitions  An intangible asset will be recognised
as long as the asset 1s separable or anises from contractual or other legal nghts, and its fair value can be measured reliably

The measurement of the fair value of intangible assets acquired requires significant management judgement particularly in relatron
to the expected future cash flows from the acquired marketing databases (which are generally based on managements estimate
of marketing response rates), trademarks, brands, repeat and welt established events At September 30 2007 the net book value
of intangible assets was £131 5 milhon (2006 £2 6 mifhon)

Goodwiil

Goodwill 1s recognised as an asset at cost and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment For the purposes of
impairment testing, goodwall 15 allocated to those cash generating umits that have benefited from the acquisition The carrying
value of goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment at least annually or where there 1s an indication that goodwill may be impaired

Goodwill 1s impaired where the carrying value of goodwall 1s higher than the net present value of future cash flows of those cash
generating urits to which 1t relates Key areas of judgement in calculating the net present value are the forecast cash flows, the
long term growth rate of the applicable busmnesses and the discount rate applied to those cash flows Based on the latest
valuations, no goodwill was impaired at September 30 2007 Goodwill held on the balance sheet at September 30 2007 was
£248 1 million (2006 £68 5 million)

Deferred consideration on acquisitions

The group has subsidianes or businesses that were acquired by the group where payment for part of that entity 1s made at a later
date at a pnce determined by post acquisition profits Where this 1s the case, the net present value of the estmated deferred
payment 1s recogrised as a hability on the balance sheet with a corresponding increase in goodwill These discounts are unwound
as an interest charge to the income statement In estmating the deferred payment management make assurmptions on the post
acquisiion future earmings of the acquired entity and on an appropnate discount rate The deferred consideration 1s re-esimated
regularly and, should the actual deferred payment be different to that estimated a correction 1s required to goodwill, the amount
of cash pard/to be paid and the interest charge At Sepiember 30 2007 the present value of the deferred consideration on
acquistions was £nil (2006 £8 1 million)

Acquisition optron commitments

The group 1s party to a number of put and call options over the remaining minonity interests in some of 1ts subsidiaries 1AS 39
requtres the discounted present value of these acquisition option commitments to be recognised as a llability on the balance sheet
wath a corresponding decrease in reserves The discounts are unwound as a notional interest charge to the income statement Key
areas of judgement in calculating the discounted present value of the options are the expected future cash flows and earmings of
the business, the period remaining until the option I1s exercised and the discount rate At September 30 2007 the discounted
present value of these acquisition option commitments was £33 3 million (2006 £24 3 million)

Share-based payments

The group makes share-based payments to certain employees These payments are measured at their estimated fair value at the
date of grant, calculated using an appropnate option pncang model The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a
straight-tine basis over the vesting penod, based on the estimaie of the number of shares that will eventually vest The key
assumptions used in calculating the fair value of the options are the discount rate, the group's share price volaulity, dvidend yield,
nsk free rate of return, and expected option lives These assumptions are set out in note 23 Management regularly perform a true-
up of the estimate of the number of shares that are expected to vest, which 1s dependent on the anticipated number of leavers

The Capital Appreciation Plan is explained in detail in the Directors' Remuneration Report The number of shares available for award
15 dependent on the future profits of the group up to at least 2009 which, i addition to the key assumptions above, management
are required to estimate A fall in the estmate of these profits would result in a lower cumulatve charge to the income statement

The charge for share-based payments for the year ended September 30 2007 15 £10 2 mulion (2006 £4 4 million)
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2 Key judgemental areas adopted in prepanng these accounts continued

Defined benefit pension scheme

The surplus or defiat in the defined benefit pension scheme that 15 recogrised through the statement of recognised income and
expense Is subject to a number of assumptions and uncertainties The calculated hatihties of the scheme are based on assumptions
regarding salary ncreases, inflation rates, discount rates, the long term expected return on the scheme’s assets and member
longewity Detalls of the assumptions used are shown in note 6 Such assumptions are based on actuanal advice and are
benchmarked agatnst similar pension schemes

Taxation

The group’s tax charge on ordinary activities 15 the sum of the total current and deferred tax charges The calculation of the group’s
total tax charge necessanly involves a degree of estmation and judgement In respect of certain 1items whose tax treatment cannot
be finally determined until resolution has been reached with the relevant tax authority or, as appropnate, through a formal legal
process The final resolution of some of these items may give rse to matena! profit and loss andfor cash flow vanances

The group 15 a multi-national group with tax affairs in many geographical locations This inherently jeads to a higher than usual
complexity to the group’s tax structure and makes the degree of estimation and judgement more challenging The resolution of
1ssues Is not always withun the control of the group and 1t is often dependent on the efficiency of the legislative processes in the
refevant taxing junisdictions in which the group operates Issues can, and often do, take many years to resolve Payments in respect
of tax habilities for an accounting pened result from payments on account and on the final resolution of open items As a result,
there can be substanual differences between the tax charge in the income statement and tax payments

The group has certain significant open items In several tax junsdictions and as a result the amounts recognised in the group
financial statements In respect of these items are derived from the group’s best esumation and judgement, as described above
However, the inherent uncertainty regarding the outcome of these items means eventual resolution could differ from the
accounting estimates and therefore affect the group’s results and cash flows

Recognition of deferred tax assets

The recognition of net deferred tax assets i1s based upon whether 1t 15 probable that sufficient and suitable taxable profits will be
avallable in the future, against which the reversal of temporary differences can be deducted Recognition, therefore, involves
Judgerment regarding the future financial performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset
has been recogrised

Historical differences between forecast and actual taxable profits have not resufted In material adjustments to the recognition of
deferred tax assets At September 30 2007, the group had a deferred tax asset of £11 5 milion (2006 £22 9 million)

Treasury

Interest rate exposure

Interest rate swaps and caps are used to manage the group’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates on its floating rate
horrowings The maturity profile of these derivatives 1s matched with the expected future debt profile of the group The group’s
policy s to fix the interest rates on approximately 80% of its term debt looking forward over five years The expected future debt
profile of the group s based on estmates of both utmings and size of future, as yet unknown, acquisitions offset by an estmate
of the cash generated by the group over a five year period If management materally underestimate the group's future debt profile
this would lead to too few interest rate instruments being In place and the group more exposed to swings i interest rates An
overestimate of the group's future debt profile would lead to assoqated costs in unwinding the excess interest rate instruments

At September 30 2007, the farr value of the group's interest rate swaps was a habiity £0 6 milion (2006 asset of £2 1 milion)

Forward contracis
The group 15 exposed to foreign exchange nsk in the form of transactions in foreign currencies entered Into by group companies
and by the transtation of the results of foreign subsidianies into sterhing for reporting purposes

The group does not hedge the translation of the results of foreign subsidianes, consequently, fluctuations in the value of pounds
sterling versus currenaes could matenally affect the amount of these items n the consolidated financial statements, even if therr
values has not changed In thetr onginal currency The group does endeavour to match foreign currency borrowings to investments
n order to provide a natural hedge for the translation of the net assets of overseas subsidianes
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Notes to the Accounts continved

2 Key judgemental areas adopted in preparing these accounts continued

Approumately 60% of the group’s revenues are in US dollars Subsidianes normally do not hedge transactions in foreign currencies
into the functional currency of ther own operations  However, at a group level a seres of US dollar forward contracts 1s put in
place up to 48 months forward partally to hedge its dollar revenues into stering The timing and value of these forward contracts
15 based on managements estimate of its future US dollar revenues over a 48 month pericd If management matenally
underestimated the group's future US dollar revenues this would lead to too few forward contracts being in place and the group
being more exposed to swings in US dollar to sterling exchange rates An overesumate of the group’s US dollar revenue would
lead to associated costs in unwinding the excess forward contracts At September 30 2007, the farr value of the group’s forward
contracts was an asset of £8 1 mullion (2006 £1 0 milkon)

Detalls of the finanoal instruments used are set out In note 18 to the accounts

3 Segmental analysis

Primary reporting format

Segmental information 1s presented in respect of the group's business divisions and represent the group’s management and
internal reporting structure The group Is currently organised into five business divisions Financial publishing, Business publishing,
Training, Conferences and seminars, and Databases and information services This 1s considered to be the pnmary reporting format
Financial pubhshing and Business publishing consist pnmanly of advertising and subscription revenue The Training division consists
prnimanly of delegate revenue Conferences and serminars consists of both sponsorship iIncome and delegate revenue Databases
and information services consists of subscniption revenue A breakdown of the group's revenue by type s set out below

Secondary reporting format
The group divides the operation of its businesses across three main gecgraphical areas United Kingdom, North Amenca, and Rest
of World {(which pnmeanly includes Asia) These geographical areas are considered as the secondary reporting format

Inter segment sales are charged at prevailling market rates and shown tn the eliminations columns below

United Kingdom North America Rest of World Elrmimmations Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£000’s £000s £000's £000s £000's £000s £000's £000's £000's £000's

Revenue

8y dvision and source

Financial pubhshing 41,469 32,803 33,180 31,608 1,669 1,605 (1,109) (932) 75209 65,084
Business pubhshing 29,062 14,570 10,678 5772 1,399 1,291 (481)  (312) 40,658 21,321
Training 25466 20,214 7,660 7,143 2,662 2,243 (616)  (585) 35,172 28,015

Conferences and seminars 41,138 27,827 47,540 40,575 14,090 11,960 (4,540) (3,696) 98,228 76,666
Databases and information

services 6,835 5303 31141 3904 13,794 10,689 (141) {52) 51,629 19,844
Sold/closed businesses 1,321 3,773 2,951 4,688 - 146 {15} {&1) 4,257 8,546
Group revenue 145,291 104,490 133,150 963,600 33,614 27934 {6,902} (5,638) 305,153 220,476
Joint ventures - 815 - - 441 885 - - 441 1,800

145,291 105,405 133,150 93,690 34,055 28819 (6,902} (5.638)305,594 222276

The joint venture revenues of £441,000 (2006 £1,800,000) can be allocated as follows Business publishing £mil (2006 £915,000),
Conferences and seminars £353,000 (2006 £ni), Traiming £88,000 (2006 £nil), Databases and mformation serwces £nil
{2006 £885,000)

Revenues of £54,507,000 from Metal Bulletin are included within the figures above as follows Financial publishing £2,603,000,
Business publishing £16,337,000, Conferences and semtnars £9,559,000, Databases and information services £26,008,000
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3 Segmental analysis continued

2007 2006
£000"s £000's
Revenue by type
Advertising 65,356 54,177
Subscriptions 104,046 55,373
Sponsorship 46,314 36,744
Delegates 74,376 57,001
Other 10,804 8,635
Sold/closed businesses 4,257 8,546
Total revenue 305,153 220,476
Investment income (note 7) 653 733
Total revenue and investment income 305,806 221,209
United Kingdom North America Rest of World Ebminations Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£000°s £000% £000’s £000% £000°s £000% 000" £000%s £000°s £000's
Revenue
By destination
Sale of goods 31,633 21,845 91,888 53,189 58,659 37,413 (1,759) (1,270} 180,421 111177
Sale of services 17,422 14,654 52,170 43,999 56,012 46,399 (5,129) (4,299) 120,475 100,753
Closed businesses
(sale of goods) 497 887 3,081 5,437 694 2,292 {15) {(70) 4,257 8,546
Group revenue 49,552 37,386 147,139 102,625 115,365 86,104 (6,903) (5,639 305,153 220,476
Joint ventures
(sale of goods) - 60 - 152 441 1,588 - - A41 1,300
Total revenue 49,552 37,446 147,139 102,777 115,806 87,692 (5,903) (5,639) 305,594 222,276
Investment income 267 284 386 366 - 83 - - 653 733
Total revenue (including
share of joint venture
revenue) and investment
income 49,819 37,730 147,525 103,143 115806 87,775 (6,903} (5,639) 306,247 223,009
Umited Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£000%s £000% £000% £000% £000's £000% £000s £000%
Operating profit!
By dmvision and source
Finan¢ial publishing 12,938 8,526 5,974 4,721 114 {13y 19,026 13,234
Business publishing 10,716 4,934 3,409 1,561 (175} 204 13,950 6,699
Training 7,348 5,069 1,833 1,460 635 456 9,816 6,985
Conferences and seminars 13,990 7.502 13,840 11,09 2,015 1,694 29,845 20,287
Databases and information services 521 3,792 11,144 (121) 2,329 1,380 18,684 5,051
Closed businesses 544 (9) {1) - (3) 8 540 {1)
Unallocated corporate costs (11,993) (7.577) (950) (1,182) (312) 316 {13,255} (8,443)
38,754 22,237 35,249 17,530 4,603 4,045 78,606 43,812
Acquired intangible amortisation2 (5,703) - {9.216) - {797) (144) (15,716} {144)
Share option expense (6,503) (2,241) (3,317) (1,944) (356) (243) (10,176}  (4,428)
Exceptional items {note 5} (727) (716) 1,582 - - - 855 {716)
Operating profit before associates
and joint ventures 25,821 19,280 24,298 15,586 3,450 3,658 53,569 38,524
Share of results in assoqates and
joint ventures 4580 1,208
Net finance costs (note 7) (12,931)  (4,498)
Profit before tax 41,128 35,234
Tax (charge)/credit (note 8) {8.223) 3,512
Profit after tax 32,905 38,746

' Operating profit betore acquired intangible amortisation share opton expense and exceptional items
tntangible amorisation represents amarisabion n acquisition related non-goodwill assets such as brands database content and trademarks
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Notes to the Accounts continved

3 Segmental analysis continued

The exceptional gain of £855,000 (2006 loss of £716,000) can be allocated as follows Business publishing £3,628,000
(2006 £2,002,000), Databases and information services loss £303,000 (2006 £nu), Unallocated corporate costs, loss £2,470,000
(2006 £1,286,000)

Share optwon expense of £10,176,000 (2006 £4,428,000) can be allocated as follows Financal publishing £2,543,000
(2006 £1,198,000), Business publishing £1,337,000 (2006 £464,000), Tramng £2,160,000 (2006 £577,000), Conferences and
seminars £1,333,000 (2006 £1,253,000), Databases and information services £1,147,000 (2006 £302,000), Unallocated
corporate costs £1,656,000 (2006 £634,000)

Acquired intangible amortisation of £15,716,000 (2006 £144,000) can be allocated as follows Financial publishing £1,760,000
(2006 £ril), Business publishing £4,418,000 (2006 fril), Conferences and seminars £248,000 {2006 £nil), Databases and
information senaces £9,133,000 (2006 £144,000), Unallocated corporate costs £157,000 (2006 £nil)

Cperating profit of £21,142,000 from Metal Bulletin 15 included within the figures above This can been allocated as follows
Financial publishing £88,000, Business publishing £6,149,000, Conferences and serinars £3,415,000 Databases and information
services £11,490,000

Databases Non-

Conferences and operaung

Financial Business and information Closed assets/
publishing publishing Training  serminars services businesses  {(iabilities) Total

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £0007s
Net assets/(habilities) by division
As at September 30 2007
Assets 33,682 12,798 1,921
Labilihes {63,567) (36,249)

24,399 229,387 4,944 208,194 515,325
{1,040) (24,778) (58.616) (3,734) (271,561) (459,545)

Net assets/(habilities) {29,885} (23,451) 881 (379) 170,71 1.210 {63,367) 55,780
Capital expendture
(excluding ntangibles) {(1,549) {(132) (33) (84) {469} {11 (5,611) (7.889)
Deprecation (excdluding intangibles) (500) {141) (12) (97) (a64) {(32) (1,339) (2,585
Amortisation {1,780} (4,577) (15) (249) (9.297) - {87) (16,005)
Acquisition put option commitments {8,578) (6,003) - (9.532) (9.222) - - {33,335
Datahases Non-
Conferences and operating
Financial Business and information Closed assets/
publishing pubhshing Tramming  semunars services businesses  (llabilities) Total

£000's £000’s £000's £000's £000's £000's £000°s £000's
Net assets/{habilities) by division

As at September 30 2006
Assets 52,632 28,8563 15,969 64,812 27,878 5,766 43,168 239,088
Liabiities {56,472) (9,954) (6,021} (16906) (34,261) (1,717) (140,531) (265,862)
Net assets/{liabilities) (3,340) 18,909 9,948 47,906 (6,383) 4,049 (97,363) (26,774)
Capital expenditure

{excluding intangibles) (294) (78) {39) (127 (144) (28) (6,984) (7,694)
Depreciation {excluding intangibles) (524) (126) (30) {78) (514) - (1,653)  (2,925)
Amortisation (14) @) - (2) (321) - (37) (381)
Imparrment losses (291) (228) - - - - - (519)
Acquisiion put option commtments {491) - - (8,703 (15,138) - - {24,332)
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3 Segmental analysis continued

Non-operating assets and liabilities pnncipally include deferred tax, corporation tax, external bank loans, loans to and from DMGT,
dmidend recevable, deferred consideration, acquisitton option commitments, and assets held for resale

United Kingdom North America Rest of World Total
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
£000's £000% £000°s £000% £000's £000s £000's £000s
Net assets/(liabilities)
By location
Assets 189,953 94,836 96,690 127,416 228,682 16,836 515,325 239,088
Liabilities {163,484) (71,536) (228,032) {166,235) (68,029) (28.091) (459,545) (265,862)
Net assets/(liabilities) 26,469 23300 (131,342) (38,819) 160,653 (11,255) 55,780 (26,774)
Capital expenditure by locauon 5,627 6,984 1,752 629 510 81 7,839 7,694
4 Operating profit
Total Total
2007 2006
£000°s £000%
Revenue 305,153 220,476
Cost of sales (92,169) {74,924)
Gross profit 212,984 145,552
Distribution costs (6.005) {(4,625)
Administrative expenses {153,410) {102,403)
Operating profit before associates and joint ventures 53,569 38,524

Administrative expenses Include a profit on sale of property of £nil (2006 £1,286,000), profit on disposal of businesses of
£6,780,000 (2006 loss £1,483,000), goodwill impairment of £nil (2006 £519,000) and reorganisation and restructuring costs of

£5,925,000 {2006 £nil) {(note 5)

Operating profit 1s stated after charging/{crediting)

Staff costs (note 6)
Intangsble amortisation
Acquired intangible amortisation
Licenses and software
Goodwill impairment
Depreaation of property, plant and equipment
Auditors’ remuneration
Group audit
Non-audit
Property operating lease rentals
LossAprofit) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Reorganisation and restructuring costs
Foreign exchange {gain)loss

2007
£000%s

110,981

15,716
289

2,585

737
302
5214
297
5,925

(1,686)

2006
£000%s

75,567

144
237
519
2,925

512

222
4,431
(1,286)

503
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

4 Operating profit continued

Audit and non-audit services relate to 2007 2006

£000's £000%s

Fees payable for the audit of the company’s annual accounts 491 318
Fees payable for other services to the group

The audit of subsidiaries pursuant to local legistation 246 194

Total audit fees 737 512

QOther audit services

Other services pursuant to local legislation 80 85
Tax services 60 110
Other services - 27
Total non-audit fees 140 222

In addition to the above amounts, non-audit fees of £99,000 (2006 £365,000) was capitalised in respect of acquisitions

5 Exceptional items

Exceptional items are items of income or expense considered by the directors, either indimdually or if of a similar type in aggregate,
as being either matenal or significant and which requwe disclosure in order 1o prowide a view of the group's results excluding
these items

2007 2006

£000's £000%s

Profit on sale of property - 1,286
Profit/{loss) on disposal of businesses 6,780 (1,483)
Goodwill impairment {note 11) - 519
Reorganisation and restructurning costs (5.925) -
855 (716)

In March 2007 the group sold the net assets of Raven Fox, a leading duty-free and luxury goods pubhshing and events business,
resulting mn a profit of £1 8 million (note 15) and a corresponding tax charge of £0 2 rmilion, after utihsation of capital losses
brought forward

In August 2007 the group sold its equity interest In Med Ad Inc, a leading prowder of marketing and chimcal research information
to the pharmaceutical industry, resulting in a profit of £5 0 million (note 15) and a corresponding tax charge of £1 9 million

Subsequent to the acquisition of Metal Bulletn plc in October 2006 {note 14) the group has restructured and reorganised the
acquired group’s operations and incurred assaciated costs of £5 9 million This primanly includes restructunng costs and provisions
for onerous property leases This results in a related tax credit of £1 3 mullion

6 Staff costs
(1) Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments of the directors of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC were as follows

2007 2006

£000%s £000%s

Directors’ salanies and fees, benefits in kind and profit shares 12,573 8,431
Pension contrnbutions {including waiver of profit shares) 108 828
12,681 9,259

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out In the Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 25 to 35
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6 Staff costs continued
(n) Number of staff (including directors)

2007 2006
Average Average
By business segment

Financal pubhishing 4561 416
Business publishing 336 207
Training 157 142
Conferences and seminars 403 32
Databases and information services 579 360
Central 396 288
2,332 1,734
2007 2006
By geographical location Average Average
United Kingdom 884 621
North America 717 647
Rest of World 671 466
2,332 1,734

(i) Staff costs {including directors)
2007 2006
£000's £000s
Salanes, wages and incentives 89,240 63,344
Social secunty costs 9,939 6,525
Pension contributions 1,626 1,270
Share-based compensation costs 10,176 4,428
110,981 75,567

(v) Penston contributions

Defined contribution schemes

The company operates the following defined contnbution schemes Euromoney Pension Plan, the Metal Bultetin Group Personal
Pension Plan in the UK and the 401(k} savings and investment plan in the US It also participates in the Harmsworth Pension
Scheme, a defined benefit scheme which 15 operated by Daily Mail and General Trust plc but 1s accounted for in Euromoney
Institutional Investor PLC as a defined contribution scheme

The pension charge in respect of defined contribution schemes for the year ended September 30 compnised

2007 2006

£000%s £000's

Euromoney Pension Plan 460 532
Metal Bullehin Group Personal Penston Plan 63 -
Private schemes 596 495
Harmsworth Pension Scheme 184 243
1,303 1,270

Euromoney Pension Plan

The Euromoney Pension Plan 15 a defined contribution arrangement under which contnbutions are paid by the employer and
employees The Plan 1s a part of the DMGT Pension Trust, an umbrella trust under which DMGT UK defined contribution plans are
held Insured death benefits are also held under this trust

The plan 15 contracted-in to the State Second Pension and its assets are invested under trust in funds selected by members
and held independently from the company’s finances The investment and administration of the plan 15 undertaken by Fidelty
Pension Management
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Notes to the Accounts continued

6 Staff costs continued

Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan

The Metal Bulletin Group Personal Pension Plan 1s a defined contnbution arrangement under which contributions are paid by the
employer and employees The scheme 1s dosed to new members

The plan 1s contracted-in to the State Second Pension and its assets are invested under trust in funds selected by members
and held independently from the company’s finances The investment and administration of the plan i1s undertaken by
Skandig Ufe Group

Private schemes

Institutional Investor, Inc contributes to a 401(k) savings and investment plan for its employees which 1s administered by an
independent investment provider Employees are able to contribute up to 15% of salary with the company matching up to 50%
of the employee contributions, up to 5% of salary

Stakeholder penstons
The company provides access 1o a stakeholder pension plan for relevant employees who are not eligible for other pension schemes
operated by the group

Harmsworth Pension Scheme

The Harmsworth Pension Scheme 1s a defined benefit scheme operated by Daily Mail and General Trust plc providing service-related
benefits based on fina! pensionable salary The assets of the scheme are held independently from the company’s finances and are
administered by a trustee company which is required to act in the best interests of the benefiaaries of the scheme

The contributions payable to the scheme are determined by the trustee company after taking advice from an independent qualified
actuary, and following agreement with the company This scheme I1s no longer offered to new employees of the company
The most recent actuaral valuation of the scheme, upon which the current contnbutions are based, was carned out as at
March 31 2004 using the projected umit credit method and the key financial assumptions adopted were as follows

Long-term assumed rate of

investment return 70%pa
Price inflation 275%pa
Salary increases 45% pa
Pension increases 275%pa
Discount rate for accrued habilities 66%pa

The company cash contnbution rate to the Harmsworth Pension Scheme duning the year ended September 30 2007 was 18% of
pensionable salanes (2006 18%)

Work in connection with the actuanal valuations of the scheme as at March 31 2007 has already begun but the results are not
expected tc become availlable unt! early 2008

The Harmsworth Pension Scheme has a two-tiered benefit structure represented by a “Standard” section and a “Pension +”
section In the "Standard” section, employees pay contributions of 5% of pensionable salaries and have benefits based on a
normal retirernent age of 65 Under the "Pension +” section, employees currently pay contributions of 7 5% and enjoy a higher
benefit accrual rate and lower normal retirement age than in the “Standard” section

Members are able to make additional voluntary contributions (AVCs) into unit-linked funds held within each scheme No benefit
obligation anses to the Daily Mail and General Trust ple, or the company, from these AVCs and the related unit-inked AVC assets
have been excluded from the valuation of assets and habilities reported below

The Dally Mail and General Trust plc, as pnnapal employer for the schemes, has informed the trustees of its two main defined
benefit schemes, one of which 15 the Harmsworth Pension Scheme, of its intention to merge these schemes The trustees of both
schemes have set up a sub-committee to consider the impact of the merger and, in particular, to ensure that the benefits and
tnterests of all scheme mernbers are protected There will be no change in the benefits provided to any members as a result of
the merger It 1s expected that the merger will be completed by November 30 2007

The company's pension charge for the Harmsworth Pension Scheme for the year ended September 30 2007 was £184,000
(2006 £243,000)

A prepayment of £143,000 (2006 £209,000) i1s included under debtors, representing prepaid contrnibutions for the year to
September 30 2008 paid in accordance with the schedule of contnbutions currently in force
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& Staff costs continued

The company 15 unable to identfy its share of the underlying assets and habilities in the Harmsworth Pension Scheme The scheme
15 operated on an aggregate basis with no segregation of the assets to indwidual participating employers and, therefore, the same
contribution rate s charged to all participating employers (1 e the contnbution rate charged to each employer 15 affected by the
experience of the schemes as a whole) The scheme 15 therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme by the company
This means that the pension charge reported in these financial statements is the same as the cash contributions due in the penod

The uttmate parent company, Daily Marl and General Trust plc, 1s required to account for the Harmsworth Pension Scheme under
International Accounting Standard 19 *Employee Benefits' (IAS 19) The IAS 19 disclosures in the Annual Report and Accounts of
Daily Mail and General Trust plc have been based on cafculations performed as part of the work being carned out for the format
valuation of the scheme as at March 31 2007, and adjusted to September 30 2007 by the actuary The calculations are adjusted
to allow for the assumptions and actuanal methodology required by 1AS 19 These showed that the market value of the scheme’s
assets was £650 0 million (2006 £602 3 milhon) and that the actuanal value of these assets represented 106% (2006 90%) of
the benefits that had accrued to members (also calculated in accordance with 1AS 19) The valuations and disclosures required
under 1AS 19 for the financial statements of Daily Mail and General Trust plc are not matenally different to the valuations and
disclosures required under FRS 17

Defined benefit scheme
The company operates the Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme (closed to new members), a defined benefit scheme

Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme

The acquisiion by the group of Metal Bulletin plc on October 6 2006 included a defined benefit obligation in respect of the Metal
Bulletin plc Pension Scheme (MBPS)  As a result, at that date the company acquired a defined benefit obligation of £21 7 million
along wath a farr value of pension scheme assets of £17 7 million resulting in a net pension hability of £4 0 milton The impact of
the acquisiion of MBPS on the balance sheet disclosures, and the subsequent pension costs ansing, are included i the figures
reported below

The MBPS I1s a defined benefit scheme providing service-related benefits based on final pensionable salary The assets of the scheme
are held independently from the company’s finances, being invested with the Norwich Union Life Insurance Society, Schroder
Investment Management Ltd, and certamn other specific investments managed directly by the Trustees Contnbutions to the scheme
are charged to the income statement so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working fives with the group The
contnbutions are determined by an independent qualified actuary on the basis of tnenmal vatuations using the attamned age
method The most recent actuanal valuation of the scheme, upon which the current contributions are based, was carned out as
at June 1 2004

The company cash contribution rate to the scheme dunng the year was 22 8% of pensionable satanes
This MBPS s closed to new members The figures in this note are based on calculations carned out in connection with the actuanal

valuation of the scheme as at June 1 2004 and adjusted to September 30 2007 by the actuary The key financial assumptions
adopted were as follows

2007 2006
Long-term assumed rate of
Pensionable salary growth 46%pa 41% pa
Pension escalation in payment (pre January 1997 members) 50%pa 50%pa
Pension escalation i payment (hmited price escalation) {post January 1997 members) 33%pa 31%pa
Discount rate for accrued habilities 59% pa 51%pa
Inflation 33%pa 31%pa
Pension increase in deferment 33% pa 31%pa

The discount rate for scheme liabilities reflects yields at the balance sheet date on high quality corporate bonds Al assumptions
were selected after taking actuanal advice Assumptions on mortality will be reviewed as part of the actuanal valuation as at
June 1 2007 The results of this valuation are not expected to become known until 2008
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Notes to the Accounts continued

6 Staff costs continued

Metal Bulletin plc Pension Scheme continued

The fair value of the assets held by the MBPS and the long-term expected rate of return on each class of assets are shown in the
following table

With profits
Equities Bonds  Property policy Cash Total
2007
Value at September 30 2007 (£000') 3,440 3,240 - 6,120 7,065 19,865
% of assets held 17 3% 16 3% 00% 30 8% 356% 1000%

Long-term rate of return expected at September 30 2007 175% 5 00% 4 50% 550% 450%

with profits
Equities Bonds Propesty policy Cash Total
2006
Value at acquisition October 6 2006 (£000's) 3,083 298 87 5,189 9,023 17,680
% of assets held 17 4% 17% C5% 293% 511% 1000%
Long-term rate of return expected at October 5 2006 775% S 00% 450% 5 50% 450%

A reconcliation of the net pension surplus reported in the balance sheet 1s shown in the following table

2007

£000's

Present value of defined benefit obligation (19,501)
Assets at farr value 19,865

Surplus reported i the balance sheet 364

The International Financial Reperting Interpretations Commuttee, in rts document IFRIC 14, has interpreted the extent to which a
company ¢an recognise a pension surplus on its balance sheet Having taken account of the rules of the scheme, the fact that the
scheme remains open to new accrual, and the current levels of service cost and cash contnbutions, the company considers that
recogmiuon of the scheme's surplus on its balance sheet 15 10 accordance with the interpretations of IFRIC 14 The surplus for the
year excludes a related deferred tax hability of £109,000

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obhgation are as follows

2007

£000%
Present value of obligation on acquisition (October 6 2006) (21,708)
Service cost (323)
Interest cost (1.114)
Benefits pad 315
Members comtnbuuions (37)
Actuanal movemnent 3.366
Present value of obligation at September 30 2007 {19,501)
Changes In the fair value of plan assets are as follows

2007

£000°s
Present value of plan assets on acquisition (October 6 2006) 17,680
Expected return on plan assets 958
Contnbutions
Employer 3
Members 37
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 792
Benefits paid 315
Fair value of plan assets at September 30 2007 19,865
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6 Staff costs continued
The actual return on plan assets was £1,750,000 representing the expected return plus the associated actuanal gan or loss dunng
the year

The amounts charged to the income statement based on the above assumptions are as follows

2007

£0007s

Current service costs {charged to admimstrative costs) 323
Interest cost {note 7) 1,114
Expected return cn plan assets (note 7) {958)
Total charge recognised in income statement 479

Pension costs and the size of any pension surplus or deficit are sensitive to the assumptions adopted The table below indicates
the effect of changes in the pnncipal assumptions used above

2007
£000's
Mortality
Change in penston obligation at September 30 2007 from a 1 year change in hfe expectancy +- 583
Change in 2007 pension cost from a 1 year change +- 79
Salary Increases
Change in pension obligation at September 30 2007 from a 0 25% change +- 70
Dis¢count Rate
Change in pension obligation at September 30 2007 from a 0 1% change +- 429
Amounts recognised in the statement of recognised income and expense (SORIE} are shown in the following table
2007
£000°s
Actual return less expected return on pension scheme assets 792
Experience gains on iiabilities 498
Gains ansing from changes in assumptions 2,868
Total gains recognised tn SORIE 4,158
Cumulative actuanal gain recogrused tn SORIE at beginnuing of year -
Cumulative actuanal gain recogrised in SORIE at end of year 4,158
History of experience gains and losses
2007
£000s
Present value of defined benefit obligation (19,501}
Fair value of scheme assets 19,865
Surplus in scheme 364
Expenence gain on defined henefit obligation 498
Percentage of present value of defined benefit abligation 25%
Experience gain on fair value of scheme assets 792
Percentage of the fair value of the scherne assets 40%

The group expects to contnbute approximately £630,000 to the MBPS during the 2008 financial year
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

7 Finance income and expense

2007 2006
£000"s £000's

Finance income
Interest receivable from short-term investments 653 623
Dimdends receivable from assets held for sale - 110
Ineffectiveness of interest rate swaps - 39
Net movements in acquisition option commitment values 3,885 -
Expected return on pension scheme assets 958 -
5,496 772

Finance expense
Committed borrowings (14,915) (4.020)
Imputed interest on acquisition opticn commitments {1,603) (916)
Net tax equalisation swap expense (190} -
Notional interest on deferred consideration - (334)
Ineffectiveness of interest rate swaps (27) -
Interest payable on lcan stock (578) -
Interest on pension scheme habilities (1,114) -
{18,427) {5,270)
Net finance costs {12,931) (4,498)

The tax equalisation swap expense relates to tax hedges on intra-group finanaing, of which £1 8 mitlion 1s 1n relation to foreign
exchange losses This foreign exchange element i1s equal to tax credit on the losses on this intra-group finanang (note 8)

8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities

2007 2006
£000's £000's
Current tax expense

UK corporation tax 4,946 6,119
Foresgn tax 6,343 1,533
Adjustments In respect of pnior years 494 107
11,783 7.759

Deferred tax (credit)/expense
Current year (4,031) (11.361)
Adjustments in respect of prior years 471 o0
(3,560) (11,271)
Total tax charge/{credit) in income statement 8,223 (3.512)
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8 Tax on profit on ordinary activities continued

The effective rate of tax for the year s 20% (2006 credit (10%)) The underlying tax rate for 2007 is 25% based on adjusted profit
before tax (see glossary page 5), prior year items and foreign exchange on the tax equitisation swap {note 7} but increases to 34%
after stnpping out the effect of other non-recurring items The actual total tax charge for the year 15 different from 30% of profit
before tax for the reasons set out in the following reconciliation

2007 2006
£000's £000%
Profit before tax 41,128 35,234
Tax at 30% 12,338 10,570
Factors affecting tax charge
Rates of tax on overseas profits 463 {338)
Joint venture and associate tncome reported net of tax (147) (362)
US State taxes 615 756
US goodwill (1,201) (13,120)
UK goodwill - 161
Disallowable expenditure 689 136
Tax effects of intra-group transactions eliminated on consolidation (3,901} -
Recogmition of previously unrecognised tax iosses (1,890} {1,957}
Non deductible loss on sale of business - 445
Deferred tax charge anising from changes in tax laws 292 -
Pnior year adjustments 965 197
Total tax charge/{credit) for the year 8,223 {3,512}

No tax charge arose on the sale of Atalink and EIC The tax charge on the disposal of Raven Fox was £223,000 Following the sale
of Med Ad Inc in the year, the US group's tax losses {excluding Metal Bulletin US), have been fully utiised The tax charge on the
disposal was £1,908,000 A tax credit of £1,354,000 anses in relation to the exceptional costs on the acquistion of Metal Bulletin
Following a reassessment of the recoverability of the potential US deferred tax asset, an additonal asset of £3,178,000
(2006 £13,649,000) was recogresed during the year

The actual tax credited directly 10 equity was £2,082,000 (2006 charge of £265,000) A credit of £1,826,000 (2006 £nif} relating
to tax on foreign exchange losses has been treated as exceptional as it 1s hedged by foreign exchange losses of £1,826,000
{2006 £nil) on tax equalisation swaps within finance costs {see note 7)

9 Dividends

2007 2008
£000’s £000%

Amounts recogrisable as distributable to equity holders in penod
Final dwidend for the year ended September 30 2006 of 11 6p {2005 11 Op} 11,943 9,767

Intenm didend for year ended September 30 2007 of 6 Op (2006 S 4p) 6,177 4,806
18,120 14,573
Employees’ Share Ownership Trust dividend {10) (10)
18,110 14,563
Proposed final dwdend for the penod ended September 30 13,386 11,943
Employees’ Share Ownership Trust dmvdend {8) N
13,378 11,936

The proposed final dvidend of 13 Op (2006 11 6p)1s subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting on January 30 2008 and
has not been mcluded as a hability in these financial statements in accordance with IAS 10 'Events after the balance sheet date’
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Notes to the Accounts continued

10 Earnmings per share

2007 2006

£000's £000'%s

Earnings attnbutable to equity holders of the parent 31,822 37,430
Less earnings from discontinued operations (500) -
Basic earmings - continuing operations 31,322 37,430
Intangible amortisation 15,716 144
Exceptional items (855) 716
Deferred tax assets recognition (3,178) {13,649)
Imputed interest on acquisition cption commitments 1,603 916
Net movements in acquisiion option commitment values (3,885) -
Tax on above adjustments (3.831) -
Tax ¢redit on non-recurring Intergroup transactions (2,588) -
Adjusted earnings 34,304 25,557
Basic earnings — continuing and discontinued operations 31,822 37.430
Number Number

0007 000%

Werghted average number of shares 102,196 88,943
Shares held by the Employees’ Share Ownership Trust (59) (59
102,137 88,884

Effect of dilutive share options 2,752 456
Diluted weighted average number of shares 104,889 89,340
Pence Pence

per share per share

Basic earnings per share - continuing operations 30 66 4213
Effect of dilutive share options (0 80} {021)
Diluted earnings per share - continuing operations 29 86 41 90
Effect of intangible amortsation 14498 016
Effect of excepuional items (0 82) 0 80
Effect of deferred tax assets recognition (3 03) (15 28)
Effect of imputed interest on acquisition option commitments 153 103
Effect of net movements in acquisitton option commitment values (370) -
Effect of tax on the above adjustments (3 65) -
Effect of tax credit on non-recurnng intergroup transactions (247) -
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 3270 28 61
Basic earnings per share - continuing and discontinued operations 3116 4211
Effect of dilutive share options (082) (021)
Diluted earnings per share - continuing and discontinued operations 3034 4190

The adjusted diluted earnings per share figure has been disclosed since the directors consider 1t to give a more meaningfut
indication of the underlying trading performance
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11 Goodwill and other intangibles

Intangihles Intangibles
acquired on Licenses & acquired on Licenses &
acquisition software Goodwill acquisition software Goodwill
2007 2007 2007 2006 2006 2006
£000°s £000% £000's £000's £000% £0005s
Cost/ carrying amount
At October 1 2006 2,770 1,295 68,971 - 1,048 66,029
Additions - 12 - - 296 1,631
Acquisitions {note 14) 152,661 71 196,006 2,770 - 5,609
Disposals - 7) {1,871} - - {1,651}
Exchange differences (8,473) (57) {14,450} - (49} (2,647}
At September 30 2007 146,958 1,414 248,656 2,770 1,295 68,971
Amortization and impairment
At October 1 2006 144 775 515 - 569 -
Amortisation charge for the year 15,716 289 - 144 237 -
Impairment losses - - - - - 519
Disposals - N - - - -
Exchange differences (387) (43) - - 31} -
At September 30 2007 15,473 1,014 519 144 775 519
Net book value/carrying
amount at September 30 2007 131,485 400 248,137 2,626 520 68,452
The carrying amounts of goodwill by business are as follows
2007 2006
£000's £000's
CEIC 10,385 5,609
Internet Secunties, Inc 4,037 3,303
MIS 2,022 2,205
Engel publishing - 1,81
Petroleum Economist 236 236
Gulf Publishing 3,744 4,083
HedgeFund Intelligence 14,718 14,718
Information Management Network 31,992 36,419
MAR 160 -
BCA 113,487 -
Metal Bulleun publishing businesses 55,494 -
FOW 196 -
Total Denvatives 3,761 -
Telcap 2,917 -
Asia Business Forum 4,980 -
Other 8 8
Total 248,137 68,452

Dunng the year the goodwall in respect of each of the above businesses was tested for imparment in accordance with LAS 36
With the exception of Engel publishing, which was sold dunng the year, no adjustments to goodwll were considered necessary
other than exchange rate fluctuations

The key assumptions in the value i use calculations were

® Forecasts by business based on pre-tax cash flows denved from approved budgets for 2008 Management believe these
budgets to be reasonably achievable

® Subsequent cash flows for between one and three additional years were increased in ine with growth expectations of the
applicable business,

@ The pre-tax discount rate used was 8 7%, the same as that used n assessing potential acguisitions, and
@ Long term growth rate assumed to be 3%

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at acquisition, to the cash generating units that are expected to benefit
from that business combination
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Notes to the Accounts continued

12 Property, plant and equipment

Freehold Long-term Short-term
land and leasehold teasehold Office Motor
buildings premises premises equipment vehicles Total
2007 2007 2007 2007 2007 2007
£000's £000's £000's E0Q0's £000's EQDD’s
2007
Cost
At October 1 2006 - 2,575 12,837 15,592 36 31,040
Additions 3,899 - 2,373 1,617 - 7,889
Acquisitions (note 14) 1,543 114 206 874 - 2,737
Disposals (397 - (981) (1,902} {(29) (3,309
Exchange differences - (4) (347) (676) - (1,027}
At September 30 2007 5,045 2,685 14,088 15,505 7 37,330
Depreciation
At October 1 2006 - 159 4,087 12,115 36 16,397
Charge for the year 19 55 873 1,638 - 2,585
Disposals - - (564) {1,274} (29 (1,867)
Exchange differences - - {126) (576) - (702)
At September 30 2007 19 214 4,270 11,903 7 16,413
Net bocok value at
September 30 2007 5,026 2,471 9,818 3,602 - 20,917
Net book value at
September 30 2006 - 2,416 8,750 3,477 - 14,643
Freghold Long-term Short-term
land and leasehold leasehold Office Motor
buildings premises premises equipment vehicles Total
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
£000's £000%s £000's £000% £000's £000%
2006
Cost
At Qctober 1 2005 862 2,575 6,961 14,678 36 25,112
Additons - - 6,101 1,593 - 7,694
Disposals {862) - - (151} - {1,013
Exchange differences - - {225) (528) - {753
At September 30 2006 - 2,575 12,837 15,592 36 31,040
Depreciation
At October 1 2005 217 159 2,804 11,160 25 14,365
Charge for the year 16 - 1.367 1,531 11 2,925
Disposals (233) - - (149) - {382)
Exchange differences - - (84) (427 - (511)
At September 30 2006 - 159 4,087 12,115 36 16,397
Net book value at
Septernber 30 2006 - 2,416 8,750 3477 - 14,643
Net beok value at
Septernber 30 2005 645 2,416 4,157 3,518 1 10,747

The directors do not consider the market value of freehold land and builldings to be sigruficantly different from s book value
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13 Investments

2007

At October 1 2006
Addiions

Share of profits retained
Decrease In faiwr value
Transfer t¢ subsidianes
Dividends

Transfer from provisions

At September 30 2007

2006

At October 1 2005
Additions

Share of profits retained
increase in fair value
Transfer to subsidianes
Dwvidends

Provision

At September 30 2006

Associated undertakings

Investments in Investments in Available
associated Jont for sale Trade

undertakings ventures Investments investrnent Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

1,944 3,743 20,145 14 25,846

6 - - - 6

425 65 - - 490

- - (405) - (405)

(1,775) (3,510) (19,740) - (25,025)
{348) (298} - - (646)
- - - {14) (14}

252 - - - 252

Investments in Investments in Available
associated Joint for sale Trade

undertakings ventures investments investment Total
£000's £000's £000's £000's 000

2,479 4,587 - 14 7,080

- 3,424 19,740 - 23,164

419 788 - - 1,207

- - 405 - 405

- (5,056) - - {5.056)

{756) - - - (756)

(198} - - - (198)

1,944 3,743 20,145 14 25,846

The associated undertaking at September 30 2007 was Capital NET Limited whose pnncipal actvity 1s the prowision of efectronmic
database services The group has a 48 4% (2006 48 4%) interest in Capital NET Linuted At September 30 2006 the group, in
addiion to Capial NET, had a 40% interest n TelCap Limited whose principal activity 1s business publishing In February 2007,
TelCap Limited became a subsidiary undertaking

Capital NET Limited does not have a coterminous year end with the group The total assets, habilities, revenues and
profit after tax generated by Capital NET Limited from its latest avallable audited accounts are set out below
(2006 Capital NET Limited and TelCap Limited)

Total assets

Tota! habilities
Total revenues
Profit after tax
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Associates
2007
£000's

639
(273)

2,265

682

Associates
2006
£000's

1,879
(1.012)
3,604
1,049
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Notes to the Accounts continued

13 Investments continued

Joint ventures

For the three months to December 2006 the group had a 47 5% (2006 47 5%]) interest in Asia Bustness Forum whose principal
activity 15 conferences and traming In January 2007, the group increased its equity shareholding in Asia Bustness Forum to 90%
and from that date has treated it as a subsidiary undertaking

For the six months to March 31 2006 the group had a 49% interest 1n CEIC Holdings Lirmted In Apnl 2006, the group increased
its investment in CEIC Holdings Limited to 74% and from that date has treated it as a subsidhary undertaking In Apnl 2007, the
group purchased the remaining 26% of the equity interest \n CEIC Holdings Limited increasing the group's holding to 100%

The group's joint ventures do not have coterminous year ends with the group The current assets, long-term assets, current
habilities, long-term habilities, mcame and expenses generated by the group's joint ventures at September 30 from their respective
latest available audited accounts are set out below

Joint ventures Joint ventures
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Current assets - 1,673
Leng-term assets - 72
Current habilities - 605
Long-term habilities - 28
Income - 3,121
Expenses - {2,101}

The group’s share of income and expenses during the year ended September 30 2007 was £441,000 and £355,000 respectively
(2006 £1,800,000 and £838,000}

Avaifable for sale investments

At September 30 2006, the availlable for sale investments represented the inttial tranche of 4,931,595 Metal Bulletin plc shares
acquired by the group in August 2006 This represented 8 9% of the equnty share capital of Metal Bulletin plc at the time of
acquisiion In October the remaining equity share capital was purchased and from that date Metal Bulletin was treated as a
subsidiary undertaking

Trade investments

The group has a 50% interest in Capital DATA Limited The ordinary share capital of Capital DATA 1s dwided into 50 ‘A’ shares and
50 'B" shares with the group owning the 50 ‘A’ shares Under the terms of the Articles of Assocation of Capital DATA, the ‘A’
shares held by the group do not carry entitlernent to any share of dividends or other distrbution of profits of Capital DATA The
group does not have the ability to exerase significant influence nor 15 1t involved in the day to day runming of Capital DATA As
such Capital DATA 1s accounted for as a trade investment The group 1s entitled 10 28 2% of Capital DATA's revenues being
£3,141,000 in the year (2006 £2,746,000) At December 31 2006, based on its latest avallable audited accounts, Capital DATA
Limited had £787,000 of ssued share capital and reserves (December 31 2005 £195,000), and its profit for the year then ended
was £581,000 (December 31 2005 loss £29,000)
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13 Investments contmued

Details of the company and 1ts principal subsidiary undertakings included in these consohdated finanaal statements at September 30

2007 are as follows

Proportion
Company held
Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC n/a
Direct investments
Adhesion (UK} Limited 100%
Coaltrans Conferences Limited 935%
Ell US, Inc 100%
Euromoney Hedaing Limited 100%
Euromoney Institutional Investor (Jersey) Limited 100%t
Euromoney Lending (UK) Limited 100%
Euromoney Publications {Jersey) Limited 100%"
Glenprint Limited 100%
HedgeFund Intelligence Limited 100%
The Petroleumn Economist Limited 100%
Tipall Lmited 100%
World Link Publications Limited 100%
Indirect investments
Adhesion et Associes SA 100%
American Metal Market, LLC 100%
AMM Marketwatch, LLC 100%
Asia Business Forum {Singapore) Pte Limited 90%
BCA Pubhcations Limited 100%
Bustness Conventions Internationale 100%
Carlcroft Lirmted 100%
CEIC Holdings Limited 100%
Ell Holdings, Inc 100%™*
Euromoney {Singapore) Pte Limited 100%
Euromoney Funding (UK) Limited 100%
Euromoney Institutional Investor {Ventures) Lmited  100%
Euromoney Jersey (Finance) Lirted 100%
Euromoney Publications {Overseas) Limited 100%
Euromoney Training, Inc 100%
Euromoney US Holdings LP 100%
Euromoney Yen Finance Limited 100%
Euromoney, Inc 100%
GSCS Benchmarks Limited 100%
Gulf Publishing Company 100%
information Management Network, Inc 80%
insututional Investor, Inc 100%
Internet Securnities, Inc 93%
Latin Amencan Financial Publications, Inc 100%
Managed Account Reports, LLC 100%
MB Marketwatch Limited 100%
Metal Bulletin Billenicay Limited 100%
Metal Bulletin Canada, Inc 100%
Metal Bulletin Holdings Corporation 100%
Metal Bulletin Investments Limited 100%
Metal Bulletin Limited 100%
MIS Training {UK) Limited 100%
Sea MNet Lumwted 100%
Storas Holdings Pte Limited 90%
TelCap Limited 55%
Total Denvatives Limited 67%
Joint ventures and associates
Capital NET Limited 48%

All holdings are of ordinary shares

Principal activity
and operation

Publishtng, training and events

Conventions

Conferences

Investment holding company
Investment company
Publishing

Investment holding company
Non-trading

Pubhshing

Publishing

Publishing

Property holding

Non-trading

Conventions

Publishing

Information Services
Conferences

Information Services
Conventions

Publishing

Information Services
Investment holding company
Training

Investment holding company
Investment holding company
Non-trading

Dormant

Traiming

Dormant

Investment company
Training

Publishing

Publishing

Conferences

Publishing

Information Services
Publishing

Non-trading

Information Services
Dormant

Investment holding company
Investment holding company
tnvestment holding company
Publishing

Training

Mon-trading

Investment holding company
Publishing

Publishing

Databases

In addition to the abowve, the group has a small number of branches outside the United Kingdom

* 100% preference shares held in addition

1 Eursmoney tnstitutional Investor {ersey) Limuted'’s principal country of operation s Hong Kong

» Euromoney Publications (ersey} Limited s pnnaipat country of operation 15 Great Bntain
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Country of
incorporation

Great Britain

Great Britain
Great Britain
us

Great Bntain
Jersey

Great Britain
Jersey

Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Bntain
Great Britain
Great Britain

France

us

us
Singapore
Canada
France
Great Britain
Hong Xong
us
Singapore
Great Britain
Great Britain
Jersey

Great Britain
us

Us

Great Britain
us

Great Britain
us

us

us

us

us

us

Great Britain
Great Britain
Canada

us

Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Britain
Great Brtain
Singapore
Great Britan
Great Britain

Great Britain
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Notes to the Accounts continved

14 Acquisttions

Metai Bulletin

On October 6 2006, the group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Metal Bulletin plc for cash consideration of
£239 6 millon Metal Bulletin plc 1s the parent company of a group of companes operating as a leading globat information
provider of must-have market-sensiive data in niche, business-to-business markets Its revenues are denved from a range of
publications, electromic products and services, conferences and research This transaction has been accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting

The directors have adjusted the consolidated balance sheet of Metal Bulletin plc at October 6 2006 for the following adjustments
that they believe represent the fair value of the assets at acquisiton The fair values in the intenm report were provisiona! and have
been finalised duning the second half of the year

Accounting
policy Fair value
Book value ahignment adjustments Fair value

£000°s £000%s £000°s £000's
Net assets acquired
Goodwill 32,438 (32,438) - -
Intangible assets 5,456 - 133,043 138,499
Software 1,092 - - 1,092
Other non-current assets 3,226 446 6,292 9,964
Cash and cash equivalents 2,821 - - 2,821
Other current assets 9,234 {47) (4,1086) 5,081
Trade creditors and other payables (24,016) {133) (1,065) (25,214)
Bank overdrafts (5,914) - - (5,914)
Other current habilities (6,033) - 81) (6,114)
Nen-current habilities {15,364) {1,593) {43,296) (60,253)

2,940 (33,765) 90,787 59,962
Goodwll 179,629
Total consideration 239,591
Consideration satisfred by
Cash 156,410
Shares (13,833,249 shares issued at market value of £4 70) 65,016
Loan notes 12,711
Directly attnbutable costs 5,454

235,591

Intang:ble assets represent trade marks, subscriber relationships, advertiser relationships, and databases for which amorusation of
£12 9 million has been charged in the year Goodwill Is attributable to the value of the workforce and anticipated future operating
synergies Non-current habilities includes pnimanly a deferred tax habihity ansing on the intangible assets

The Metal Bulletin group contnbuted £54 5 million to the group's revenue, £21 1 million to the group’s operating profit and
£10 1 million to the group's profit before tax for the penod between the date of acquisition and September 30 2007

Since acquisiton, three non-core businesses owned by Metal Bulletin plc have been sold (note 15)

Tota! Dernvatives

COn October 19 2006, the group signed an agreement to acquire 67% of Total Denivatives Limited, a leading prowvider of real-time
news and analysis of the global fixed income denvatives markets The price was £7 3 milhon indluding acquisition ¢osts and a
working capital adjustment resulting tn provisional goodwill and intangible assets of £3 8 million and £6 9 million respectively In
addition, the management team will stay with the business and have options to sell their remairing shares to the group at prices
hnked to profits for the financial years 2007, 2008 and 2009 The transaction 1s subject to a maximum consideration of 24 9% of
Euromoney's market capitalisatton at the date of completion

Total Denvatives contributed £2 3 million to the group's revenue, £1 3 mullion to the group's operating profit and £1 4 midhion to
the group’s profit before tax for the penod bewween the date of acquisition and September 30 2007
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14 Acquisitions continued

Other acquisitions

Payments of deferred consideration

In March 2007, in accordance with the purchase agreement, the group paid the final instalment of $12 3 million (£6 2 milhon) for
the B0% stake in Information Management Network, a financial conference organiser, purchased in February 2004

Increase m equity hoidings

In January 2007, the group exerased its option to purchase the second tranche of Asia Business Forum (ABF) increasing its equity
holding from 47 5% to 90% The equity was purchased for £3 5 milkon resuling in additional goodwalt of £2 6 millon and
bringing total goodwill to £5 0 million from January 2007 ABF 1s treated as a subsidiary undertaking and contributed £3 2 million
to the group's revenue, £1 0 million to the group's operating profit and £1 0 million to the group's profit before tax for the pernod
between that date and September 30 2007

in February 2007, the group purchased a further 1 2% of the equity share capital of Internet Secuntres, Inc (IS} for a cash consideration
of $2 6 milion (£1 3 millkkon) resulting in additional goodwill of £1 0 million bringing the total goodwill to £4 2 midlion The group's
equity shareholding In I5] increased 10 93 4%

In February 2007, the group purchased a further 15% of the equity share capital of TelCap Limited for a cash consideration of
£1 7 milion payable in Apnl 2007 and resulting i additional goodwill of £1 4 million bringing total goodwill to £2 9 milhon The
group's equity shareholding 1n TelCap Limited increased to 55% and, from February 2007, is classified as a subsidiary undertaking
TelCap contributed £1 7 million to the group’s revenue, £0 € million to the group's operating profit and £0 &€ milhon to the group's
profit before tax for the period between the date of it becoming a subsidiary and September 30 2007

in Apnlt 2007, the group purchased the final 26% of the equity share capital of CEIC Holdings Limited (CEIC) for a cash
consideration of $11 7 million (£5 8 milion) paid in September 2007, resulting 1n additional goodwill of £4 5 million and bringing
the total goodwill to £10 4 milion The group's equity shareholding in CEIC increased to 100%

Total ABF CEIC Telcap
Dervatives (additional (final 26% {15%
(67%) 42 5%) tranche) tranche)
£000's £000's £000°s £000°s
Book value
Cash 1,240 1,370 1,793 173
Other assets 216 646 791 526
Liabilitres (985) {1,682) (2,525) {451)
Total 471 334 59 248
Prowisional fair value adjustments
Intangible assets 6,907 2,381 5,920 1,723
Deferred tax (2,072) {571) (1,036) (517)
4,835 1,810 4,884 1,206
Prowvisional fair value of net assets 5,306 2,144 4,943 1,454
Net assets acquired
% 67 45% 42 5% 26% 15%
£000% 3,579 911 1,285 218
Goodwill 3,761 2,610 4,546 1,446
Consideration (satisfied by cash) 7.340 3,521 5.831 1,664

If the acquisitions Iin the table above had been completed on the first day of the financal year, group revenues for the period would
have been £1 5 millon higher and group profit attnibutable to equity hotders of the parent would have been £0 2 milion kigher
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Notes to the Accounts continued

15 Dusposals and discontinued operations

Disposals

On March 12 2007, the group disposed of Raven Fox, a leading duty-free and luxury goods publishing and events business for
cash constderation of £1 8 milllon Raven Fox's net habilites on disposal were £0 2 million resulting in profit on sale, after related
sale costs of £1 8 millon This results in a tax charge of £0 2 milhon The results of Raven Fox are included i the consohdated
accounts up to the date of their disposal as part of closed businesses

On August 31 2007, the group sold Med Ad Inc, a provder of marketing and clinical research information to managers and
executives in the pharmaceutical industry, for £6 3 million on completion with a further payment expected to be £0 5 million, to
be receved for the net current assets of the company on agreement of the completion accounts Profit on sale, after related sale
costs, was £5 0 million resulting in a tax charge of £1 9 milion The results of Med Ad Inc are included in the consohdated accounts
up to the date of therr disposal as part of closed bustnesses

Discontinued operations

The first of the non-core Metal Bulletin operations, Atalink Limited, a specialist and direct response publication company, was sold
on March 30 2007 for £1 8 million A further payment, expected to be £0 7 million, will be received for the net current assets of
the company on agreement of the completion accounts An additional final payment of £0 S million 1s payable on March 3¢ 2008
No profit or loss was made on disposal The results of Atalink Limited are included i the consolidated accounts up to the date of
their disposal as part of discontinued operations

On Apnl 12 2007 the group sold Energy Information Centre Limited, a leading company in the proviston of wholesale and
retal market inteligence, outsourced procurement and energy fisk management strategy The group received £4 7 million on
completion with a further payment, anticipated to be £0 3 million, 1o be received for the net current assets of the company on
agreement of the completion accounts No profit or loss was made on disposal The results of Energy Information Centre Lirmited
are Included n the consoldated accounts up to the date of ther disposal as part of discontinued operations

On May 15 2007 the group seld the business and net assets of Systematics International Limited, a database business prinapally
in the farm machinery and construction sector, for £100,000 on completion plus £25,000 deferred for one year No profit or loss
was made on disposal The results of Systematics Limited are included in the consolidated accounts up to the date of their disposal
as part of discontinued operations

The group’s Income statement includes the following results from discontinued operations

£000's
Revenue 5,000
Expenses (4,115)
Profit before tax 885
Tax {(385)
Profit after tax 500
16 Trade and other receivables

2007 2006
£000's £000%

Amounts falling due within cne year
Trade debtors 50,865 35,134
Amounts owed by DMGT group undertakings {note 28) - 23,259
Other debtors 8,406 6,923
Prepayments and accrued income 8,187 8,196
67,458 73,512

The directers consider the carmang amount of trade and other receivables approximates their fair values

The bad debt provision at September 30 2007 1s £4 3 mithon (2006 £3 8 milhon)
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17 Trade and other payables

2007 2006

£000%s £000'%s

Trade creditors 3,999 2,841
Amounts owed 10 DMGT group undertakings (note 28) 4,142 60,451
Other creditors 25,005 16,887
Corporation tax 9,681 7,246
Deferred consideration for acquisitions - 8,090
42,827 95,515

The directors consider the carrying amount of trade and other payables approximates therr fair values

18 Finanaal instruments

Detalls of the objectives policies and strategies pursued by the group in relation te financal instruments are set out on page 44 of
the accounting pohcies and pages 49 and 50 of the key judgemental areas The main financial risks faced by the group are market
nsks including the effect of changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and hquidity nsks Denwvatives are used to hedge or
reduce the rnisks of interest rate and exchange rate movements and are not entered into unless such risks exists Dernvatives used
for hedging a particular nsk are not specialised and are generally available from numerous sources

Liguidity risk

The group's hquidity nsk 15 described in detail in section 4 of the Directors’ Report Fixed and floating rate borrowangs analysed
by matunity are analysed below Borrowings are shown after taking account of related interest rate denvatives 1n designated
hedging relationships

2007 2006

Varabie Frxed Varniable Fixed
rate rate Total rate rate Total
barrowings borrowings value barrgwings borrowings value
£000's £000's £000°s £000% £000% £000%
Within one year 17,731 - 17,731 58,666 - 58,666
after 2 years but within 3 years 45,486 168,073 213,559 2,361 63,169 65,530
63,217 168,073 231,290 61,027 63,169 124,196

At September 30 2007, £130 6 million (2006 £104 O million) of borrowings were designated 1n US dollars with the remainder in
stering The average rate of interest paid on the debt was 6 09% (2006 3 2%)

Interest rate risks

The group’s interest rate nsk 15 descnbed 1 detail in section 4 of the Directors' Report The group's nterest rate exposure
management policy 1s aimed at optimising net interest cost and reducing volatility This is achieved by modifying the interest rate
exposure of debt and cash positions through the use of interest rate swaps

At September 30 2007, interest rates were fixed for 82% of the group's net cash and borrowing positions {2006 86%) At
Septernber 30 2007, the fair value of the group's interest rate swaps was a liability of £0 6 milhon (2006 asset £2 1 million)

The following sensitmity analysis of borrowings and denvative financial instruments to interest rate movements assumes an
immedtate 100 basis point change in interest rates across all the group's borrowings and denvative instrurnents, regardless of therr
currenaies and matuniues, from therr levels at September 30 2007 All other vanables are held constant The directors regard these
change assumptions as reasonably possible over a one year penod
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

18 Finanaal instruments continued

A 100 basis point reduction In interest rates would result in an estimated decrease In the group’s net interest expense of
£0 4 mitlion, based on the composition of finanaial nstruments including cash, cash equivalents and bank loans as at September 30
2007 A 100 basis point nse in interest rates would result in an estimated increase in the group's net interest expense of
£0 4 millon The sensitivity of the fair value of finangal instruments at September 30 2007 to changes in interest rates Is set out
in the table below

Fair value
Carrying/ +100 basis —-100 basis
fair value points points
£000°'s £000's £000's
Short-term borrowings 17,731 17,7314 17,731
Long-term borrowings 213,559 225,355 225,355
Interest rate swaps (liability)asset (596) 3,173 {4,365)

Short-term borrowings comprise bank loans, net loans from DMGT companies and overdrafts due within one year Long-term
borrowings include only long-term loans A 100 point basis change in interest rate would not resuft in a material change to the
farr value of any other financal instrument

Foreign exchange rate risk

The group’s foreign exchange rate risk Is described in detal in section 4 of the Directors’ Report The group operates tn many
countries and Is subject to msks from changes in foreign currency values, particularly US dollars These exposures are hedged by
the use of forward exchange contracts

At September 30 2007, the fair value of the group's currency denvatives 1s estimated to be £8 1 nmulhion (2006 £1 0 mithon) and
ncluded as a current asset in the group's bafance sheet These amounts are based on market values of equivalent instruments at
the balance sheet date All currency denivatives have been designated as hedges and tested as effective The movements in far
values have been deferred to equity

The following sensitvity analysis of net borrowings and derivative financial instruments to foreign exchange rate movements
assumes an immediate 5% change n all foreign exchange rates against sterling from their levels at September 30 2007  All other
variables remain constant A +5% change indicates a strengthening of the currency against sterling and a -5% change indicates
a weakening of the currency against stering The directors regard these change assumptions as reasonably possible over a one-
year period

All foreign exchange contracts are designated as hedges of future forecast transactions

Fair value
Carrying/ +5% =5%
fawr value points points
£000's £000’s £000's
Fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts 8,093 3,085 11,063

A 5% change in foreign currency exchange rates would not result in a matenal change to the fair value of any other financal
instrument
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19 Bank overdrafts and loans

2007 2006

£000's £000's

Bank overdraft 5,935 1,235
Committed loan facility 213,559 65,530
Loan notes 11,796 -

Commutted loan facihity

The group has a dedicated £300 million three-year multi-currency facility with a subsichary of DMGT which expires in August 2009
Interest 1s payable on this facility at a vanable rate of between 0 4% and 1 6% above LIBOR dependent on the ratio of net debt to
EBITDA At September 30 2006, the group had not drawn down on this facility but remamed a borrower under its existing five-year
commutted faciity During October 2006 the group, funded by the new multi-currency faalty, repaid all mories owing on its
then existing commutted faclity and drew down further amounts to fund the purchase of Metal Bulletin plc and to settle related
acquired debt

As at September 30 2007 there were £85 4 million (2006 £200 4 milion) of other uncommitted un-drawn fachies directly available
to the group

Loan notes

Loan notes for £12 7 milhon were 1ssued in October and November 2006 to fund the purchase of Metal Bulleun plc Interest is
payable on these loan notes at a vanable rate of 0 75% below LIBCR payable i June and December Loan notes can be redeemed
at the option of the loan note holder twice a year on the interest payment dates above At least 20 business days' wnitten notice
prior to the redemption date 15 required At the end of June 2007, £0 9 million of these loan notes were redeemed reducang the
debt to £11 8 milion

20 Prowvisions

Onerous
lease Other Group
provision Provisions total
£000's £000°s £000's
At October 1 2006 763 14 777
Provision 1,806 - 1,906
Acquisttions 82 - 82
Used in the year (869) - {869)
Transfer to investments - (14) (14)
Exchange differences (30) - {30)
At September 30 2007 1,852 - 1,852

Maturity profile of provisions

2007 2006
£000's £000s
Withun 1 year (included in current liabilsties) 1,469 329
Between 1 and 2 years {included in non-current habiities) 140 310
Between 2 and S years {induded in non-current habiities) 243 138
1,852 777

Onerous lease provision
The onerous lease provision relates to certain builldings within the property portfolio which either at acquisition were rented at
non-market rates, or are no longer occupied by the group
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Notes to the Accounts continved

21 Deferred taxation
The net deferred tax asset at September 30 2007 comprised

Acquisiions
Income and Exchange

2006 statemnent Equnty disposals ditferences 2007

£000% £000'% £000's £000s £000's £000's

Capntalised goodwill and intangibles  (1,971) 4,285 - (45,949) 1,322 (42,313)

Tax deductible goodwill amortisation 12,078 (849) - - 912) 10,317

US and other overseas tax losses 3,722 (2,405) - - - 1,317

Financial tnstruments (773) (28) 977) - - (1,778)

Other short-term temporary differences 6,787 2,557 3,059 (69 {19 12,315

Deferred tax 19,843 3,560 2,082 {46,018} 391 {20,142)
Comprising

Deferred tax assets 22,97 11,508

Deferred tax habilities {3.079) {31,650)

19,843 (20,142)

At the balance sheet date, the group has unused tax losses avadable for offset agamnst future profits A deferred tax asset of
£1,317,000 (2006 £3,722,000} has been recogrized The US losses can be carried forward for a period of 20 years from the date
they arose The losses have expiry dates of January 2026

A net deferred tax asset of £10,190,000 (2006 £14,317,000) has been recognized in respect of US tax deductible goodwill
amortisation and other overseas short-term timing differences The directors are of the opinion that based on recent and forecast
trading, 1t 1s probable that the level of profits in the future years are sufficient to enable the asset to be recovered

A deferred tax asset of £5,404,000 has not been recogrized in respect of overseas tax losses and other short term temporary
differences (2006 £5,975,000) as the directors do not believe there 1s sufhaent evidence that it 1s probable they will be recovered

At the balance sheet date, the aggregate amount of temporary differences with undistributed earnings of subsidhanes for which
deferred tax labilities have not been recogmised was £86,062,000 (2006 £65,611,000) No hability has been recogrised in respect
of these differences because the group 1s In @ position to control the ttming of the reversal of the temporary differences and it 1s
probable that such differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

22 Called up share capital

2007 2006
£000's £000%
Authornised
137,364,850 ordinary shares of 0 25p each
(2006 112,000,000 ordinary shares of 0 25p each) 343 280
Allotted, called up and fully paid
102,972,478 ordinary shares of 0 25p each
(2006 89,032,180 ordinary shares of 0 25p each) 258 223

On September 20 2006, at an Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of the company's shareholders, the authonsed share capitat
of the company was increased, conditional on Metal Bulletin being acquired, by 25,364,850 shares to provide the company with
sufficient headroom for the partial share alternative for the acquisition of Meta! Bulletin plc

During the year the company ssued 13,833,249 ordinary shares with a nominal value of 0 25p each, as approved at the EGM, in
relation to the parual share alternative for the acquisiion of Metal Bulletin plc

In addiion, 107,049 ordinary shares of 0 25p each (2006 239,816 ordinary shares} with an aggregate nominal value of £268
(2006 £600) were 1ssued dunng the year for a cash consideration of £428,076 (2006 £730,344) following the exerase of share
opuons granted under the company’s share option schemes
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23 Share-based payments
Equity settled options

The following options are outstanding at Septermber 30 and are options to subscribe for new ordinary shares of 0 25p each n

the company

Number of ordinary shares under option 2007

Weighted
average
market
price at
Granted  Exercised Lapsed Option date of
dunng dunng dunng price  exercise
2006 year year year 2007 £ £

Penod during which option may be exercised
Before February 6 2007 20,448 - {20,448) - - 355 582
Before January 6 2008 17,984 - - - 17,984 396 -
Before January 28 2009 190,000 - {32,000) (8,000) 150,000 419 5 66
Before February 10 2009 160,000 - - - 160,000 396 -
Before June 24 2009 540,000 - - - 540,000 43 -
Before January 4 2010 156,000 - (18,352) (18,000) 119,648 563 6 45
Before March 1 2011 257,000 - - {48,000) 209,000 538 -~
Before January 22 2012 138,000 - (8,000 (14,000) 116,000 335 604
Before December 3 2012 428,000 - - (52,000) 376,000 259 -
Before January 27 2014 394,000 - - (59,0000 335000 419 -
Before July 31 2007 29,999 - (26,469) (2,392) 1,138 324 590
Between January 4 2008 and july 3 2008 32,954 - - (6,811} 26,143 338 -
Between February 1 2009 and july 31 2009 83,580 - (1,685) (4,645) 77,250 369 542
Between January 5 2010 and July 4 2010 - 140,578 (95) (14,920) 125,563 419 520

2,447965 140,578 (107,049) (227,768} 2,253,726

The options outstanding at September 30 2007 had a weighted average exercise price of £4 05 and a weighted average remaining

contractual Iife of 3 3 years

Number of ordinary shares under option 2006

Weighted
average
market
prce at
Granted  Exerased Lapsed Option date of
during during dunng pnce exercse
2005 year year year 2006 f £

Penod during which option may be exerased
Before February 7 2006 10,000 - {10,000) - - 333 485
Before February 6 2007 28,448 - (8,000) - 20,448 355 510
Before January 6 2008 35,564 - {13,580) (4,000} 17,984 396 464
Before January 28 2009 244,000 - {46,000) (8,000) 190,000 419 490
Before February 10 2009 160,000 - - - 160,000 3%6 -
Before June 24 2009 540,000 - - - 540,000 43 -
Before January 4 2010 160,000 - - {4,000y 156,000 563 -
Before March 1 2011 282,000 - - (25.000y 257,000 538 -
Before January 22 2012 188,000 - {44,000) (6.000) 138,000 335 485
Before December 4 2005 and December 3 2012 448,000 - (8,000) {12,000) 428,000 259 474
Before February 1 2006 and July 31 2006 103,205 - {95,298) (7,907) - 208 506
Before January 28 2007 and January 27 2014 426,000 - (4,000) (28,000) 394,000 418 495
Before February 1 2007 and July 31 2007 39,047 - - {9.048) 29,999 324 -
Between January 4 2008 and July 3 2008 42,424 - - (9,470) 32954 338 -
Between February 1 2009 and July 31 2009 - 92,393 - {8.813) 83,580 369 -

2,706,688 92,393 (228,878) (122,238) 2,447,965

The options outstanding at September 30 2006 had a weighted average exerase pnce of £4 05 and a weighted average remaining

contractual ife of 4 3 years
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Notes to the Accounts continued

23 Share-based payments continued
Capita! Appreciation Plan (CAP)

The CAP executive share option scheme was approved by shareholders on February 1 2005 Each of the CAP awards comprises
an option to subscribe for ordinary shares of 0 25p each in the company for an exerase price of 0 25p per ordinary share The
awards become exerasable on satisfaction of certain performance conditions and lapse to the extent unexerased on September 30
2014 The inimial performance condition (increased during 2007 to reflect the acquisition of Metal Bulletin) was achieved i the
financial year 2007 and the option pool {a maximum of 7 5 million shares) will be allocated between the holders of outstanding
awards One third of the awards will vest on February 14 2008, with the other two thirds vesting in equal tranches i the following
two years, but only i the pnmary and secondary performance conditions are met {page 27) Otherwise vesting 15 deferred untl
both the profit target of £57 million achieved in 2007 15 achieved again, and the profits of the indiadual participants businesses
are at least 75% of that achieved in 2007 but no later than by reference to the year ending September 30 2012

Share Option Schemes

The company has 12 share option schemes for which an IFRS 2 'Share based payments' charge has been recogmized Detatls of
these schemes are set out In the Directors Remuneration Report on pages 25 to 35 The fair value per option granted and the
assumptions used in the calculation are shown below

The executive and Save as You Earn Options were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pnicing mode! Expected volatility was
determined by calculating the histonical volatility of the group's share price over the previous 14 years The executive options' fair
values have been discounted at a rate of 10% to reflect thewr performance conditions The expected term of the option used In
the model has been adjusted, based on management's best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations The expense recogmised in the year in respect of these options was £202,000 (2006 £121,000)

Executive Options SAYE
5 [ 7 8
Date of grant December 4 January 28 February 1 January 4 February 1 January 5
2002 2004 2004 2005 2006 2007
Market value at date of grant (p) 259 419 405 423 461 524
Option Price (p) 259 419 324 338 369 419
Number of share options
outstanding 376,000 335,000 1,138 26,143 77.250 125,563
Option life (years) 10 10 35 35 35 35
Expected term of option
(grant to exerase (years)) 55 55 3 3 3 3
Exercise price (p) 259 419 324 338 369 419
Risk-free rate 410% 410% 4 80% 4 80% 480% 475%
Dividend yield 393% 393% 335% 335% 335% 335%
Volatility 30% 30% 30% 30% 30% 30%
Fair value per option {£) 252 072 111 122 124 151

The Capital Appreaation Plan (CAP) options were valued using a fair value model that adjusted the share pnce at the date of grant for
the net present value of expected future dwdend streams up 1o the date of expected exerase Under IFRS 2, Internet Secunties, Inc
options are classified as cash settfed options As such their related fair value equates to the fair value at the balance sheet date For both
these option schemes, the expected term of the option used i the models has been adjusted, based on management's best esumate,
for the effects of non-transferability, exeraise restrictions and behavioural considerations The share based expense recognised 1n the year
for the CAP options was £9,629,000 {2006 £4,307,000), and for Internet Secunities, Inc options was £345,000 (2006 £nil)

CAP Internet Securnities, Inc cash settled options
Tranche 1 Tranche 2 Tranche 3

Date of grant June 20 June 20 June 20 February 2 May 1 February 28

2005 2005 2005 2004 2005 2006

Market value at date of grant (p) 401 a0 am n/a n/a n/a

Option Price (p) 025 025 025 n/a n/a nfa
Number of share options

outstanding 2,500,000 2,500,000 2,500,000 77,282 2,500 51,000

Option hfe (years) 10 i0 10 10 10 10
Expected term of option

(grant to exercaise (years)) 328 453 553 65 55 45

Exercise price {p) 025 025 025 nfa n/a nfa

Risk-free rate S 0% 50% 50% na nfa nva

Dvidend growth 8 44% 844% 8 44% nfa n/a n/a

Fair value per option (£) 328 302 282 Us$18 57 Us$1857 UsS$18 57
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24 Statement of movement on reserves

Liabulity
Share Capital for share
premium Other redemption Own based Farrvalue Translaton  Retained
account reserve reserve shares payment reseves reserves eamings Total

£000's £000°s £000's £000's £000's £000s £000's £000's £000's

At September 30 2005 37.351 - 3 74 1.47% - (1,300 (75,245 (37,781)
Impact of adoption of 1AS 39

on October 1 2005 - - - - - {599 - (21,248 (21,847)
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - 37430 37,430
Changes In acquisition commitments - - - - - - - {4,728) (4,728}
Exchange differences ansing on

translation of net investments in

overseas subsidiary undertakings - - - - - - 1,056 - 1,056
Net exchange difference on foreign

currency loans - - - - - 3,183 - - 3,183
Change in fair value of available for

sale investments - - - - - 405 - - 405
Change in fair value of hedges - - - - - 3,629 - - 3.629
Credit for share-based payments - - - - 4,428 - - - 4,428
Dwidends pad - - - - - - - {14,563} (14,563)
Exercise of share options 730 - - - - - - - 730
Tax on items going through reserves - - - - - - - {265} (265)
Other movements - - - - - - - (23) (23)
At September 30 2006 38,081 - 8 {74) 5.907 6,618 (244) (78,642) (28,346}
Retained profit for the year - - - - - - - 31822 31,822
Prermium on shares ssued for

acquisition of tMetal Bulletin plc - B4 - - - - - - 64,981
Recognition of acquisttion option

commitments - - - - - - - {18,533 ({18,533)
Exercise of acquisition option

commitments - - - - - - - 7,248 7,248
Exchange differences ansing on

translation of net investments In

overseas subsidiary undertakings - - - - - - (15,001) - (15001)

Translation reserves recycled to the

iIncome statement on disposals (90} - {90}
Net exchange difference on

foreign currency loans - - - - - 5,886 - - 5,886
Change in fair value of avallable

for sale investments - - - (405) - - (405}
Change in fair value of hedges - - - - - 6,392 - - 6,392
Transfer of gan on cash flow hedges

from fair value reserves to income

staiement - - - - - (2,699 - - (2,699)
Change in fair value of intangibles 2,384 - - 2,384
Credt for share-based payments - - - - 9,830 - - - 9,830
Dwvidends paid - - - - - - - (g110) (18,10)
Change n actuanal assumptions

in defined benefit scheme - - - - - - - 4,158 4,158
Exerese of share options 428 - - - - - - - 428
Tax on iems going through reserves - - - - - - - 2,082 2,082
At September 30 2007 38,509 64,981 8 (74) 15737 18176 {15335} (69.975) 52,027

The investrment i own shares 15 held by the Euromoney Employees” Share Ownership Trust (ESOT) At September 30 2007 the
ESOT held 58,976 shares (2006 58,976 shares) carned at a histonc cost of £1 25 per share with a market value of £312,000
(2006 £270,000), and waived the nghts to recewve dividends Interest and administrative costs are charged to the profit and loss
account of the ESOT as incurred
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Notes to the Accounts contnued

25 Acquisition opticn commitments

The group 15 party to a number of put options over the remaining minornty interests in some of its subsidianes  1AS 39 "Financial
Instruments’ requires the recognition of acquisitton liabilittes The group regularly performs a review of the underlying businesses
with option commitments and 1n 2007 the review resulted in a net decrease in the fair value of the group’s option commutments
of £3,885,000 This decrease s reported as finance income in the mcome statement New option commitments of £18,533,000
have been recogmised relating to subsidiaries acquired in the year and existing options have been exerased totalling £7,248,000
As at September 30 2007, the discounted present value of the remaming put option commiiments s £33,335,000
(2006 £24,332,000) These discounts are unwound as a notional interest charge to the income statement

26 Commitments
At September 30 the group has committed to make the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buildings

2007 2006

£000's £0005s

Within one year 4,764 372
Between two and five years 16,213 12,931
After five years 19,385 17,772
40,362 34,424

The group's operating leases do not include any significant leasing terms or condittons

27 Contingent habilities and assets

Claims 1in Malaysia

Four wnts daiming damages for libel were i1ssued in Malaysia against the company and three of its employees in respect of an
article published in one of the company’s magazines, International Commercial Litigation, \n November 1995 The writs were
served on the company on October 22 1996 The total amount daimed 15 280 millon Malaysian nnggits (£40 3 million) No
provision has beery made for these claims in these financal statements as the directors do not believe the company has any matenal
hability in respect of these wnts

28 Related party transactions
The group has taken advantage of the exemption allowed under [AS 24 'Related party disclosures' not to disclose transactions and

balances between group companies that have been eliminated on consolidation Other related party transactions and balances are
detalled below

(1} In 2006, the company had a credit facility with Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited In August 2006, the group entered
into a new credit agreement with DMGR Holdings Limited and in October 2006, the group, funded by the new credit faclity,
repaid all monies owing on the onginal credit facility with Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited As at September 30 2007
the amounts owing under the respective faclities were $266 0 million (£130 6 mithon) (2006 $22 5 midkion (£14 2 million)),
and £83 0 million (2006 £19 3 midlicn) In 2006, a loan arrangement fee of £1 1 million was pard to DMGR Holdings Limited
in respect of the new credit faclity A commitment fee 1s payable on the unused portion of the available faabty which was
£0 8 milhon (2006 £nil}

In 2006 the group provided a loan faclity to Assocated Newspapers North Amernca, Inc As part of the new
credit arrangements above, this was repard in 2007 The amount receivable at September 30 2007 was £nil million
(2006 £23 3 milllon which included accrued interest)

The group expensed £132,000 (2006 £390,000) for services provided by Daily Mail and General Frust plc

(u) At Septernber 30 2007 the group had £163 2 milhon {2006 £63 2 rullion} fixed rate interest rate swaps outstanding with
Daily Mail and General Holdings Limited amounting to $200 0 mifion (2006 $118 0 milkon) at interest rates between 2 9%
and 5 3% and terrmination dates between March 30 2008 and March 28 2013 and £65 0 milhon (2006 £nil) atinterest rates
between 5 2% and 6 2% and termination dates between March 3¢ 2008 and September 28 2012 Dunng the year the group
received $2 3 million (2006 recewed $1 2 milion) and £0 1 million of interest from Daily Maill and General Holdings Limited
In respect of interest rate swaps
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28 Related party transactions continued

(D]

()

v}

In May 2007 (2006 Aprl ), CR Brown, a director of the company, was advanced, under the terms of his contract, $25,000
{2006 $100,000) n respect of part of his profit share payment normally paid to him at the end of the year At September 30
2007 the balance owed by CR Brown to the group was $nil 2006 $nl)

There 15 an annua! put option agreement over the sale of Internet Secunties, Inc {ISI) shares between the company and
G Mueller, a director of the company The annual put option values these shares based on the valuation of ISI as determined
by an independent financial adwser Under the terms of the agreement consideration caps have been put in place that require
the maximum consideration payable to option holders to be capped at an amount such that the results of any relevant dass
tests would, at the relevant time, fall below the requirement for shareholder approval

In 2006, under the put option agreement, G Mueller sold 67,614 shares valued at $13 10 for a total consideration of
$885,743 Also in 2006, G Mueller exercised 27,024 options with an exercise pnce of $7 40, 16,653 options with an exercise
price of $8 95 and 3,937 options with an exercise price of $7 07 realising a gan of $154,036, $69,110 and $23,740
respectively G Mueller retained the shares No such shares or options were sold or exeraised 1n 2007

The compensation pard or payable for key management is set out below Key management includes the executive and
non-executive directors as set out 1 the remuneration repert and other key dwisional directors who are not on the board

2007 2006
£000's £000s

Key management compensation
Salanes and short-term employee benefits 14,973 9,702
Non-executive director’s fees 178 178
Post-employment benefits 156 883
Other long-term benefits (all share-based) 3,894 1,386
19,201 12,149

Of which

Executive directors 13,947 10,030
Non-executive directors 178 178
Dwisional directors 5,076 1,941
19,201 12,149

Details of the remuneration of direciors 1s given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

29 Ulumate parent undertaking and controlling party

The directors regard the ulumate parent undertaking as Rothermere Continuation Limited, which 15 incorporated in Bermuda The
ultimate controlling party 1s The Viscount Rothermere The largest and smallest group of which the company 15 a member and for
which group accounts are drawn up 1s that of Dally Mail and General Trust pl¢, incorporated in Great Britain and registered in
England and Wales Copies of the report and accounts are available from

The Company Secretary

Daily Mall and General Trust plc
Northchffe House, 2 Derry Street
London W8 STT
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Independent Auditors’ Company Report

Independent auditors’ report to the members of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC

We have audited the parent company financal statements of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC for the year ended
September 30 2007 which comprise the Company Balance Sheet and the related notes 1 10 19 These parent company financial
statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

We have reported separately on the group financial statements of Euromoney Instititonal Investor PLC for the year ended
September 30 2007 and on the inforrmation in the Directors’ Remuneration Report that is described as having been audited

This report I1s made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with section 235 of the Cornpamies Act 1985 Our
audit work has been underiaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to them
N an audrtors” report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions
we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors' responsiiittes for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors' Remuneration Report and the parent company
financial statements In accordance with applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards {Urited Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice) are set out in the Statement of Directors” Responsibilities

Cur responsibility 1s to audit the parent company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be
audited i accordance with relevant legal and regulatory requirements and International Standards on Audiuing (UX and Ireland)

We report 10 you our opinion as to whether the parent company financial statements give a true and fair view and whether the
parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report
10 you whether 1n our opinion the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the parent company finanaal statements

In addition we report to you ff, in our opinion, the company has not kept proper accounting records, H we have not receved all
the information and explanations we require for our audit, or if informanon specified by law regarding directors' remuneration and
other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read the other information contained in the Annual Report as descnbed in the contents section and consider whether it 15
consistent with the audited parent company financial statements We consider the implicattons for our report if we become aware
of any apparent misstatements or material inconsistencies with the parent company financial statements Our responsibilties do
not extend to any further information outside the Annual Report

Basis of audit opimion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UX and Ireland) 1ssued by the Auditing Practices
Board An audrit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the parent company
financial statements it also includes an assessment of the significant estmates and judgments made by the directors in the
preparation of the parent company financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company's
arcumsiances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audri 5o as to obtain all the information and explanations which we considered necessary in order
1o provide us with sufficient ewidence to give reasonable assurance that the parent ¢company financial statements are free from
matenial misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or other irregulanty or error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adeguacy of the presentation of information in the parent company financial statements

Opimon
In cur opimion

@ the parent company financial statements give a true and farr view, i accordance with Urited Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice, of the state of the company's affairs as at September 30 2007,

@ the parent company finanaal statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 1985, and
the information given in the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the parent company financal statements

D?Gu&‘,’ r Purg Lol

Deloitte & Touche LLP

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
London

November 14 2007
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Company Balance Sheet
as at September 30 2007

2007 2006
Notes £000's £000%
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 6 2,765 8,228
Tangible assets 7 13,745 8,743
Investments 5 456,121 117,641
472,631 134,612
Current assets
Debtors 8 114,352 51,402
Cash at bank and in hand - S.870
Denwvative financial instrurments 15 7,331 1,031
121,683 58,303
Creditors amounts falling due within one year 9 (98,932) (78,719)
Net current assets/(habilities) 22,751 (20,416)
Total assets less current habilities 495,382 114,196
Creditors amounts falhing due after more than one year
Committed facihty (213,559) -
Provision for habilines 10 (22) (505)
Accruals {22,165) (18,505)
Deferred income {10,617} {10,684)
Accruals and deferred income falling due within one year (32,782) (29,189)
Net assets 249,019 84,502
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 258 223
Share premium account 38,509 38,080
Capital redemption reserve 8 8
Capstal reserve 1,842 1,842
Other reserve 64,981 -
Own shares (78) 74
Labifity for share based payments 13 9,174 2,893
Profit and loss account 12 134,321 41,530
Equity shareholders’ funds 249,019 84,502

Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC has taken advantage of section 230 of the Companies Act 1985 and has not included its own
profit and loss accouns in these accounts The profit after taxation of Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC indluded in the group
profit for the year 15 £112,357,000 {2006 £42,330,000)

The accounts were apprﬁjfjh(a/ﬁj of diectord on November 14 2007
Richard Ensor L’\) & L/\/

Colin Jones

Directors @/\' Y
LY
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Notes to the Company Accounts

1 Accounting policies

Basis of preparation

The accounts have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for denvatives finanaal instruments which have been
measured at farr value and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards and the United Kingdom
Companies Act 1985 The according policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been appled consistently through
current and prior year

Accounting policies
Revenue
Turnover represents income from advertising, subscriptions, sponsorship and delegate fees, net of value added tax

@ Adverusing revenues are recogruzed in the income statement on the date of publication

@ Subscriplion revenues are recognized in the income statement on a stratght-line basis over the period of the subscnption
@® Sponsorship and delegate revenues are recognized in the income statement over the perniod the event I1s run

Revenues invoiced but relating to future penods are deferred and treated as deferred income in the balance sheet

Leased assets
Operating {ease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line or other systematic basis as aliowed by
SSAP 21 "Accounting for Leases and Hire Purchase Contracts'

Pension schemes

Details of the company's pension schemes are set out In note 6 to the group accounts The company partictpates in the
Harmsworth Pension Scheme It 15 unable to wentify its share of the underlying assets and liabilitres 1n this scheme The scheme 15
cperated on an aggregate basis with no segregation of the assets to individual participating employers and, therefore, the same
contribution rate i1s charged to all participating employers {1 @ the contnbution rate charged to each employer Is affected by the
experience of the scheme as a whole) The scheme 15 therefore accounted for as a defined contribution scheme by the company
This means that the pension charge included in these financal staterments is the same as the cash contributions due in the period

Depreciation
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets i1s provided on the straight-line basis over their expected useful lives at the following rates
per year

Freehold land and bulldings 2%

Short-term leasehold premises over term of lease

Office equipment 1% - 33%
Goodwill

Where the company has divisonalized the unincorporated businesses of its subsidiaries, the investment in the subsidiary then has
the substance of goodwill and Is reclassified accordingly Goodwll ansing in these arcumstances 1s not amortized tn the company
where the directors are of the view that the goodwill has an mdefinite economic ife, but 15 reviewed annually for imparrment The
non-amortization of goodwilt represents a departure from the Comparues Act 1985 but 1s necessary to give a true and fair view
under the provisions of FRS 10 'Goodwaill and Intangible Assets” It 1s not possible to quantfy the impact of this departure, as it
would depend on the ife adopted As at September 30 2007, the total of such goodwall was £2,765,000 (2006 £8,228,000)

Taxation
Current tax, Induding UK corporation tax and foreign tax, 1s provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using the tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred taxation 1s calculated under the provisions of FRS 19 'Deferred Taxation', and is provided in full on sirming differences that
result in an obhgation at the balance sheet date to pay more tax, or a nght to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected o
apply when the timing differences crystallize based on current tax rates and law Deferred tax 1s not prowded on timing differences
on un-remitted earnings of subsidianes and associates where there 15 no commitment to remit these earnings Deferred tax assets
are only recogruzed to the extent that 1t 15 regarded as more likely than not that they will be recovered

Foreign currenoes

Transactions In foreign currencies are recorded at the rate of exchange ruling at the date of the transacuon or, if hedged forward,
at the rate of exchange of the related foreign exchange contract Monetary assets and habilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated \nto sterling at the rates ruling at the balance sheet date
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Denivatives and other financal instruments
The company uses vanous dervative finanaal instruments to manage its exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate nisks,
including forward foreign currency contracts and interest rate swaps

All derivative instruments are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value Recognition of gains or losses on dervative instruments
depends on whether the instrument 15 designated as a hedge and the type of exposure it is designed to hedge

The effective portton of gains or losses on cash flow hedges are deferred i equity until the impact from the hedged item 1s
recognised In the profit and loss account The ineffective portion of such gains and losses 1s recognized in the profit and loss
account immediately

Gains or losses on the qualifying part of net investment hedges are recognized in equity together with the gains and losses on
the underlying net investment The ineffective portion of such gains and losses 15 recogmzed in the profit and loss account
immediately

Changes n the farr value of the derivative financial instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognized In the
profit and loss account as they anse

The premium or discount on Interest rate instruments I1s recognized as part of netinterest payable over the penod of the contract
Interest rate swaps are accounted for on an accruals basis

Liabilitses for put options over the remaining minonty interests In subsicharies are recorded in the balance sheet at therr estimated
discounted present value These discounts are unwound and charged to the income statement as noticnal interest over the period
up to the date of the potential future payment in respect of options over further interests in joint ventures and associates, only
movements in their fair value are recognised

Trade and other recevables

Trade receivables are recognised and carmed at onginal invoice amount, less provision for impairment A provision s made and
charged to the profit and loss account when there 1s objective evidence that the company will not be able to collect al! amounts
due according to the onginal terms

Cash at bank and in hand
Cash at bank and in hand includes cash, short-term deposits and other short-term highly iiquid investments with an original
matunty of three months or less

Dividends
Dividends are recognized as an expense in the penod in which they are approved by the company's shareholders Interim dwvidends
are recorded 1n the penod in which they are paid

Prowvisions

A provision 15 recognized in the balance sheet when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a
past event, and it 1s probable that economic benefits will be required to settle the obligaton If it 15 matenal, provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the tme
value of money and, where appropnate, the nsks specfic to the lability

Share-based payments

The company makes share-based payments to certain employees These payments are measured at their estimated fair value at
the date of grant, calculated using an appropriate option pricing model The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed
on a straight-ine basis over the vesting period, based on the estmate of the number of shares that will eventually vest At the
penied end the vesting assumptions are revisited and the charge assogated with the fair value of these options updated In
accordance with the transitional provisions of FRS 20 "Share-based payments’' has been applied to all grants of options after
November 7 2002, that were unvested at October 1 2004, the date of application of FRS 20
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

2 Staff costs

2007 2006

£OO0's £000's

Salanes, wages and incentives 31,421 26,897
Social secunty costs 4,356 2,771
Pension contributiens 492 621
Share based compensation costs 6,281 2,241
42,550 32,530

Details of directors’ remuneration are set out in the Directors' Remuneration Report on pages 25 to 35 and in note 6 of the
group accounts

The ultimate parent company, Dally Mail and General Trust plc, 1s required to account for the defined benefit scheme under
International Accounting Standard 19 'Employee Benefits' {IAS 19) The IAS 19 disclosures in the Annual Report and Accounts of
Dally Mail and General Trust plc have been based on the results of the actuanal valuation of the defined benefit scheme as at
March 31 2004 adjusted to allow for the assurnptions and actuanal methodology required by IAS 19 and updated to October 1
2006 by the scheme’s actuary These showed that the market value of the pnncipal scheme’s assets was £6500 million
(2006 £602 3 milion) and that the actuanal value of these assets represented 106% (2006 90%) of the benefits that had accrued
to members (also calculated in accordance with 1AS 19) The valuations and disclosures required under IAS 19 for the finanaal
statements of Daily Mail and General Trust plc are not matenally different to the valuations and disclosures required under FRS 17

3 Number of staff

2007 2006
Average Average
Financial publishing 174 163
Business publishing 85 102
Training B89 77
Conferences and semnars 20 83
Databases and information services 16 1
Central 208 185
Total 662 621
4 Remuneration of auditors
2007 2006
£000s £000's
Parent company audit fee 491 318
5 Investments
Investments in Avallable
assoclated for sale Trade
Subsicharies undertakings Investments investrnent Total
£000%s £000%s £000%s £000s £000°s
At October 1 2006 97,448 34 20,145 14 117,641
Disposal {71,151) ()] (19,740) - {90,896)
Acquisition 429,795 - - - 429,795
Decrease in fair value - - (405) - {405)
Transfer from prowisions - - - {14) (14
At September 30 2007 456,092 29 - - 456,121

Detalls of the principal subsichary undertakings of the company at September 30 2007 <an be found in note 13 to the
group accounis
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6 Intangible fixed assets

Goodwill
£0007s
Cost
At October 1 2006 11,051
Disposal (6,001)
At September 30 2007 5,050
Amortization
At October 1 2006 2,823
Disposal {2,000}
Impairment 1,462
At September 30 2607 2,285
Net book value at September 30 2007 2,765
Net book value at September 30 2006 8,228
The company does not amortize its goodwill (note 1)
7 Tangible Fixed Assets
Freehold Short-term
land and leasehold Office
butldings premises equipment Total
£000% £000's £000°s £000°s
Cost
At October 1 2006 - 8,984 7,929 16,913
Additions 5,252 593 835 6,680
Disposals (207) (826) (254) (1,287)
At September 30 2007 5,045 8,751 8,510 22,306
Depreciation
At October 1 2006 - 2,698 5,472 8,170
Charge for the year 19 609 706 1,334
Disposals - {689} {254} {943)
At September 30 2007 19 2,618 5,924 8,561
Net book value at September 30 2007 5,026 6,133 2,586 13,745
Net book value at September 30 2006 - 6,286 2,457 8,743
8 Debtors
2007 2006
£000's £000s
Due within one year
Trade debtors 14,309 15,454
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 92,315 26,571
Other debtors 108 1,168
Deferred tax {note 11) 3,826 3,181
Prepayments and accrued income 3,794 4,988
114,352 51,402
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

9 Creditors
2007 2006
£000's £000's
Due within one year
Bank overdraft 3,483 -
Trade creditors 1,048 2,913
Amounts owed to DMGT group undertakings 4,142 63,707
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 61,166 674
Other creditors 11,435 8,284
Corporation tax 4,288 2,651
Derivative lrability 596 -
Acquisitton option commitments 978 490
Loan notes 11,796 -
98,932 78,719
10 Provisions for llabilities
2007 2006
£000°s £000%
Onerous lease provision
At October 1 505 674
Used in the year (483) (169)
At September 30 22 S05
2007 2006
£000's £000s
Matunity profile of provisions
Wiathsn 1 year 22 184
Between 1 and 2 years - 184
Between 2 and 5 years - 137
22 505

The onerous lease provision relates to certain buildings wathin the property portfolio which erther through acquisiion were rented
at non-market rates or are no longer occupied by the group

11 Deferred tax
The deferred tax asset at September 30 2007 compnsed

2007 2006
£000s £000's
Accelerated tax depreciation (224} (42)
Other short-term tuming differences 4,050 3,223
Deferred tax 3,826 3,181
£000°s
Movement in deferred tax
Deferred tax asset at October 1 2006 318
Deferred tax charge in the profit and Joss account 645
Deferred tax asset at September 30 2007 3,826

A deferred tax asset of £3,826,000 (2006 £3,181,000) has been recognized in respect of depreciation in excess of UK capital
allowances and other short-term timing differences The directors are of the opinion that based on recent and forecast trading,
the level of profits in future years are more likely than not to be sufficent to enable the asset to be recovered
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12 Profit and loss account

At October 1

Profit for the year

Final dmvidend 2005 on ordinary shares of 11 Op
Final dwidend 2006 on ordinary shares of 11 6p
Intenm dmidend 2006 on ordinary shares of 5 4p
Intenm dnadend 2007 on ordinary shares of 6 Op
Gains on cash flow hedges

Tax on rterns taken directly to equity

Change in Fair value of available for sale investments

September 30

13 Liability for share based payments

At October 1
Credit to equity for share based payments

September 30

2007 2006
£000's £000%s
41,530 13,368
112,357 42,330
- (9,767)
(11,936) -
- (4,806)
(6,174) -
(552) -
{499) -
(405) 405
134,321 41,530
2007 2006
£000°s £000s
2,893 652
6,281 2,241
9,174 2,893

An explanation of the company's share based payment arrangements are set out in the Directors’ Remuneration Report on
page 27 The number of shares under option, the fair value per option granted and the assumptions used to determine their values
15 given in note 23 to the group accounts Their dilutive effect on the number of weighted average shares of the company 1s given

In note 10 to the group accounts

14 Commitments

Operating leases which expire
Within one year

Between two and five years
Over five years

15 Finanaal instruments

2007 2006
£000%s £000s
65 65
100 253
892 892
1,057 1,210

Under FRS 26 ‘Financial Instruments’ the company has recognized forward exchange contracts with a farr value asset of
£7,331,000 (2006 £1,031,000) Full detadls regarding these can he found in note 18 to the group accounts

Under FRS 26 ‘Finanaal Instruments’ the company has recognized interest rate swaps with a fair value habiity of £596,000

(2006 £ril) Full detarls regarding these can be found in note 18 to the group accounts

16 Share capital

Details of the company's share capital 1s given in note 22 to the group accounts
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Notes to the Company Accounts continued

17 Reconchation of movements in equity shareholders’ funds

2007 2006

£000's £000s

Profit for the financal year 112,357 42,330

Dividends paid {18,110) (14,573)
94,247 27,757

Issue of shares 65,444 730
Gains on cash flow hedges {552} -
Tax on itemns taken directly to equity (499) -
Change in far value of available for sale investments {405) 405
Credit to equity for share based payments 6,281 2,241
Net increase in equity shareholders’ funds 164,516 31,133
Opering equity sharehoiders” funds 84,502 53,369
Closing equity shareholders’ funds 249,018 84,502

18 Post balance sheet event

The directors propose a final dvidend of 13 Op per share (2006 11 6p) totalling £13,386,000 (2006 £11,907,000) for the year
ended September 30 2007 The dividend will be submitted for formal approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held an
January 30 2008 In accordance with FRS 21 'Post balance sheet events', these financial statements do not reflect this dwidend
payable but will be accounted for in shareholders' equity as an appropnation of retained earnings in the year ending September 30
2008 Durnng 2007, a final dwvidend of 11 6p (2006 11 Op) per share totalling £11,936,000 (2006 £9,767,000) was paid n
respect of the dividend declared for the year ended September 30 2006

19 Ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The directors regard the ultimate parent undertaking as Rothermere Continuation Limited, wiuch 1s incorporated in Bermuda The
ultimate controlling party 1s The Viscount Rothermere The largest and smallest group of which the company 1s a member and for
which group accounts are drawn up 15 that of Dally Mail and General Trust plc, iIncorporated in Great Britain and regrstered in
England and Wales Copes of the report and accounts are available from

The Company Secretary

Daily Mait and General Trust plc
Northeliffe House, 2 Derry Street
London W8 51T
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Five Year Record

Group income statement extracts

( UK GAAP | | IFRS ]

2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

£000% £000's £000% £000%s £000's

Revenue 158,942 174,654 196,266 222,276 305,594
Operating profit before acquired intangible

amortisation, share option expense

and exceptional items 23,812 30,606 39,348 43,812 78,606

Goodwall amortization (14617 {7.534) n/a na n/a

Acquired intangible amortisation - - - (144) {15,716)

Share option expense - - {1,380) (4,428) {10,176)

Exceptional items - - (315) (716) 855

Operating profit before associates

and joint ventures 9,195 23,072 37,653 38,524 53,569
Share of results in associates and joint ventures 418 373 624 1,208 490
Operating profit 9,613 23,445 38,277 39,732 54,059
Exceptional profit on disposal/closure

of businesses 701 - - - -
Net finance costs {2,918) (2,954) (3,843) (4,498) {12,931)
Profit on ardinary activities before tax 7.396 20,491 34,434 35,234 41,128
Tax (charge)/credit on profit on ordinary

activities (3.101) (3.899) (2.417) 3,512 (8,223)
Profit on ordinary activities after tax 4,295 16,592 32,017 38,746 32,905
Profit from discontinued operations - - - - 500
Profit for the period 4,295 16,592 32,017 38,746 33,405
Attnibutable to
Equity holders of the parent 4,069 16,014 30,181 37,430 31,822
Equity munonity interests 226 578 1,836 1,316 1,583
Profit for the financial year 4,295 16,592 32,017 38,746 33,405
Basic earmings per share 4 64p 18 22p 3419p 42 11p 30 66p
Diluted earnings per share 4 64p 18 16p 3410p 41 90p 29 86p
Adjusted diluted earnings per share 20 50p 2671p 26 28p 2861p 3270p
Diluted weighted average number of

ordinary shares 87,737,261 88,160,349 88,508,359 89,340,024 104,888,887
Dividend per share 14 75p 15 00p 16 20p 17 Q0p 19 00p
Group balance sheet extracts
Intangible fixed assets 33,757 60,989 66,508 71,598 380,022
Tangible fixed assets 9,097 7,766 27,647 63,406 33,041
Accruals (17,032} {18,569} {23,225) (29,478) (43,424)
Deferred income habihty {32,330 (35,317} (37.491) (45,324) (73,382)
Other net current assets/(liabilies) (2,118) (66,093) 3,924 7.334 25,336
Non-current habilities {64,680} (11,186) {73,313) {94,310) (265,813)
Net hlabilities (73,306) (62.410} (35,950) {26,774) 55,780

The income statements, earmings per share and dwdends per share for 2005, 2006 and 2007 have been prepared under IFRS
2004 and earlier penods have not been adjusted from UK GAAP as it 1s not practicable to restate these years reports in accordance
with IFRS Due to differences between IFRS and UK GAAP, there are some comparative inconsistencies in the above tables Refer
1o the group’s September 30 2006 annual report, note 29 for an indication of the adjustments to comply with IFRS
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Internet Sites

Euromoney Institutional Investor
Internet Srtes (all www)

abf-asia com

abf com sg

absolutereturn net

adhes com

aifinancejournal com
airtrafficnanagement net
amm com

astalaw com

asiamoney com

bearesearch com

ceicdata com
chinafawandpractice com
coaftrans com

degtraming com

dealogic com
emergingmarkets org
euromoney com
euromoneybooks com
euromoneyconferences com
euromoneyleasetraining com
euromoneyplc com
EUrOMONEYSemiNars com
euromoneytraimng com
euromoney-yearbooks com
euroweek com
expertguides com
financialdirectories com

fow com

fowevents com
fowtradedata com
globalinvestormagazine com
globaltelecomsbusiness com
gulfpub com
hedgefundinteligence com
hydrocarbonprocessing com
tffrcom

1fir 1000 com

uconferences com
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nevents com

yournals com
nmemberships com

Hnews com
uresearchgroup com
nsearches com

imn org

indmin org
nstitutionalinvestor com
internationaltaxreview com
isfmagazine com
latinfinance com
legalmediagroup com
managingip com
metalbulfetin com

misti com

mistieurope com
petroleumn-econonst com
projectfinancemagazine com
reactionsnet com

securities com

sfinews net

tefcap co uk
totaldervatives com
totakecuritization com
tradefinancemagazine com

worldoll com

For further information on all Euromoney
nstitutional Investor products, call the Hothne on

(UK) +44 (0) 207 779 8999
(US) +1 800 437 9997 or
+1 212 224 3570

or e-mall to
hothne@euromoneyplc com




Financial Calendar and Shareholder Information

2007 Final results announcement Thursday November 15 2007
Final diidend ex-dividend date Wednesday November 21 2007
Final dividend record date Frniday November 23 2007
2008 AGM (approval of final dividend) Wednesday January 30 2008
Payment of final dividend Wednesday February 6 2008
2008 intenm results announcement Thursday May 15 2008
Interim dividend ex-dividend date Wednesday May 21 2008
Intenm dividend record date Frnday May 23 2008

Payment of 2008 interim dividend Monday June 23 2008~

2008 final results announcement Thursday Novernber 13 2008

Holders of International Depositary Receipts can receive their

Final 2007 year end ddend from Wednesday February 6 2008
Intenm 2008 dmdend from Monday June 23 2008*
Loan note interest paid to holders of loan notes on Monday December 31 2007

Monday June 30 2008

* Provisional dates and are subject to change

Shareholder queries
Administrative enquiries about the holding of Euromoney Institutional investor PLC shares should be directed i the first instance
to the company's Registrar whose address 1s

Capita Registrars
The Registry

34 Beckenham Road
Beckenham

Kent

BR3 4TU

Telephone 0870 162 3100
(from outside the UK +44 (0) 20 8639 3399)

E-mail ssd@capitareqistrars com
www capitaregisirars com

Loan note redemption information

Loan notes can be redeemed twice a year on the interest payment dates above by depositing the Notice of Repayment
printed on the Loan Note Certficate at the company's registered office At least 20 business days' wriiten notice prior to the
redemnption date is required

Registered office
Nestor House
Playhouse Yard
London

EC4V 5EX
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